
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 

31450 NW Commercial 
Monday, October 7, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 09/16/2013 Council meeting 

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 
be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  You 
are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your 
name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.)   

 
6. PRESENTATION: 

A. Presentation of proceeds from benefit dance to Ruby Brackin of the North Plains 
Food Pantry 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Adoption of Resolution No. 1801 Supporting Passage of Hillsboro School District 
General Obligation Bond 

B. Adoption of Resolution No. 1802 Appointment of Anapreet Kaur Gill to the North 
Plains Public Library Board of Directors 

C. Discussion of Acquisition of Cameras with a CIS grant 
D. Discussion of property acquisition for Water Tank Site 
E. Discussion of fireworks show for July 4, 2014 
F. Discussion of the hiring of an Event Organizer for 4th of July  
G. Acceptance of Employee Handbook date 10/1/13 
H. Discuss progress Councilors are making on reviewing draft City Policies received 

at 9/16/13 Council Meeting. 
I. Discussion of street naming with new development 
J. Discuss FY2013-14 through September 2013 
K. Discuss excess crime coverage 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 1 of 154



 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

 None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the City Manager, Public Works Director, Police 

Chief, and Library Director 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended and other items. 

 
B. October 2013 Council Calendar 
 

13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 One Book One Community Program Preview, Saturday, October 12 at 6:30 at 

the library. 
 Chili Cook-Off, Thursday, October 17 at 6:00 in the Jessie Mays Community Hall 
 Benefit Dance: Harvest Hoedown, Saturday, October 19, 2013 from 7:00 p.m. to 

11:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade, Saturday, October 26, 2013 from 7:00 a.m. 

with the pumpkin pancake breakfast at the Senior Center then events throughout 
the day at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 

 Halloween Treats at the library on Thursday, October 31, 2013 starting at 11:00 
a.m. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT:  
 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will 
also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other 
services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please 
call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 
City Council Meetings are normally scheduled to be held at the North Plains Senior Center. 
They will be held at 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon, on the following 

dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 

Monday, October 21, 2013 Monday, November 4, 2013 Monday, November 18, 2013 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 2 of 154



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial  

Tuesday, September 16, 2013  
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher conducted the flag salute 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: Glen 

Warren, Michael Broome, Charlynn Newton, and Robert Kindel, Jr. 
 
Councilor Demagalski arrived at 7:09. 
 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder, Public Works 
Director Blake Boyles, Management Analyst Jennifer Knowles, Deputy City Recorder 
Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 09/03/2013 Council meeting 

Motion by Broome. Seconded by Kindel to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Dale Herinckx approached the Council citing City Ordinance 5.20.110 and the use of 
skateboards on sidewalks. Herinckx lives on Claxtar Street and is concerned that the new 
sidewalks that have been installed will attract skateboarders to the neighborhood. Herinckx 
wants to know who will be enforcing the code if it is violated. Herinckx was informed that he 
can call the police to report the violation. Chief Snyder stated that a citizen could issue a 
citation. 
 
Herinckx had a second inquiry regarding the skateboard park in town. He was wondering 
where it went or what happened to it.  He stated the City should pursue turning one of the 
smaller parks into a skate park. 
 
6. PRESENTATION: 

A. Presentation of Proclamation to North Plains Junior National Baseball Team—State 
Champions. 

 
The team was not able to be present at this meeting due to most of the players are now 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 3 of 154



playing football. 
 

B. Nina Carlson: Hillsboro Budget Committee to address council regarding upcoming 
school bond measure. 

 
Ms. Carlson presented a report regarding the upcoming bond measure that will be on the 
November ballot. This will be a five year local option levy that would pay for technology, safety 
improvements, and building maintenance projects for Hillsboro Schools. The cost to taxpayers 
is about 42-cents per $1,000 of assessed property value. The owner of a home assessed at 
$200,000 would pay about $84 a year. Carlson is seeking the Council’s support by Resolution. 
The Council will consider a resolution at the October 7, 2013 Council meeting. 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of the ownership of the Garlic Festival 
 
DeBry presented the staff report. Over the past year there has been a great deal of discussion 
surrounding who owns some of the community events. DeBry was asking for feedback from 
the Council regarding the City taking more ownership of some of these events. Many of these 
activities, which include the Garlic Festival and the Jingle, have become a part of the culture of 
this community and it is important to take some measures to ensure the preservation of these 
events.  Discussion ensued. Lenahan stated that we need to learn from the past. The 
consensus of the group was to call a meeting between the City, the Chamber of Commerce 
and the North Plains Events Association (NPEA) and report back to the Council.  The Council 
will then decide if they want to sign off on what is agreed to. 
 

B. Discussion of the ownership of the skate park material and equipment 
 
DeBry presented the staff report which includes historical information regarding the temporary 
skate park which was installed in 2009 in the north basketball court at Jessie Mays Community 
Park. The equipment was originally purchased by the Friends of the North Plains Skateboard 
Park. Due to complaints, insurance concerns and installation issues Council decided to 
remove the skateboarding equipment in May of 2010.  The equipment has been in storage 
since then and staff has made several attempts to broker the transfer of equipment to another 
organization with no success. Discussion ensued. Broome would like to see the equipment 
used for its intended purpose. Warren stated that a lot of work went into raising the money 
from the community for the skate park equipment.  Broome expressed his disappointment in 
how long it has taken the City to develop a permanent skate park. Consensus of the Council is 
a continued desire to have a skate park. It was decided that Broome and Warren own the 
equipment.  Warren will approach Evergreen Christian Church regarding brokering a deal for 
the equipment.  
 

C. Discussion of draft policies 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 4 of 154



DeBry presented the staff report. Staff is proposing to have a more streamlined employee 
handbook which only highlights the common employment policies, a policy manual that 
provides a comprehensive explanation of the policies and the safety manual which addresses 
specific activity risks. This would replace three documents that currently exists in which 
policies are not well explained.  Council accepted the draft copies and will begin to review the 
document.  Council will discuss their progress and bring questions to staff at the October 07, 
2013 Council meeting. 
 

D. Presentation of August Check Register 
 
Council asked a few clarifying questions all of which were addressed and explained by staff.  
This item was informational only. 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of the costs and expenses of the Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade  
 
Jennifer Knowles presented her report on the schedule, projected expenses and projected 
revenue sources for the Pumpkin Fun Run and Costume Parade to be held on October 26, 
2013. Details of the event can be found on the Events website at NPFun.org. This is a fund 
raiser and the beneficiary of the event this year are the Friends of the North Plains Public 
Library. 
 
Discussion ensued.  Lenahan inquired how Knowles picked the Friends as the beneficiary of 
the event.  Knowles stated that when you partner with a 501(c)3 organization greater 
opportunities for support are created. DeBry stated the Friends of the Library have been 
working with the city for a long time and the money they raise ends up coming back to the city.  
Hatcher was very pleased to hear that this event is a fundraiser.  It was suggested that the 
concept of it being a fundraiser should be emphasized more on the website. 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING:   

A. None Scheduled. 
 

SECOND READING: 
B. None Scheduled 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 
City Manager DeBry stated planning is picking up. A seven lot subdivision was just approved 
at the September Planning Commission meeting.  Also, a conditional use for RV parking was 
proposed, and McDonalds is beginning the process for their eventual remodel.  We have not 
heard anything from Polygon yet on the east expansion area. 
 
DeBry reminded the Council they have mailboxes at City Hall that should be periodically 
checked.  If they are not able to pick it up, staff will bring it to the Council meetings. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 5 of 154



Newton asked for an update on the Martin’s and the 76 Station in regards to the walking trail 
and the tunnel. Hatcher stated that he had a great meeting with ODOT.  He found out that 
there is $1M set aside in a line item for the trail that does not have a timeframe for expiration. 
He stated we have time to address the concerns of the Board of 76. 
 
Public Works Director Boyles reported on the Claxtar Street project—the sidewalks are all 
complete.  They have been getting good responses from the residents. Hatcher asked about 
the difference in elevation from the street and some of the yards.  Boyles stated that the 
original street was two feet off center so things needed to be shifted.  The crowns changed and 
the elevation levels followed suit. 
 
Boyles met with a realtor to assist in the process of finding a property that may work to move 
the Public Works department to. 
 
Chief Snyder reported on the shooting that took place on Thursday night. He stated how 
pleased he was to see the Sheriff’s office assist in the incident. Ten officers responded and it 
was an incredible show of law enforcement support. 
 
Snyder stated he wants to have Todd Duncan sworn in at the next Council meeting. Duncan is 
replacing Nick Steele.  
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
Hatcher reviewed the October 2013 Council Calendar that was distributed in the packets with 
the Council. Hatcher will be attending the Special Library Board Meeting on October 2, 2013. 
 
Council Reports: 
Broome reminded the Council of the upcoming fundraiser dance on Saturday, September 21st 
that will benefit the food pantry. 
 
Newton reported that the North Plains Elementary School is going to sing at an upcoming 
Hillsboro City Council. She inquired of the Council if that is something they would like to have 
done. She will look into it. 
 
Broome expressed his dissatisfaction in the communication regarding how the appreciation T-
shirts were distributed to businesses that contributed to the Garlic Festival. He stated that 
Chevron kept waiting for the promised T-Shirt to be delivered. They found out that the donors 
were supposed to go pick them up, but that was never communicated. 
 
13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Last two Farmer’s Market scheduled for Saturday, September 21 and September 28 
from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 Benefit Dance: Country Music Swing and Sway, Saturday, September 21, 2013 from 
7:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 

 One Book One Community Program Preview and Art Exhibit: Saturday, October 12, 
2013 from 6:30 – 8:00 p.m. at the North Plains Public Library. 

 Chili Cook-Off, Thursday, October 17 at 6:00 in the Jessie Mays Community Hall 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 6 of 154



 Benefit Dance: Harvest Hoedown, Saturday, October 19, 2013 from 7:00 p.m. to 
11:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 

 Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade, Saturday, October 26, 2013 from 7:00 a.m. with 
the pumpkin pancake breakfast at the Senior Center then events throughout the day 
at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 

 Halloween Treats at the library on Thursday, October 31, 2013 starting at 11:00 a.m. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 9:01 p.m. 
 

 
 
_______________________________   
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved __________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, Deputy Recorder 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 7 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Resolution No. 1801: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of North 
Plains, Oregon, Supporting Passage of Hillsboro School District General 
Obligation Bond 

 
 
Request:  Council consider adopting Resolution No. 1801 supporting passage of 
Hillsboro School District General Obligation Bond 
 
Background:  Nina Carlson, Hillsboro Budget Committee, had requested to make a 
presentation to the Council on September 16, 2013. Carlson’s presentation of a 

proposed School District general obligation bond scheduled to be on the ballot 
November 5, 2013, ended by asking for the Council’s support by resolution for the 

Hillsboro School District General Obligation Bond. 

Fiscal Impact:   There is no fiscal impact. 
 
Environmental Issues: None 
 
Recommendation:  Council adopt Resolution 1801 which supports the passage of the 
Hillsboro School District General Obligation Bond. 
 
Attachments:   
 
Sample Motion: I move to adopt Resolution Number 1801 supporting the passage of 
the Hillsboro School District’s General Obligation Bond. 
 
 
Attachment – Resolution 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 8 of 154



 RESOLUTION NO. 1801 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 
SUPPORTING PASSAGE OF HILLSBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND 

 

WHEREAS, the Hillsboro School District, of which the North Plains residents are a part 
of, has proposed a five-year General Obligation Bond to be voted on November 5, 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to repeated state school funding shortfalls over the past five years, 

Hillsboro School District has cut $70 million from the budgets, eliminating 22 school days and 
258 full-time staff positions; and 
 

WHEREAS, Hillsboro School District has reduced administration, maintenance, 
textbooks and learning materials, technology and safety investments; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed School District general obligation bond is designed to 
generate $25 million to address, in part, the loss of funding received by the Hillsboro School 
District from the Oregon State School Fund; and 
 

WHEREAS, the monies from the bond will replace outdated computers, make 
substantial improvements to student access to instructional technology necessary for the 21st 
century workplace, and make necessary safety and maintenance improvements at the highest-
priority schools, thereby promoting the Hillsboro School District's mission of graduating students 
prepared for college and careers; and 
 

WHEREAS, the bond costs $0.42 per $1,000 of assess property value. Homes with the 
median assessed value of $200,000 would pay an estimated additional $7 per month; and 
 

WHEREAS, the members of the North Plains City Council believe that a strong school 
system is essential for the health of the community and area businesses, and creates a 
foundation that makes North Plains a great place to live, work and play. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 
PLAINS, OREGON, that the Council offers its unqualified support for voter approval of the 
Hillsboro School District's General Obligation Bond and urges voters to vote "yes" on November 
5, 2013. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of October, 2013. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 9 of 154



 

Agenda Item No. 8B 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   October 3, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Resolution No. 1802 appointing member to the North Plains Library Board 

Request:  Appoint Anapreet Kaur Gil as a member to the North Plains Public Library 
Board of Directors. 

Background: The Library Board has been accepting applications from residents for 
appointment to the Board to fulfill the remainder of a term that ends on June 30, 2014. A 
position was recently vacated when J. Knowles resigned.  The Board reviewed and 
interviewed an applicant at the October Library Board meeting. They are forwarding 
their recommendation to the Council to review for appointment of Anapreet Kaur Gil to 
that Board. 

Fiscal Impact:  Appointment has no fiscal impact. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to adopt Resolution No. 1802 appointing Anapreet Kaur Gil as 
a member to the North Plains Public Library Board of Directors. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 10 of 154



_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 11 of 154



RESOLUTION NUMBER 1802 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE NORTH PLAINS LIBRARY BOARD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Plains adopted Resolution 
Number 1089 on April 15, 2002, establishing the North Plains Public Library; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Resolution Number 1089 established a Library Board and the terms 
the Library Board members would serve; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a position has been vacated by J. Knowles as she is now an 
employee of the City of North Plains; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Municipal Code Chapter 1.25 establishes the membership, 
established a Library Board and the organization and rules of Library Board members. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  Section 1. Anapreet Kaur Gil is appointed to the Library Board for the 

remainder of the four (4) year term expiring June 30, 2014 
that was recently vacated. 

 
  Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 
 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of October, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 12 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8C    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Chief of Police William Snyder 

Subject: Acquisition of cameras with a CIS grant 

Request:  Council discuss the acquisition of cameras with a CIS grant 
 
Background:  The North Plains Police Department has been exploring options for the 
purchase of cameras that can passively monitor high traffic areas, and provide data 
about problem crime areas.  The locations the Department is considering monitoring 
include Commercial Street and Glencoe Road. 
 
Many police agencies in Oregon use cameras to augment their patrols.  For example 
the City of Beaverton has several dozen cameras throughout the city.  In larger 
departments, around the clock patrols often serve as a deterrent to crime and aid in 
rapid response to crimes.  Smaller agencies and larger agencies have started modest 
surveillance programs to leverage patrol resources by capturing images of vehicles or 
persons who may be associated with crimes.  Since North Plains does not have around 
the clock patrols, video surveillance information is often the only tool officers have to 
identify a suspect.   

North Plains Police has taken reports of 
crimes which have occurred on 
Commercial Street.  In many instances the 
Department could not identify witnesses or 
suspects, and the only leads generated 
were from video monitoring systems 
mounted at local businesses such as North 
Plains Market.  For example the image to 
the right assisted the Department with 
identifying a theft suspect.  The quality of 
this image is relatively poor, and it was 
good luck that the suspect walked on the south side of the street near the Market.  The 
value of this image was that it placed the suspect of a certain height and build in the 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 13 of 154



general vicinity at the same time as the crime.  The quality of this image did not specifically 
identify the individual but it did help the department piece together its case, which is still 
under investigation.  A higher quality image would effectively identify persons of interest. 

North Plains has been experiencing ongoing criminal night 
time activity, including a rash of car burglaries in the Highland 
Court area last summer which remain unsolved as no 
witnesses or photographic data could be developed.  

Cameras are allowed in public places where there is no 
expectation of privacy.  Generally they are mounted in a way 
that focuses on sidewalks and streets and prevents them from 
looking into buildings. 

The Department is proposing investing a few higher quality 
portable cameras to augment its patrols.  These devices rely 
on high speed data cards to transmit data from remote 
locations to a server at the Department.  Real-time images can 
be downloaded by officers in the field using existing 
equipment.  Cameras can be mounted on lamp posts or 
buildings such as North Plains Public Library.  It is a common 
practice to mark permanently mounted cameras to indicate it 
is police surveillance, and install notices of surveillance.  Placement of the cameras on 
Commercial Street would also assist with management of public events for purposes of 
safety and security. When needed, these devices can also be installed in more discrete 
locations for “undercover” surveillance required to address specific criminal matters. 

The City should adopt a policy on camera use similar to OSU’s which is included in 

Council’s packet.  Above are photos generated by the kinds of cameras the City is 
evaluating for use.  These cameras can capture imagery for several hundred feet in high 

Day Night 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 14 of 154



definition.  They are suitable for identifying the color, make and model of vehicles even at 
night.  These images can often be enhanced to show license plates and faces of 
individuals.   

Fiscal Impact:   Staff is proposing applying for a grant to CIS for this purpose.  At this 
time the City does not have specific costs, but estimates it is below the maximum grant 
of $4,770, which requires no matching contribution.  CIS offers grants that enhance 
employee and community safety as part of their regular risk management program, and 
have approved similar installations in the past. 
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to direct the Police Chief to apply for the grant to obtain 
cameras. 
  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 15 of 154



OSU Camera Police 
 
 
SECURITY CAMERA POLICY  

POLICY ON THE PURCHASE, USE AND MAINTENANCE OF SECURITY CAMERAS  

 

Purpose & Scope  

Oregon State University (OSU) operates security cameras for the purpose of creating a safer 

environment for all those who live, work, and visit campus.  This policy provides guidelines for 

the purchase, placement, and operation of security cameras, the purpose of their use, and the 

storage and use of video and image data from security cameras at OSU. All public space 

electronic video surveillance equipment used by Oregon State University will be in accordance 
with state, local, and federal law. 

Security cameras are strategically placed throughout OSU to meet the specific needs of 

departments and for the purpose of assisting the OSU Department of Public Safety to deter 

crime, manage emergency response situations, and investigate suspected criminal behavior. 

Prohibited Activity 

Security camera use will be conducted in a professional and ethical, and legal  manner.  Security 

cameras will not be used in areas where there is a reasonable expectation of privacy.  Video 

monitoring shall not be used to harass, intimidate, or discriminate against any individual or 
group. 

Public Notification 

Security cameras will be marked in a conspicuous manner to inform the public that the area is 

under video surveillance. 

Review of Video Data 

Authorization to retrieve and review recorded information pertaining to law enforcement need is 

restricted to each department’s Dean or Director and the Director of the OSU Department of 

Public Safety (DPS). 

Monitoring 

Viewing of any security camera feed (live or recorded) meant solely for security purposes will 

only be permitted with the express permission of the department’s Dean or Director, in 

consultation with the Director of Public Safety.  DPS will be given access to all campus security 

cameras for use during campus emergencies. Departments may install and view camera feeds 
for purposes related business, education, or support needs. 

Public and other Agency Requests 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 16 of 154



Any requests for recorded video images that come from non-OSU employees will be promptly 

submitted to the Office of General Counsel and the Director of Public Safety.  Every reasonable 

effort should be made to preserve the data requested until the request has been finally 

processed by the Office of General Counsel. 

Public and media requests for video images captured by security cameras will be made available 

only to the extent required by law.  In many cases, especially where a student is identifiable, a 
subpoena will be required. 

Media Storage Guidelines 

Only individuals authorized by DPS or the department’s Dean/Director (in consultation with DPS) 

will have access to stored security camera video and images.  Security camera video and images 

should be stored for a period of not less than 14 days and thereafter may be erased, if not 
otherwise required for any related investigation, claim, or other University need. 

Equipment and Software Specifications 

Departments wishing to install or use security cameras are responsible for the purchase of all 

necessary equipment including cameras, wiring, servers, and software. 

Any video recording software purchases made after January 1, 2013, must be approved by DPS 

to meet a specific software standard.  The software standard can be obtained through the OSU 
Department of Public Safety. 

Upkeep of Surveillance Cameras 

The departments are responsible for the upkeep of the security cameras and recording systems 

they purchase.  Departments purchasing security cameras and recording systems shall designate 

at least one “Departmental Camera Custodian” as the main DPS contact for technical and day-to-
day operations of the security cameras purchased. 

 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 17 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8D    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Property acquisition for water tank site 

Request:  Council provide direction regarding the purchase of property for a water tank 
site. 
 
Background:  City staff has been scouting for properties which can host a future water 
tank site location.  Public Works seeks a site that can accommodate the relocation of 
vehicles, equipment and supplies.  Eventually the entire department would be moved 
away from City Hall, which abuts a residential neighborhood.  
 
At this time the search has narrowed to three properties in the east industrial area: 
 

Property Asking Price Acres Building 

Protoco $249,000 1.0 NA 

VanDomelen $730,000 3.0 NA 

OSP Building $3,500,000 7.5 45,000 sq ft 

 
While evaluating properties staff sees the potential for some larger properties to 
accommodate other City needs including park land, and a recreation facility.  
 
All three parcels have been for sale for extended period of time, and there is no reason 
to believe that the City must rush into making an offer.   
 
Fiscal Impact:   All three properties are within the City’s financial reach using different 
financial instruments.  Below is a matrix of how the properties can be acquired.  Loans 
can include conventional bank loans or loans from the State infrastructure fund. A bond 
can be configured in a variety of ways depending on the proposed use of the property 
and other needs identified by the City.  
  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 18 of 154



Property Cash Loan(s) Bond 

Protoco X   

VanDomelen X X (X)* 

OSP (X) X X 
 
The sources for funding would include: 
 

Property Water Street General Fund Park SDC TDT/TIF 

Protoco x (x) (x)  x 

VanDomelen x x x (x) x 

OSP x x x x x 
 
The share of each funds’ cost would vary based on the land and improvements used for 
a purpose.  For example, if the Protoco property were purchased, it would likely be 
funded almost entirely by water.  Some funding may be allocated from the general fund 
or street fund if it is determined that a portion of the property would be used for Public 
Works purposes which are split 50% water / 25% general fund / 25% street.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to direct staff to pursue looking into options. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 19 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8E    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Fireworks for 2014 Fourth of July Celebration 

Request:  Council discuss reserving a fireworks show for July 4, 2014. 
 
Background:  For the past two years the City of North Plains has hosted a fireworks 
show on the 4th of July.  The City contracted with Western Display Fireworks (Canby, 
Oregon) both years.   In 2012 show cost $12,000 and the 2013 show which featured 
higher and fewer fireworks cost $12,500. 
 
As the City approaches the third year of the Fourth of July Celebration a decision needs 
to be made regarding reserving the date for fireworks.  Western Displays requests 
confirmation of the date as soon as practical, and a deposit of 25% of the show by 
March, and full payment in July.  Adequate funds are allocated for the 25% deposit, but 
not for the balance of the cost which will be incurred in the 2014-15 budget year. 
 
If Council believes it is likely a fireworks show will be commissioned then staff should 
reserve the date.  Council can cancel the show up until March when the signed contract 
and deposit are due.   
 
Fiscal Impact:   Fireworks shows are customized for the customer.  The City can set its 
budget at any amount.  The show’s duration, intensity and height can be adjusted to 
meet the budget.  
 
Funding can come from a combination of the General Fund or sponsorships solicited 
from individuals, organizations and businesses.  The City has no experience with raising 
funds for fireworks, so it is uncertain if fireworks are something sponsors would support.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to direct staff to reserve a fireworks show for July 4, 2014, and 
that the funding sources be evaluated prior to March 1, 2014. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 20 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8F    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion regarding Hiring an Event Organizer for July 4 Celebration 

Request:  Council discuss setting aside funds for an Event Organizer. 
 
Background:   The July 4th Celebration will be in its third year in 2014.  For the past 
two years, a small committee has coordinated the event with the support of City staff.  
While City staff enjoys participating the event, it would be desirable to have the burden 
of activities shared with more volunteers and lower-compensated employees.   
 
For the past two years, Public Works Director Blake Boyles actively worked to 
coordinate the July 4th event.  During the first year, Boyles worked with car show 
volunteers (Lyn Davis and Will Goff), children area volunteers (Barb Crocker, Dan and 
Nikki Robinson, Brenda Lyon and Amber Ames).   The bulk of the expenses associated 
with the event were paid for by Recology.  In 2013, the volunteer committee was 
smaller.  Boyles oversaw the car show.  Crocker and Ames oversaw the children’s 
events and vendors, Councilor Newton oversaw contest activities, and Lyons organized 
the parade and Finance staff assisted with the preparation of promotional materials, 
acquiring materials and coordinating volunteers.  Relatively little time was spent in the 
solicitation of sponsors to make the event cost neutral and to ensure it remains free to 
visitors.  City staff was assigned to work on the day of the event, including public works 
employees who assisted with many of the manual labor tasks to set up and remove 
items from the street. 
 
Because the Public Works Director is a highly compensated City employee, it is not cost 
effective to continue to dedicate his time to the annual event.  He will continue to play 
an important supporting role in providing for the logistical needs of the events.     
 
Staff is proposing that the role of the Event Organizer be assigned formally to one 
person or firm to ensure that adequate time is spent on the planning process, and more 
volunteers are incorporated into the planning process.  Hiring a person or firm to act as 
an organizer would reduce the amount of staff time invested in the event and promote 
more community involvement.  An Event Organizer would be tasked with: 
 

 Organize volunteer committee to plan and execute festival, setting agendas, 
keeping minutes and ensuring compliance with City policies and state law 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 21 of 154



 Appointment of coordinators to assist with management on the day of the 
event 

 Purchase of materials and services for the event 

 Develop, present and execute event promotion plan, including press 
releases, update of website, distribution of fliers at other car shows 

 Develop and administer budget under direction of the City Finance Manager 
and City Manager 

 Negotiate and present contracts for goods and services related to the 
festival to City staff and City Council  

 Conduct promotional activities to encourage participation in the event 

 Assist with solicitation of sponsorships and donations 

 Select performers for the event to provide live music and entertainment 

 Ensure OLCC plans and permits are completed and obtained 

 Oversee logistical coordination of the event 

 Complete CIS checklists for risk management 

 Contact businesses and residences on Commercial Street, 314th, 313th, and 
311th to ensure they are aware of festival layout and timing 

 Make presentation(s) to City Council, North Plains Chamber of Commerce and 
other community organizations  as needed 

 Update maps for festival 

 Determine alcohol service boundaries 

 Assemble a summary report on all activities including documentation of 
contacts and suggestions for next year 

The majority of this work would be performed in the 6 months prior to the event.  A more 
detailed outline of volunteer roles is included in Council’s packet.  
 
Fiscal Impact:   The cost for an organizer is proposed to be between $4,500 - $6,000.  
It is proposed the hourly rate be between $20-$25 and the employee assigned to 25-35 
hours per month January thru May and 60 hours in June and July.  The City will need to 
allocate funds for this purpose. If the organizer is successful in soliciting sponsorships 
there should be adequate revenue to fund the expense.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  No motion needed, for information only.  
 
Attachment – 4th of July Volunteer Job Descriptions 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 22 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

 

 
North Plains 

4th of July 

Celebration 

 
Volunteer Job 

Descriptions 
 

  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 23 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

North Plains 4th of July 

Volunteer Job Descriptions 
 

Contents 
 

EVENT ORGANIZATION 3 

 

Event Planning Committee 

EVENT ORGANIZER 4 

ACTIVITIES COORDINATOR 5 

CAR SHOW COORDINATOR 6 

CITY COORDINATOR 7 

DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR 8 

LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 9 

PARADE COORDINATOR 10 

VENDOR COORDINATOR 11 

VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR 12 

 

Volunteers 

ALCOHOL CHECK POINT VOLUNTEER 14 

CAR SHOW VOLUNTEER 15 

CASH MANAGER 16 

CHILDREN’S AREA VOLUNTEER 17 

GROUNDS CREW 18 

INFORMATION BOOTH VOLUNTEER 19 

PARKING VOLUNTEER 20 

REGISTRATION VOLUNTEERS 21 

SET-UP CREW 22 

TEAR-DOWN CREWS 23 

 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 24 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

EVENT ORGANIZATION 

4th Of July Celebration 

  

Event Organizer

Volunteer 
Coodinator

Parking Volunteers

Information Booth 
Volunteers

Alcohol Checkpoint 
Volunteers

Development 
Coordinator

Dinner Coordinator

Car Show 
Coordinator

Registration 
Volunteers

Cash Manager

Car Show Volunteers

Judges

Vendor Coordinator

Registration 
Volunteers

Cash Manager

Activities 
Coordinator

Activity Volunteers

Cake Walk 
Supervisor

Pie Eating Supervisor

Golf Cart Race 
Supervisor

Horseshoe 
Supervisor

Bounce House 
monitor

Face Painting

Logistics Coordinator

Set Up Crew

Grounds Crew

Tear Down Crew

Parade Coordinator

City Liason

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 25 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

EVENT ORGANIZER  

Name:   _________________________________ 
 

Organize event from beginning (roughly October) to end. Event Organizer receives a 
stipend to coordinate event activities in the months prior to the July 4 Celebration. 

Tasks include: 

 Organize volunteer committee to plan and execute event, setting agendas, 
keeping minutes and ensuring compliance with City policies and state law 

 Appointment of coordinators to assist with management on the day of the 
event 

 Purchase of materials and services for the event 

 Develop, present and execute event promotion plan, including press 
releases, update of website, distribution of fliers at other car shows 

 Develop and administer budget under direction of the City Finance Manager 
and City Manager 

 Negotiate and present contracts for goods and services related to the event 
to City staff and City Council  

 Conduct promotional activities to encourage participation in the event 

 Assist with solicitation of sponsorships and donations 

 Select performers for the event to provide live music and entertainment 

 Ensure OLCC plans and permits are completed and obtained 

 Oversee logistical coordination of the event 

 Complete CIS checklists for risk management 

 Contact businesses and residences on Commercial Street, 314th, 313th, and 
311th to ensure they are aware of Event layout and timing 

 Make presentation(s) to City Council, North Plains Chamber of Commerce and 
other community organizations  as needed 

 Update maps for Event 

 Determine alcohol service boundaries 

 Assemble a summary report on all activities including documentation of 
contacts and suggestions for next year 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 26 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

ACTIVITIES COORDINATOR 

 

Name:  _______________________ 

 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 
day of event.  This position must be able to attend the event for most of the day. 

Oversees management of activities.  In 2013 activities included a pie eating 
contest, cakewalk, horseshoe tournament and golf cart races, as well as a 
children’s play area that included coloring, bubbles, face painting, bounce houses, 
basket ball game, bean bag toss, and fishing pond. 

 Ensure a person will be on site to oversee activity on day of event 

 Identify goods and equipment associated with the activities 
o Assist with obtaining donations of goods and equipment for activities 
o Work with Senior Center to provide pies and cakes  
o Horseshoes supplied by City 
o Golf Carts for races provided by J&S Golf Cart 
o Donated bounce houses (2013: A1JumpWonder) 
o Arrange for acquisition/purchase of materials if needed 

 Identify volunteer needs to facilitate activities 

 Meet periodically with Event Organizer and planning committee 

 Provide summary report on activities including documentation of contacts and 
suggestions for next year 

 
 

  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 27 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

CAR SHOW COORDINATOR 

 

Name: __________________________________ 

 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 
day of event.  The coordinator must oversee operations on the morning of the event. 

This position ensures the logistics related to the management of the Car Show on 
the day of the event are executed appropriately.  This coordinator works in 
cooperation with Event organizer to promote the car show. 

Tasks include: 

 Planning space needs for the vehicle show and communicating those to the 
committee responsible for the layout of the event 

 Recruiting volunteers to assist drivers with placement of vehicles on the day 
of the event 

 Assist judges with rating vehicles, compiling results for announcements 

 Lead best pipes competition 

 Assist with the direction of traffic after the car show to minimize congestion 
and conflicts with pedestrians 

 Identify and solicit sponsor trophy donations 

 Conduct raffles for benefit of local non-profit 
o 50/50 
o Car related prizes 

 Assist with the solicitation of donations for goody bags 

 Receives reports on entries the day in advance of the show 

 Oversee registration on day of event 

 Provide summary report on activities including documentation of contacts and 
suggestions for next year 

 

 

  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 28 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

CITY LIASON 
 

City Representative: __________________________ 

 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 
day of event. 

Assist event committee with organization of the celebration. 
Tasks include: 

 Making City resources available for celebration 

 Communicate Event Planning Committee activities with City staff  

 Acquiring and providing City equipment for use at event 

 Installing infrastructure improvements as needed 
o Sink at Abbey Creek 
o City tents and canopies 

 Ensure sanitation equipment is available 
o Order dumpsters 
o Order portable toilets and hand washing stations including at least one 

ADA accessible units 
o Order grey water container 

 Arrange for fireworks if approved by City Council 

 Install no parking and street closure signs the day prior to event 

 Assist with deployment of equipment for set up and removal on day of event 
o Signs  
o Barricades  
o Canopies 
o Tables and chairs 
o Banners 
o Bike racks  
  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 29 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR 

 

Name: _______________________________ 

 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 
day of event.  Attendance at the event is encouraged but not required. 

Obtain sponsorships and donations to ensure the 4th of July Celebration remains a 
free event for the public. 

Responsibilities include: 

 Solicit cash and in-kind contributions from local and national businesses 

o City is tax exempt organization and donations may be tax deductible 

 Set goal for sponsorships and donations 

o Meet frequently with City Finance Manager and Event Organizer 
regarding progress 

o Coordinate efforts with North Plains Events Association, Senior 
Center, and Chamber of Commerce if possible to ensure sponsors 
and donors are not fatigued by frequent requests 

 Recruit volunteers to assist with development 

 Develop written plan to encourage donations 

 Provide recognition to event supporters 

o Sponsor boards at event 

o Newsletter articles 

o Handouts with schedules 

 Create and publish materials to encourage sponsorship and donations 

o City resources may be used to develop and reproduce materials 

o City has ability to create full-color documents, with bifolds, trifolds, and 
booklet printing 

 Provide summary report on development activities including documentation of 
contacts and suggestions for next year 

 Assist with planning and promotion of Dinner Fundraiser 

 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 30 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

 

Name: ___________________________ 

 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 
day of event. Coordinator will have active role on the day of the event. 

Assist with the preparation of the grounds of the event working closely with other 
coordinators and City staff. 

 Inventory and identify equipment needs for event booths including: 
o Canopies 
o Tables 
o Chairs 
o Signs 
o Sandbags/weights 
o Barricades  
o Signs 
o Directional signs 
o No alcohol signs 

 Identify volunteer needs associated with the setup, operation and tear down of the 
event 

 Mark locations of event booths and activities 

 Contact local waste hauler and County to ensure appropriate large venue waste 
management 

 Assign crews to deploy and remove equipment on day of event 

 Assist Event Coordinator and City to coordinate of support services like: 
o Portable toilets (ADA and standard) 
o Handwashing stations 
o Equipment purchases/loans 
o Placement of benches 
o Placement of picnic benches 
o Misting tent set up 
o Garbage containers 
o Recycling containers 

 Provide summary report on parade including documentation of equipment issues 
and suggestions for next year 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 31 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

PARADE COORDINATOR 

 

Name:  ____________________________ 

 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 
day of event.  Coordinator must be present at event about 1 hour before parade until the 
parade terminates. 

Tasks Include: 

 Plans, organizes and conducts parade on Main Street during day of the 
event. 

 Coordinates route and street closures with City Police and Public Works 
departments 

 Ensures that liability waivers are completed by participants/groups 

 Accepts applications for the parade 

 Receives reports on entries the day in advance of the parade 

 Solicits parade participation by bands, businesses and individuals 

 Selects theme for parade 

 Arranges for judging of parade entrants and awards 

 Provide summary report on parade including documentation of participants and 
suggestions for next year 

 

  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 32 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

VENDOR COORDINATOR 
 
Name:  _________________________________ 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 
day of event.  Most of the work in concentrated in two weeks prior to the event.  Vendor 
coordinator will need to work the morning of the event to ensure all vendors are in place.   

Arranges for the assembly of vendors at the celebration.  On-line registration has 
been used in previous years (Planetreg.com) 
 
Tasks include: 
 

 Set vendor recruitment goals: Craft vendors, Food vendors, Corporate 
vendors 

 Recruit vendors through a variety of media 
o Email (lists are available through City) 
o Craigslist 
o Pinterest 
o Craft websites 
o Other event information 
o Non profit channels 
 

 Ensure vendor applications are reviewed to ensure a minimum of 
duplication, and that vendors are appropriate for the event 

 Encourage the participation of community groups and nonprofit 
organizations 

 Select food vendors that ensure a variety of cuisines and products are 
available 

 Document availability of power supplies 

 Work with committee to identify space needs of vendors 

 Ensure water and grey water disposal is set up and accessible for food 
vendors 

 Prepare information and applications to be used with vendors 

 Ensure payment of vendor fees occurs prior to event 

 Identify volunteer needs to assist with vendor registration and management 

 Notify vendors of selection 

 Assign vendors to spaces in weeks prior to event  

 On day of event resolve problems if areas are overcrowded or conflicts arise 

 Provide summary report on vendor activities including documentation of contacts 
and suggestions for next year 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 33 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR 

 

Name:  ______________________________________ 

 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 
day of event. 

The volunteer coordinator ensures availability of people to assist with the activities and 
events. 

 Recruits volunteers to work on day of event. 

 Solicits participation by community groups, churches, and businesses.  (Boy Scouts, 
North Plains Events Association and Intel provided volunteers in 2013.) 

 Contacts individuals interested in volunteering 

 Assists other coordinators with fulfilling volunteer needs 

 Coordinates volunteer appreciation activities 

 Review emergency plan with other coordinators 

 

 

 

  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 34 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

 

 

 

VOLUNTEER ROLES 
  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 35 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

ALCOHOL CHECK POINT VOLUNTEER 

REPORTS TO VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR 

 
Assists with the control of alcoholic beverages within the event grounds.  
Volunteers wear vests for identification and are equipped with radios.   
 
Shift is between 10 a.m. and ___ p.m. usually in 2-3 hour increments 
 
Tasks include: 
 

 Prevent alcohol filled containers from leaving or entering the alcohol 
boundaries 

 Monitoring to ensure persons wearing wristbands are the only persons 
drinking alcohol 

 Contact information booth or police if persons do not respond to requests to 
stop or leave the site 

 Advise information booth or police if a person appears excessively 
intoxicated or in need of assistance 

 

  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 36 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

CAR SHOW VOLUNTEER 

REPORTS TO CAR SHOW COORDINATOR 

 
Assists with the placement of vehicles in car show.  Volunteers will be given vest to 
assist with their identification. 
 
Shift is between 7 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. 
 
Tasks include: 
 

 Direct traffic within car show area 

 Ensure adequate space exists between cars.  (Generally spaces are 15 
wide with approximately 6 feet between vehicles.  A spacing bar is used to 
assist with measurements.) 

 Assisting participants who require special access for walking or parking 
vehicles 

 Direct participants to registration to ensure proper documentation of vehicle 
occurs 

 
Car show volunteers receive a complimentary registration in the show. 

 
 
 
  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 37 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

CASH MANAGER 
 
Assigned to:   

 
This job has very high responsibility counting cash and arranging deposits.  This 
work is assigned to City employees. 
 

 Money collected at registration booths, information booth and various other 
stations will be brought to City Hall throughout the day. 

 Assign person to pay performers on day of event 
o Performers will be instructed to meet with coordinator after their 

performance. 

 Funds must be counted by two or more persons, and then the money 
deposited in the safe at City Hall.   

o A paper documenting the nature of the deposit should be included 
with the funds, which should be placed in individual bags for 
safekeeping until counted by Finance Manager on following business 
day. 

 The schedule for collecting funds is as follows: 
o Car registration: 10:30 a.m. 
o Vendor registration: 10:00 a.m. 
o Information booth: 12:00 noon, 6:00 p.m. 

 Only the following persons are designated to manage cash on the day of 
the event: 
 1) 
 2) 
 3)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 38 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

CHILDREN’S AREA VOLUNTEER 
 

REPORTS TO ACTIVITES COORDINATOR 

 
Shifts are from 10 a.m. until close of event. 
 
Games, songs, dances, crafts.  Guaranteed fun!  Be prepared to be a kid again! 

 Check-in at information booth 

 Assist coordinators with children's activities: 

 Some set-up 

 Assisting kids with activities like: 
o face painting 
o coloring 
o bubble making 
o games 

 If assisting with crafts, you will receive a brief training 

 Bounce house monitors must ensure safety of children by following 
guidelines printed on front of bouncers 

 Please train your replacement 

 At the end of the day, help clean-up area, pack boxes. If not too heavy, please 
bring to City Hall. 

 
 
 

This is NOT childcare - parents will attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 39 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

GROUNDS CREW 
 
REPORTS TO LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

 
Shifts are from 11:00 a.m. until close of event. 
 
Active job but low pressure.  Assist with keeping event area tidy.   
 
Gloves will be provided, together with maintenance equipment and supplies.  A 
golf cart will be available to transport trash.   
 

 Check-in at information booth 

 Pick up trash, remove full trash bags from cans and replace liners 

 Bring full bags to dumpster, located at _____________. Place trash directly 
into bin.   

 Place tied bag of recyclables next to trash bin. 

 Portable toilets should be fine.  Very basic restocking of toilet paper may be 
needed towards ladder half of day. 

 All supplies will be at __________________. 

 During your shift, continually rotate around the site, inspect all trash cans, 
remove and replace full liners and bring to dumpster. 

 Please train your replacement. 

 At the end of the day, please pack-up items and leave stacked at City Hall. 
 
In 2013, the Boy Scout Troop 873 performed the ground crew support. 

 
 
  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 40 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

INFORMATION BOOTH VOLUNTEER 

 

REPORTS TO EVENT COORDINATOR 

 
Shifts are from 9:30 a.m. until close of event.  
 
Sitting in the shade in the center of the event, answering questions about the event 
and every subject imaginable 
 

 Information booth will be supplied with event information and plenty of maps 
and schedules. 

 Check-in volunteers 
o Provide water, radios, vests etc… 
o Direct to appropriate location 

 Assist with signups for various activities 

 Assist with sales of event items 

 Direct artists to the appropriate stage or areas 

 Booth will have a lists of: 
o Event artists and their contact information if needed 
o City staff available 
o Emergency information 

 Provide basic first aid supplies, band aids, ointments etc… 
o Only render assistance for which are qualified/certified 
o Emergence response personnel will be available throughout the day 

if assistance is needed 
o A portable defibrillator is available for emergency situations 

 Contact emergency responders if needed 

 Train replacement staff/volunteers 

 At the end of the day, pack-up items and leave at City Hall. 
 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 41 of 154



4TH OF JULY CELEBRATION VOLUNTEER JOB DESCRIPTIONS |  

PARKING VOLUNTEER 
 
REPORTS TO LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

 
Shifts are from the start of event at 10 a.m. until __ p.m. 
 
Parking is organized to minimize disruption in residential areas. 
 

 Guide people to park vehicles in orderly rows.  
 

 Collect fee for preferred parking 
 

 Drive shuttles to and from parking areas 
 
Location of preferred parking:  311th at Commercial 
 
Other parking: 
 St. Edward 
 Commercial between Main and 317th 
 Street parking 
 
Vendor Parking:  Hillcrest from Main west to terminus 
 
 
 
In 2013, parking was managed by North Plains Events Association volunteers 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 42 of 154



REGISTRATION VOLUNTEERS 

REPORTS TO CAR SHOW OR VENDOR COORDINATOR  

 
Shifts are from 7:00 a.m. until noon 
 
This job receives payments for vendor and car registrations, which are mostly cash 
payments. This work is assigned to City employees. 
 

 Assist vendors and car show participants with finding staging area 

 Monitor safety of vehicles entering the event grounds 

 Transfer funds to City staff for counting and safekeeping 

 Check-in vendors or cars ensuring they have paid their fees.   
o Accept payment if needed 

 Direct vendor  to location which will be identified on a map 
o Walk vendor to location if needed 

 Direct cars to car show volunteers for placement 

 Resolve problems if areas are overcrowded or conflicts arise 

 Ensure vendor movements do not block car show movements 
 

Vendors are responsible for carrying their own merchandise and providing their own 
equipment such as canopies, tables and chairs.   

  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 43 of 154



SET-UP CREW  
 

REPORTS TO LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

 
Shift is from 7:00 a.m. until 9 a.m. 
 
Active physical job setting up the event areas. 
 
 Check-in at the information booth. 

 You will be instructed by the Logistics Coordinator as to what is necessary. 

 Tasks may include: 
o Setting up pop up tents 
o Moving tables and chairs 
o Moving barricades 
o Placement of sand bags/weights on pop up tents 
o Assisting with moving boxes 
o Placing signs in event grounds 
o Driving to place signs outside of event area 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 44 of 154



TEAR-DOWN CREWS 
 
REPORTS TO LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

 
Shifts begins at end of event until complete (About 2 hours) 
 
Tearing down all event equipment and materials at end of the day and delivering them 
to area inside Public Works area at City Hall.  Crews will work in teams of two or more. 
 
 Check-In at information booth at __ pm to receive instructions 

 Collect equipment including but are not limited to:  
o Signs 
o Popup tents 
o Tables 
o Chairs 
o Boxes and bins from various event areas 
o Barricades 

 Load equipment into volunteer truck(s) and deliver to Public Works yard 

 Trash goes directly into dumpster. Breakdown trash boxes to extent possible.  

 Recycle cans and bottles place tied bag of recyclables – cans and bottles - next to 
trash bin. 

 Clean all debris from site 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 45 of 154



Period Highlight:12 Plan Actual % Complete Actual (beyond plan) % Complete (beyond plan)

PLAN PLAN ACTUAL ACTUAL PERCENT
ACTIVITY START DURATIO START DURATIONCOMPLETE PERIODS

October November December January February March April May June July
Week 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40

Celebration Coordinator
 ‐ Coordinator selection 1 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ General sponsor solicitation 5 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Budget development 5 5 0 0 0%
 ‐ Promotion plan 5 11 0 0 0%
 ‐ Logo development 7 8 0 0 0%
 ‐ Sponsor plan 12 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Promotion activities 14 38 0 0 0%
 ‐ Website updates 14 36 0 0 0%
 ‐ Music/DJ act selection 18 12 0 0 0%
 ‐ Dash plaque purchase 34 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Equipment purchases 34 6 0 0 0%
 ‐ Council update 35 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Award purchases 36 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Banner on Glencoe 36 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ T‐shirt purchase 38 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Goody bag assembly 39 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Checklist completion 39 1 0 0 0%
Fireworks
 ‐ Council consider funding 1 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Reservation of show 5 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Deposit 22 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Balance paid 40 0 0 0 0%
Committee 
 ‐ Formation 13 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Meeting ‐ activity 
identification, chair  20 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Meeting ‐ festival layout 
and schedule, promotion 24 1 0 0 0%

 ‐ Meeting ‐ status update 28 1 0 0 0%
purchasing, activity chairs 
appointed 32 1 0 0

0%
g

needs, status, city staff 
coordination 36 1 0 0

0%

update 39 1 0 0 0%
Sponsor/Donation solicitation

4th of July Celebration

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 46 of 154



 ‐ General mail solicitation (Co 5 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Development chair appoint 16 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Sponsor active solicitation 16 20 0 0 0%
 ‐ Donation active solicitation 16 20 0 0 0%
Alcohol service
 ‐ Determine servers 5 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Determine boundaries 15 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Submit OLCC Alcohol Contr 17 2 0 0 0%
 ‐ Obtain temporary service p 28 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Determine volunteer needs 28 10 0 0 0%
Car Show Promotion 6 32 0 0 0%
 ‐ Car show website listing 6 2 0 0 0%
 ‐ Flier creation 11 3 0 0 0%
 ‐ Website set up 14 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Car show visits 14 36 0 0 0%
Car Show
 ‐ Car show chair appointed 16 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Goody bag solicitations 16 20 0 0 0%
 ‐ Car show volunteers recruit 16 20 0 0 0%
Parade
 ‐  Chair appointment 15 1 0 0 0%
 ‐  Route/staging  identificatio 16 8 0 0 0%
 ‐  Equipment identification 24 30 0 0 0%
 ‐  Volunteer recruitment 30 10 0 0 0%
Activities' Area
 ‐  Chair appointment 18 1 0 0 0%
 ‐  Activity identification 18 8 0 0 0%
 ‐  Equipment identification 24 30 0 0 0%
 ‐  Volunteer recruitment 30 10 0 0 0%
Vendors
 ‐  Chair appointment 15 1 0 0 0%
 ‐  Application development 16 2 0 0 0%
 ‐ Applicantion period 18 30 0 0 0%
 ‐ Vendor selection and notifi 18 30 0 0 0%
 ‐ Vendor location assignmen 39 2 0 0 0%
 ‐ Vendor registration volunte 38 2 0 0 0%
Pie eating contest
 ‐ Coordinator appointed 32 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Pie needs determined 38 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Pies acquired from senior c 40 1 0 0 0%
Cake walk
 ‐ Coordinator appointed 32 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Cake needs determined 38 1 0 0 0%

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 47 of 154



 ‐ Cakes acquired from senior 40 1 0 0 0%
Golf Cart Races
 ‐ Coordinator appointed 32 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Cars reserved 38 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Cars picked up from J & S 40 1 0 0 0%
Horse shoes
 ‐ Coordinator appointed 32 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Property permission obtain 33 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Equipment needs determin 38 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Pit installation 39 1 0 0 0%
Kids Parade
 ‐ Coordinator appointed 32 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Equipment needs determin 38 1 0 0 0%
Volunteer coordinator
 ‐ Coordinator appointed 18 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Volunteer schedule develop 24 2 0 0 0%
 ‐ Volunteer recruitment 30 8 0 0 0%
Logistics 
 ‐ Coordinator appointed 18 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Equipment identification/in 26 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Sign inventory/purchasing 26 4 0 0 0%
 ‐ Volunteer schedule develop 27 2 0 0 0%
 ‐ City staff coordination mee 24 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ City staff coordination mee 30 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ City staff coordination mee 39 1 0 0 0%
 ‐ Festival layout marking 40 1 0 0 0%

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 48 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8G    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Acceptance of employee handbook 

Request:  Council accept a copy of the latest draft of the employee handbook.  
 
Background:  The City maintains an employee handbook to assist new hires and 
employees with understanding the employment process, policies, wages and benefits.  
This document contains only summary information.  More detailed information is 
available in the source documents such as the explanations of benefits and budget.  
The draft reflects the City’s current practices with regard to payroll administration, which 
have changed in the past year.  
 
The handbook is posted on the City’s website and readily accessible to employees and 
the public. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Acceptance of the employee handbook has no fiscal impact.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  No motion. This item is for information only. 
 
Attachment: Employee Handbook 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 49 of 154



 
 

 

CITY OF 
NORTH PLAINS 

www.NorthPlains.org 

 
 

Employee Handbook 
Revised 10/2/13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This document is a public record, and may be distributed to any member of the public. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 50 of 154

mreh
Typewritten Text
Attachment Item No: 8G

mreh
Typewritten Text



Contents  
 

Introduction  6 
 

History  7 
 

About this Handbook 8 
 

Employment Relationship  10 
 

Terms of Employment  10 
Hiring of Relatives (Nepotism) 10 
Hiring of Minors  11 
New Employee Orientation  11 
Introductory Period 11 
Promotions and Transfer Training Period 12 
Employment Classifications 12 
Classification Plan 13 
 

Ethics 15 
Confidentiality 15 
Misrepresentation 16 
Outside Employment 16 
Off Duty Conduct 17 
Criminal Acts 17 
Prohibited Political Activity 18 
Records Retention 18 
 

Non-Discrimination and Retaliation 18 
Equal Employment Opportunities 18 
Americans with Disabilities Act 19 
Harassment 20 
Genetic Information Non-discrimination Act (GINA) 21 
Employment Eligibility Verification 21 
Veterans’ Preference in Hiring 21 
Whistleblower 21 
Meeting Participation 22 
Religious Accommodation 22 
Police Officer Bill of Rights 22 
Domestic Violence 22 
Reports and Retaliation 22 
 

Privacy and Confidentiality 24 
Entity 24 
Public Records and Personnel Files 24 
Background Screening 25 
Medical Records 25 
Personnel Records 25 
Change in Personal Data 25 
Social Security Numbers 26 
Communications 26 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 51 of 154



Rules and Expectations 27 
Inclement Weather/Emergency Closing 28 
 

Communications and Software Systems 29 
Communication Courtesies 30 
Copyrights 30 
Electronic Mail System 30 
Software Installation 31 
Telephone Usage (Landline) 31 
Telephone Usage (Cellular) 31 
Voice Mail System 32 
Archiving Electronic Communications 32 
Communications and Use of Social Media 33 
Terms of Service/Use 33 
Postings 33 
Inappropriate Post Topics 34 
Timing/Frequency 35 
Monitoring and Responding to Public Posts/Comments 35 
IT Information Security Policy 35 
General Information Security 35 
Responsibilities 36 
Access Control Mechanisms and Individual Accountability 36 
Virus Prevention 36 
Communications and the Internet 36 
Remote and External Access Controls 37 
Policy Exceptions 37 
Contact Information 37 
Bulletin Boards 37 
Solicitation and Distribution of Literature 37 
 

Performance Management and Appraisal 39 
 

Corrective Action 41 
 

Pay Administration 42 
Merit Salary Increases 42 
Paydays 42 
Payroll Deductions 42 
Salary Advances 43 
Delivery of Paychecks 43 
Method of Payment 43 
Employee Withholding Allowance Certificates Form W-4 43 
Timekeeping 43 
Final Paycheck 44 
 

Hours of Work and Work Schedules 45 
Office Hours 45 
Meal and Rest Periods 45 
Overtime 46 
Compensatory Time Off 46 
Social and Recreational Activities 46 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 52 of 154



Telecommuting 47 
General 47 
Worksite-specific 48 
Supplies, Equipment, and Software Usage 49 
Security 50 
 

Employee-Incurred Expenses and Reimbursement 50 
Driving While On Business 50 
Mileage Reimbursement 51 
Educational Workshop Travel & Meal Reimbursement Policy 51 
Registration/Accommodation 51 
Meals 52 
Attendance 53 
Use of City Vehicles and Equipment 53 
 

Employee Benefits 54 
Benefit Plan Documents 54 
 

Health/Dental/Vision Insurance Benefit 54 
Eligibility 54 
Premium Contribution 55 
Pre-Tax Account 55 
Workers’ Compensation 55 
Accident and Injury Reporting 56 
Early Return-to-Work Program 56 
Benefits Continuation (COBRA) 56 
Long-Term Disability 57 
Life Insurance 57 
Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance 57 
Long Term Care 57 
Unemployment Insurance 58 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 58 
PERS (Public Employees’ Retirement System) Benefit 58 
Deferred Compensation 59 
 

Vacation Leave Benefit 59 
 

Holiday Leave 60 
Defined Holidays for City of North Plains (Offices Closed) 60 
Floating Holidays 60 
Police Office Holiday Leave 61 
 

Sick Leave Benefit 61 
Workers Compensation Time Loss Injury and Sick Leave 62 
 

Catastrophic Sick Leave Donation and Use 63 
Leave Without Pay 64 
Bereavement Leave 64 
Military Leave 64 
Jury or Witness Duty 64 
Domestic Violence Leave 65 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 53 of 154



Leave Reporting 65 
 

Federal Family and Medical Leave (FMLA)/Oregon Family Leave (OFLA) 66 
Military Leave 66 
Federal Military Family Act 66 
Oregon Military Family Act 67 
OFLA Workers’ Compensation 67 
Designation of Leave 67 
Length of Leave 68 
Request Procedure 68 
Pay While on Leave 68 
Status of Benefits 68 
Reinstatement 69 
Complaints 69 
 

Employee Health and Safety 70 
Drug-free Workplace 70 
Smoking in the Workplace 71 
Workplace Violence 71 
Employee Right to Know/Written Hazard Communication Program 72 
Container Labeling 72 
Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) 72 
 

Separation from Employment 73 
Resignation 73 
Job Elimination and/or Reduction in Work Hours or Staff 73 
Termination 74 
Exit Interview 74 
 

Return of Organization Property 74 
 

North Plains City Charter 76 
 

Acknowledgement of Receipt of the Employee Handbook 84 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 54 of 154



Introduction 
 
Welcome to the City of North Plains.  
 
You are joining an organization that values both our employees and our residents.  
 
As you begin your service to our community please read this document. It highlights policies 
and procedures used in the City of North Plains. If you have any questions or concerns about a 
policy please contact your supervisor, Department Head or City Manager. We want you to 
understand all the policies contained in this document and will be happy to provide 
clarifications as needed.  
 
Please be advised this document is subject to revision as the City’s policies evolve. You will be 
notified of changes as they occur. An electronic copy of this manual is available on the City’s 
website. 
 
Again, welcome aboard, 
 
Martha DeBry 
City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 55 of 154



History 

 

The City of North Plains, Oregon was incorporated in 1963. It operates with a Home Rule 
Charter under the Oregon Constitution. The adopted 2007 Charter defines the powers and 
offices of the city. A copy of the charter is included in this handbook for your reference. 
 

North Plains (2011) population is estimated at 1,954 persons. 
Additional up-to-date statistical information about North 
Plains can be found at http://www.city-data.com/city/North-
Plains-Oregon.html 
 
The City of North Plains was conceived in 1910 when Newell 
Gossett & Walsh Engineers drew the first map the city for 
the Ruth Trust Company (see image). It would be another 53 
years before the City formally incorporated. North Plains 
City Council approves the annual budget, sets policies and 
determines fees charged by the City. They appoint a City 

Manager who directs the day-to-day staff activities. The City Council also sits as the Board of 
the Urban Renewal Agency which can fund improvements to the City’s infrastructure.  
 
The City has an approved Urban Growth Boundary which helps determines the City’s future 
size and shape (see image). 
 
The City includes 
a mix of 
residential, 
commercial and 
industrial 
properties. 
Community 
zoning  is 
determined by 
the Planning 
Commission and 
the City Council. 
The City also has 
master plans for 
its infrastructure 
including the park 
system, water, 
and streets.  

Ruth Trust Company map of 
North Plains from 1910. 

2013 City of North Plains boundaries. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 56 of 154

http://www.city-data.com/city/North-Plains-Oregon.html
http://www.city-data.com/city/North-Plains-Oregon.html


About this Handbook 
 
This Employee Handbook is a guide to our employment provisions and expectations. It outlines 
many of the programs and benefits that affect you as an employee of the City of North Plains. 
Nothing in this Handbook is meant to limit the discretion of the City of North Plains in 
managing and supervising employees, and we reserve the sole discretion and right to amend, 
delete, or otherwise revise the Employee Handbook at any time.  
 
The City of North Plains may add to the policies in this handbook or revoke or modify them 
from time to time. The City will try to keep the manual current, but there may be times when 
policy approved by the City Council or City Manager will change before this handbook can be 
revised. Significant changes to the handbook will be communicated to employees as soon as 
possible.  All previously issued handbooks as well as policies, memos, and verbal or written 
agreements are superseded as of that date of this Handbook. While this Handbook is 
distributed to all employees of North Plains, certain employment policies and practices may be 
different or will not apply to those working in exempt positions per the Fair Labor Standards 
Act (FLSA), part-time positions, on-call, or temporary positions. 
 
By its nature, this Handbook contains only general information and guidelines. It is not 
intended to be comprehensive or to address all the possible applications or exceptions to the 
general policies and procedures of the City of North Plains. The information provided in this 
Handbook is based on the belief that common sense, good judgment, respect and 
consideration for the rights of others are paramount to our ability to serve our members and 
ourselves. We have tried to anticipate many of your questions, but in no way do we believe that 
this document will provide every answer. For that reason, if you have any questions concerning 
eligibility for a particular benefit, or the applicability of a policy or practice to you, you should 
address your specific questions to your manager. For the purposes of this Handbook, 
“manager” means either a manager or supervisor to whom you report. 
 
The City recognizes that employees differ in their skills, goals, perceptions, and values. 
Conditions and conflicts may arise because of that diversity; and those conditions and conflicts 
may not be sufficiently addressed within this Handbook. When that occurs, the City of North 
Plains management team will endeavor to make decisions that are fair and equitable; while at 
all times ensuring that the best interests of the City of North Plains are served. 
 
Neither this Handbook nor any other organization document confers any contractual right, 
either express or implied, to remain in City of North Plains’ employ. Neither does it guarantee 
any fixed terms and conditions of your employment. Your employment is not for any specific 
time and may be terminated by City of North Plains, or you may resign with or without 
reason or notice at any time. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 57 of 154



Some subjects described in this Handbook (such as benefit plan information) are covered in 
detail in evidence of coverage documents. You should refer to these documents for specific 
information, since this Handbook only briefly summarizes those benefits. Please note that the 
terms of the written insurance policies or coverage documents are controlling. 
 
In addition to the policies outlined in this Handbook, the City of North Plains has administrative 
policies and procedures that are posted on the City’s website: www.northplains.org. You 
should familiarize yourself with those policies. 
 
You are encouraged to offer suggestions for improvement to this Handbook, procedures, 
employment practices or working conditions. Please read through this Handbook carefully.  
You may want to share it with your family members so that they will also understand your work 
environment. Should you have additional questions, or need further detail, please talk with 
your manager who can advise you or refer you to the appropriate resource. 
 
If you have any concerns regarding your employment with the City of North Plains, please 
discuss this with your manager. We want your experience with us to be challenging, rewarding, 
and enjoyable. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 58 of 154



Employment Relationship 
 
As an employee of the City of North Plains, you are engaged in an “at will” employment 
relationship. This means that either you or the City of North Plains may terminate the 
employment relationship at any time with or without reason or notice. Our at-will provision 
extends to all employees unless otherwise exempted by a collective bargaining agreement. The 
Grievance Solving Procedure and Discipline guidelines are subordinate to the employment at-
will policy. 
 
No one other than the City Manager has the authority to enter into any employment 
agreement contrary to the provisions outlined in this Handbook. The Handbook cannot be 
altered except in writing and when signed by the City Manager. The City of North Plains is also 
not bound by any oral promises concerning your length or conditions of employment. 
 
 
Terms of Employment 
 
It is the goal of the City of North Plains to fill employment vacancies with the most qualified 
applicants, whether recruiting internally or externally. Job applicants will be considered on an 
equal basis for all positions without regard to age, disability, race, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, veteran status, military status, association with members of a 
protected class, marital status, injured worker status, non-supervisory family relationships, or 
any other protected class or work relationship. 
 
Our policy is to always try to select the most qualified person for each available job; we 
recognize current employees’ experience and familiarity with the City of North Plains as an 
important qualification, and we encourage current employees to apply for openings in which 
they are interested. Usually, you must have completed your initial introductory period before 
transferring to a new position, and to be eligible for a transfer you may not be under any 
disciplinary action.  
 
You may from time to time be temporarily transferred or assigned to perform work outside of 
your regular job classification, schedule, shift or department. Depending upon the 
circumstances, when transferred, you may be subject to a corresponding wage adjustment.  
 
 
Hiring of Relatives (Nepotism) 
 
Relatives of current employees or individuals involved in a romantic relationship with a current 
employee are eligible for hire at the City of North Plains subject to the same selection process 
and job requirements and will be evaluated in the same manner as any other applicant. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 59 of 154



However, persons will not be hired or promoted into positions in which one family member (as 
defined by Oregon law), or person involved in the romantic relationship, would fall under the 
direct line of supervision of the other family member or person involved in the romantic 
relationship. 
 
 
Hiring of Minors 
 
Generally the City of North Plains does not hire persons under 18 years of age to perform 
regular work. If a minor is hired on a temporary basis in the future the City shall observe all 
State and Federal limitations on the number of hours a minor may work and on the types of 
work permissible. In addition, prior to hiring minors the City must have applied for and 
obtained an annual employment certificate from the Child Labor Unit of the Bureau of Labor 
and Industries (BOLI), (971) 673-0836. 
 
 
New Employee Orientation 
 
In order to help you fit into the City of North Plains’ operations, and to ensure new employees 
quickly have a productive and satisfying employment relationship, managers are responsible 
for ensuring that all new employees are scheduled for a general orientation organized by the 
City Manager within the first month of employment. Your manager may provide a detailed job-
specific orientation. 
 
 

Introductory Period 
 
As a new employee, you are hired into an introductory training period which generally lasts a 
minimum of one calendar year (12 months). The introductory period is an extension of the 
employee selection process. During this period, you are considered to be in training and under 
observation and evaluation by your manager. Evaluation of your adjustment to work tasks, 
conduct and other work rules, attendance and job responsibilities will be conducted during the 
introductory period. This period gives you an opportunity to demonstrate satisfactory 
performance for the position, and also provides an opportunity to determine if your 
knowledge/skills/abilities (KSAs) and the requirements of the position match.  It is also a chance 
to decide if we meet your expectations as an employer. 
 
At the end of the introductory period, a decision about your employment status will be made. If 
you successfully complete the introductory period, you may be moved to regular status. If your 
KSAs border on satisfactory but fall short of expectations, the introductory period may be 
extended if there is reason to believe that your KSAs will improve within a reasonable amount 
of time. If expectations are not met or demonstrated, and/or KSAs are not satisfactory, it is 
unlikely employment will be continued. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 60 of 154

http://www.oregon.gov/BOLI/WHD/CLU/docs/wh-216-1.pdf


Employment may be terminated at any time and for any reason during this period at the 
discretion of the City Manager or yourself, should either party regard it as necessary or 
appropriate. Completion of the introductory period does not alter the “at will” employment 
relationship.  
 
 
Promotions and Transfer Training Period 
 
The City of North Plains encourages upward mobility and will consider employees for 
promotions as opportunities develop or vacancies occur. Employees are encouraged to 
regularly and frequently discuss your career interests with your manager.  
 
If you are promoted or transferred to a new position, you must also complete a reasonable 
period of training to determine the suitability of the placement and your ability to satisfactorily 
perform the required work. If it is determined the job change is unsatisfactory during this 
period, you may be returned to your original job; you may be assigned to another vacant 
position, or you may be terminated. If you are placed in a job other than your original job, the 
pay and benefits may also be adjusted.   
 
 
Employment Classifications 
 
The status of each employee’s position is placed into distinct classifications for benefits and 
other employment conditions and to aid in a better understanding of employment 
relationships within the City of North Plains. For the purpose of the is section “Regularly 
Scheduled” is calculated as the average number of hours per week, when averaging a calendar 
year. 
 
The following status definitions apply: 
 

Introductory Employment: Newly hired or promoted employees within the introductory 
period. 

 
Benefits-eligible: Qualified employees who are hired into regular full-time or regular part-
time positions as defined below. 
 
Regular Full-time: An employee who has successfully completed the introductory 
employment period and is regularly scheduled to work 60 hours or more in a biweekly pay 
period. Benefits-eligible. In FY 2013-2014 regular positions include Account Clerk I/II,  City 
Manager, Police Chief, Police Officer, Public Works Director, and Utility Worker I/II/III,   

 
Regular Part-time: An employee assigned to an allocated position who has completed the 
introductory period and is regularly scheduled to work less than 40 hours per week in a 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 61 of 154



position designated as receiving pro-rated benefits. In FY 2013-2014 only the Library 
Director position is in this designation. 

 
Regular Part-time N0 Benefits: An employee assigned to an allocated position who has 
completed the introductory period and is regularly scheduled to work less than 30 
hours/week. No benefits. In FY 2013-2014 regular positions include Library Clerk, Library 
Clerk/IT and Volunteer Coordinator. 

 
Interns: Interns may or may not receive a stipend or hourly compensation, and are not 
eligible for any benefits. 

 
Part-time: An employee who is scheduled to work less than 30 hours/week, and is not 
assigned to an allocated position. No benefits.  

 
Temporary: An employee who is hired for a specified period of time. Generally, temporary 
employees will not work more than 599 hours during a calendar year. No benefits. 

 
On-Call: An employee who does not have a set schedule and works only when called upon. 
Generally, On-Call employees will not work more than 599 hours during a calendar year. No 
benefits. 

 
Positions are further classified according to federal and state wage and hour laws into the two 
additional categories of exempt and non-exempt as is defined in the paragraphs which follow. 
Management will make the appropriate designation regarding the status for each new position 
or when a position changes substantially. If you are uncertain as to your status, ask your 
manager. 
 

Exempt: An employee who is exempt from the overtime pay requirements under federal 
and state laws. Exempt employees generally include managers, supervisors, and 
professional staff who are paid a salary and whose duties and responsibilities allow them to 
be exempt under federal and state law. In FY 2013-2014 only the following positions are 
designated as exempt: City Manager, Library Director, Police Chief, and Public Works 
Director. 
 
Non-exempt: An employee whose job duties do not meet federal/state definitions for 
“Exempt” status.   

 
 
Classification Plan 
 
All job descriptions, salary ranges and position histories are assembled in a document called the 
“Classification Plan.” The City of North Plains maintains job descriptions for every position 
allocated by the City Council. The essential and ancillary duties of any position can be modified 
by the City Manager based on the needs of the City organization. Job descriptions can be found 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 62 of 154



on the City’s website. The salary schedule can be found in the approved budget or on the City 
website. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 63 of 154



Ethics 
 
At the City of North Plains we believe in treating people with respect and adhering to ethical 
and fair business practices. We expect employees to avoid situations that might cause their 
personal interests to conflict with the interests of the City of North Plains and its residents, or 
situations that may compromise the employees’ reputation or integrity.  

Employees who violate the Ethics Policy or who create an equally detrimental impact on the 
organization may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.  

We at the City of North Plains are public employees, and as such, are also subject to the State 
of Oregon’s ethics laws. In some cases, these laws provide additional limitations on employees, 
such as prohibitions on gifts or strict definitions of conflict of interest. If you are coming to the 
City of North Plains from work in the private sector, you may find that some activities that are 
common business practices in the private sector are prohibited in the public sector. Information 
on these laws is available at the Oregon Government Ethics Commission website, 
http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC/ .  
 
If you have questions about whether an activity meets the City of North Plains’ or Oregon’s 
ethical standards, please talk with your manager. 
 
 

Confidentiality 
 
Employees working at the City of North Plains have access to highly confidential, legally 
protected, and proprietary information. Confidential information includes all information 
acquired by an employee during the course of employment that is of economic value to the 
City of North Plains and not generally available to the public, including legally protected 
information. Payroll information and employee enrollments are typical examples of 
information that the City of North Plains considers to be confidential. Our residents and other 
employees entrust the City of North Plains with confidential information. The unauthorized 
disclosure of such information would have a material adverse impact on the integrity of the City 
of North Plains and would have an adverse impact on our relationships with our residents and 
employees. 
 
No records or information including (without limitation) protected medical data, documents, 
files, records, computer files or similar materials (except in the ordinary course of performing 
duties on behalf of the City of North Plains) may be removed from our premises without 
permission from the City of North Plains management. Additionally, the contents of records or 
information otherwise obtained in regard to City of North Plains business may not be disclosed 
to anyone, except where required for a business purpose. Employees are subject to appropriate 
disciplinary action up to, and including, termination for revealing information of a confidential 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 64 of 154

http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC/


nature. Since many times it is difficult to distinguish between common and confidential 
information, the best rule to follow is not to discuss business information with persons outside 
of the City of North Plains unless employees have received prior approval from their manager. 
 
All confidential information acquired by an employee during the course of employment is to be 
used solely for the benefit of the City of North Plains and, through the City of North Plains, for 
the benefit of our residents. The use of such confidential information for personal advantage or 
disclosure to others is strictly prohibited. Likewise, any materials developed by our employees 
in the performance of their jobs, is the property of the City of North Plains. Employees may not 
take confidential material with them when they leave our employment, remove it from our 
offices for non-work related reasons, or copy or distribute it to persons or companies, other 
than as required in the course of business, without written approval from the City Manager.  
 
 
Misrepresentation 
 
As a City of North Plains employee, you should consider how you represent us in your business 
transactions and interactions. You should be careful not to misrepresent our policies, practices, 
procedures, fees, or misrepresent your status and authority to enter into agreements. You may 
not use City of North Plains’ name, logo likeness, facilities, assets or other resources, or the 
authority of your position with the City of North Plains for personal gain or private interests. 
 
 
Outside Employment 
 
Outside employment that creates a conflict of interest is prohibited. Employees are prohibited 
from receiving any income or material gain from individuals or organizations outside the City of 
North Plains for materials produced or rendered while performing their jobs for the City of 
North Plains. 
 
Employees may hold outside employment if the additional work does not interfere with, or 
adversely affect their performance at the City of North Plains; does not create a conflict of 
interest; does not use the City of North Plains time/equipment/property/premises; does not 
discredit the prestige or influence of one’s position; does not involve actions that may be 
subject to review or control by the City of North Plains; and does not otherwise detract from, or 
discredit the City of North Plains. 
 
An employee proposing to accept outside employment must submit written notification 
requesting permission to his/her manager in advance of accepting any outside employment. If 
the manager believes that the proposed outside employment may represent a conflict with the 
employee’s City of North Plains duties, the manager must provide the employee with written 
notice to that effect. Such notice may set forth the reasons the manager believes the proposed 
activity to be in conflict with the employee’s duties. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 65 of 154



Off Duty Conduct 
 
As a general rule, the City of North Plains regards the off-duty activities of employees to be 
their own personal matter. However, there are certain types of off-duty activities that are of 
concern because of the potential negative impact on the City of North Plains’ reputation within 
the community we serve. For that reason, employees who either engage in, or are associated 
with, criminal acts or other conduct, the nature of which adversely affects the City of North 
Plains or their own ability or credibility to carry out their employment responsibilities, may be 
subject to disciplinary action including termination. 
 
For purposes of this section, off-duty activities also includes participation in online activities, 
including, but not limited to, forms of online publishing and discussion such as blogs, wikis, file-
sharing, user-generated video and audio, virtual worlds, and social networks. 
 
 
Criminal Acts 
 
If an employee is arrested for a criminal act the employee must report the arrest to the City 
Manager with 48 hours. The City of North Plains will review the underlying facts of the matter; 
any action taken will be on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the totality of the 
circumstances. Employees subject to arrest may be placed on paid administrative leave if the 
nature of the criminal charge may have an impact on the employee’s ability to perform his or 
her regular duties, and/or if the City must conduct an investigation to evaluate the 
circumstances of the arrest. 
 
Employees are required to report if they are convicted of or plead no contest to any 
misdemeanor or felony, including a traffic violation or DUI. Upon conviction, the employee 
must report the matter to the City Manager, within 48 hours and must submit documentation 
concerning the conviction.  
 
Conviction of a crime is not an automatic bar to continued employment. The City of North 
Plains will review the underlying facts of the matter; any action taken will be on a case-by-case 
basis, taking into account the totality of the circumstances.  At the City of North Plains, actions 
may range from no action to disciplinary action including termination. 
 
Failing to report a conviction constitutes grounds for termination. Furthermore, 
misrepresentation of the circumstances of the events can serve as grounds for termination. 
 
Employees who are unavailable to report for work due to incarceration as a result of an arrest 
or conviction will be deemed absent without an excuse and may be subject to disciplinary 
action. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 66 of 154



 
Prohibited Political Activity 
 
Oregon law provides that “No public employee may solicit money, influence, or otherwise 
promote or oppose any political committee, or promote or oppose the nomination or election 
of a candidate, the gathering of signatures on an initiative, referendum or recall petition, the 
adoption of a measure or the recall of a public office holder while on the job during working 
hours. However, this section does not restrict the right of a public employee to express 
personal political views.” 
 
 
Records Retention 
 
Please refer to the City of North Plains’ records retention schedule; please ask your manager or 
the City Recorder for your department’s schedule. 
 
 
Non-Discrimination and Retaliation 
 
All employees of the City of North Plains have the responsibility to follow and carry out the 
policies outlined in this section. Management provides and supports a dispute resolution 
procedure for receiving and resolving complaints alleging discriminatory practices in 
employment relations.  Employees are expected to bring any questions, issues, or complaints 
to the attention of their manager. If you believe you have been discriminated against or 
harassed, or if you witness or suspect any violation of our policies, you should report the matter 
immediately to any member of management or to the City Manager or the City Attorney. If the 
complaint is in regard to an alleged violation of these policies by the City Manager, the 
complaint may be directed to the City Attorney. City of North Plains will not retaliate against 
you for filing a complaint or cooperating in an investigation, and will not tolerate or permit 
retaliation by management, employees or co-workers. 
 
 
 Equal Employment Opportunities 
 
The City of North Plains is an equal opportunity employer, and as such, we consider individuals 
for employment according to their abilities and performance. Employment decisions are made 
without regard to age, disability, race, color, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
veteran status, military status, association with members of a protected class, marital status, 
injured worker status, non-supervisory family relationships, or any other protected class or 
work relationship. All employment requirements mandated by State and Federal laws and 
regulations are observed. 
 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 67 of 154



Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is a comprehensive federal civil rights law that 
specifically protects individuals with physical and mental disabilities.  Individuals still need to be 
“qualified” for the job, and not pose a “direct threat.”   
 
Individuals may be protected under the ADA if any of the following conditions exist: 

o    They currently have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits a major 
life activity. 

o    They have a record of  such an impairment, physical or mental, that substantially limits 
a major life activity; or; 

o    They are perceived to have such impairment. 

 
An episodic or in-remission condition may meet the definition of a disability if it would 
substantially limit a major life activity when active. 
 
Temporary, non-chronic impairments of short duration, with little or no residual effects usually 
are not considered disabilities under ADA. Examples of, but not limited to, impairments that 
typically would not meet the ADA definition of a disability:  common cold, seasonal or common 
influenza, joint sprain, minor and non-chronic gastrointestinal disorders or broken bones that 
are expected to heal completely. 
 
The use of ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses  that are intended to fully correct visual acuity 
or eliminate refractive error, typically are not considered disabilities under ADA. 
 
Pregnancy is not considered impairment under the ADA. 
 
Individuals who currently engage in illegal use of drugs are excluded from ADA protection.  
 
The ADA also prohibits discrimination on the basis of an individual's relationship to someone 
(parent, sibling, child, spouse/significant other, etc.) with a disability. 
 
City of North Plains offers equal employment opportunities for qualified individuals who may 
have a physical or mental disability, but are still able to perform the essential functions of the 
job. Essential functions are defined as the fundamental non-marginal duties of the position 
being held or sought by a disabled individual. A job function is essential if the position exists for 
the performance of the function, there are only a limited number of employees available to 
perform it, or the function is so highly specialized that an expert must be specially hired to 
perform it. 
 
Reasonable accommodation may be available to employees and applicants, as long as the 
accommodation doesn't cause undue hardship for the City of North Plains. Individuals 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 68 of 154



protected by the ADA should discuss their need for possible accommodation with their 
manager or City Manager. 
 
 
Harassment 
 

a) Harassment: the City of North Plains prohibits harassment based on disability, race, 
color, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, veterans status, military 
status, retaliation for opposing unlawful employment practices, association with 
members of a protected class, marital status, injured worker status, non-supervisory 
family relationships, or any other protected class, regardless of whether that 
harassment is targeted specifically at the employee. 
 
Behavior such as telling ethnic jokes, making religious slurs, using offensive "slang" 
or other derogatory terms denoting a person’s speech, accent or disability, are 
examples of prohibited conduct and will not be tolerated at the City of North Plains.   

 
b) Sexual Harassment: Sexual harassment can include, but is not limited to, 

unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or non-
verbal communication or physical conduct of a sexual nature where: 

 
1.  Submission to such conduct is made, either explicitly or implicitly, a term or 

condition of an individual’s employment;  
 

2.  Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual influences any 
employment-related decisions affecting the individual; or 

  
3.  The conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with an individual's work 

performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work 
environment.   

 
The conduct prohibited may be verbal, visual or physical in nature. It may be 
directed by a manager to a subordinate, manager-to-manager or co-worker-to-co-
worker. It includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, physical 
touching, or the granting or withholding of benefits (e.g. pay, promotions, time off) 
in response to the sexual conduct. More subtle forms of prohibited behavior, such as 
offensive posters, cartoons, caricatures, comments and jokes, language or 
innuendoes, hugging, or kissing may also constitute sexual harassment when they 
create or contribute to a hostile or offensive work environment.  
 

If an employee believes he or she is being harassed, or has witnessed what appears to be 
harassment in the workplace, he or she should report it as soon as possible to his or her 
supervisor, the department head, the City Manager or City Attorney. Any supervisor or 
manager who becomes aware of complaint of harassment must immediately report it to the 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 69 of 154



City Manager or City Attorney. (It should be noted the City Attorney oversees the 
investigation of any complaint concerning the City Manager, member of Council or other 
person not employed directly by the City.) A report can be made verbally or in writing.   

 
 

Genetic Information Non-discrimination Act (GINA) 
 
The City of North Plains does not discriminate against applicants or employees based upon the 
employee’s or the employee’s familial genetic information; nor does the City of North Plains 
use genetic information in employment decisions. 
 
Once a condition manifests itself, the GINA no longer applies. More detailed information about 
GINA is available on the EEOC poster placed on the employee bulletin board at City Hall. 
 
Genetic information and Wellness Programs: Employees may be asked to sign voluntary 
waivers in which the employee acknowledges that his/her genetic information will only be 
provided to licensed health care professionals or board-certified counselors involved in the 
wellness program. There is no penalty for non-participation. 
 
 
Employment Eligibility Verification (I-9 Form) 
 
In conformity with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), we hire only those 
who are eligible to work in the United States. Verification documentation is required of all new 
hires, and employees are expected to inform the City of North Plains immediately if their 
eligibility changes. 
 
After an individual is employed by the City of North Plains (as allowed by law) he or she may 
choose to use the federal E-Verify program to validate social security numbers, or the City of 
North Plains may use other methods for verifying social security numbers. 
 
Expired documents are not valid documents for I-9 purposes. 
 
 
Veterans’ Preference in Hiring 
 
The City of North Plains may give preference to veterans, when making hiring decisions; the 
City of North Plains does not discriminate against individuals based on current or prior military 
service. 
 
 
Whistleblower 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 70 of 154



City of North Plains does not discriminate against employees who report in good faith alleged 
violations of state or federal laws, rules, or regulations.  
 
 
Meeting Participation 
 
City of North Plains does not take adverse employment action against employees who choose 
not to attend the City of North Plains-sponsored meetings where the City of North Plains’ 
“position” regarding religious or political matters will be presented. 
 
 
Religious Accommodation 
 
City of North Plains may provide reasonable accommodation for religious observances or 
practices of employees, unless providing the accommodation would impose an undue hardship 
on the City of North Plains; this may also include accommodating the wearing of religious 
clothing. 
 
With management approval, an employee may use vacation or other available leave for 
religious activities; if accrued leave is not available, then an employee may request to take 
unpaid leave.  
 
 
Police Officer Bill of Rights 
 
The State of Oregon adopted procedural rights that apply to sworn police officers. The City of 
North Plains will provide protections to police officers in accordance with State and Federal 
laws.  
 
 
Domestic Violence 
 
City of North Plains does not discriminate against employees who are victims of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 
 
 
Reports and Retaliation 
 
If you believe you have been discriminated against or harassed, or if you witness or suspect any 
violation of our policies, you should report the matter immediately to any member of 
management or to the City Manager or City Attorney. If the complaint is in regard to an alleged 
violation of these policies by the City Manager, the complaint may be directed to the City 
Attorney. The City of North Plains will not retaliate against you for filing a complaint or 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 71 of 154



cooperating in an investigation, and will not tolerate or permit retaliation by management, 
employees or co-workers. 
 
The City of North Plains will not tolerate unlawful retaliation against employees for engaging in 
protected activity. Federal Laws such as Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act, and The American with Disabilities Act, all prohibit an 
employer from retaliating against an employee engaged in a protected activity.   
 
A protected activity is defined as: opposing an unlawful practice prohibited by employment 
discrimination laws, or participating in any way in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing of an 
Equal Employment Opportunity charge. 
 
Any act of retaliation by a manager and/or coworker may result in serious adverse disciplinary 
action up to and including termination. Any staff member may file a complaint with the City 
Manager or the City Attorney if he/she feels that they have experienced retaliation in any form. 
Complaints regarding the City Manager may be presented directly to the City Attorney. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 72 of 154



Privacy & Confidentiality 
 
The City of North Plains recognizes our employees' right to privacy.  In achieving this goal, the 
City of North Plains adopts these basic principles: 
 

1. The collection of employee information typically is limited to information the City of 
North Plains needs for business and legal purposes. 

2. Personal information and information in confidential records ordinarily will not be 
disclosed, except as permitted or required by law, or as authorized by the employee.   

3. Verifications of employment dates, job title, and wages may be provided without 
written approval.   

4. Internal access to employee records will be limited to those employees having an 
authorized need-to-know.  

5. You are permitted to review your personnel file, and you may correct inaccurate 
factual information or submit written comments in disagreement with any material 
contained in your personnel records. 

6. All employees have a responsibility not to accidentally disclose information about 
employees through overheard conversations, mislaid documentation, faxes, e-mails 
and hard copies of correspondence sent to a wrong destination. Unauthorized 
communication of confidential information is regarded as a serious matter. 

7. The City of North Plains’ IT contractor maintains reasonable safeguards to ensure the 
security, confidentiality, and integrity of personal identifying information stored in 
the City of North Plains network systems. 

8. All employees are required to follow these principles, as well as any other the City of 
North Plains policy or practice related to confidential information. Violations of this 
may result in corrective action, up to and including termination. 

 

Public Records and Personnel Files 
 
Oregon law provides that “every person has a right to inspect any public record of a public body 
in this state.” “Public body” includes cities and counties and other public entities, such as the 
City of North Plains including its committees and boards. Although there are some exceptions 
(such as personnel files), most records in a public body are available to the public for 
inspections. It is the intent of the City of North Plains to be responsive to requests for public 
records. Employees are to forward all requests for public information to our City Recorder or 
City Manager. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 73 of 154



Background Screening 
 
City of North Plains stores background screening information in access-protected files. This file 
is not considered part of a personnel file, so it is not available for review. 
 
 
Medical Records 
 
City of North Plains stores employee medical records in access-protected folders, separate 
from master personnel files.  
 
Generally, employees “own” their medical information, which means that without the 
employee’s permission, the City of North Plains does not typically inform other employees of 
an individual’s medical condition(s). 
 
 
Personnel Records 
 
The City Manager maintains personnel files for each employee. Access to these files is on a 
need-to-know basis and is restricted to authorized persons only.  
 
Authorized persons typically are any individuals in a direct line of supervision over the 
employee, as well as the City Manager, and the individual to whom the file applies; the 
employee may also give written permission for an otherwise unauthorized individual to view 
his/her file. 
 
Information in the personnel files may be treated as exempt from public disclosure as provided 
in ORS Chapter 192. Information which cannot be treated as confidential under the law 
includes: name, job title, salary, and dates of employment with the City of North Plains. Other 
information in the files may be subject to public disclosure by order of a court or tribunal of 
competent jurisdiction. 
 
 
Change in Personal Data 
 
Since personnel records are used to administer pay and benefits, and other employment 
decisions, employees are responsible for keeping information current regarding changes in 
their details (name, address, phone number, exemptions, dependents, beneficiary, etc.). 
Keeping personnel records current can be important with regard to pay, deductions, benefits 
and other matters. If you have changes in any of the following items, please notify the City 
Manager and Finance Department to assure that the proper updates/paperwork is completed 
as quickly as possible: 
 

o    Name 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 74 of 154



o    Marital status/Domestic Partnership (for purposes of benefit eligibility determination 
only) 

o    Address 
o    Telephone number  
o    Dependents 
o    Person to be notified in case of emergency 
o    Other information having a bearing on your employment 
o    Tax withholding 
 
 

Social Security Numbers 
 
Social security numbers may not be printed on materials that will be mailed, unless an 
employee has requested the mailing and all but the last four digits have been removed. This 
does not apply to records required by state or federal law (examples:  W2s, 1099’s, etc.).   
 
Also, social security numbers may not be printed on a card used to access products or services, 
nor will the City of North Plains publicly post or display employees’ Social Security numbers, 
such as on a website. 
 
If computer files containing this personal information have been subject to a breach, then the 
City of North Plains will notify you as soon as we are reasonably able to do so. 
 
 
Communications 
 
Conversations: Please be careful when discussing confidential information about employees in 
public areas where it might be overheard, or when talking on the telephone. 
 
Written information: Please use care not to leave written information about employees where 
unauthorized persons can view it. This includes leaving confidential documents sitting in printer 
trays or placing such documents in open recycling bins. Please send internal “mail” in sealed 
envelopes, marked “confidential.” 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 75 of 154



Rules and Expectations 
 
The City of North Plains believes policies and procedures are essential for the orderly operation 
of our business and for the protection and fair treatment of all employees. As a result, we have 
clearly identified performance expectations so that everyone can act in accordance with our 

workplace standards. Courtesy and common sense should always prevail. The 

following work rules are not all-inclusive, but serve as guidelines to demonstrate work 
behaviors considered important to the City of North Plains.  
 
1. You are expected to be at work on time, remain until your workday ends, and perform the 

work assigned to or requested of you. If you are unable to be at work on time, you are 
expected to contact your manager prior to the start of your work shift. If that individual 
cannot be reached, you are expected to contact an alternate managerial representative. 

 
2. You are expected to regard your workplace with respect and attention. City of North 

Plains’ records, equipment, and property are to be treated carefully and appropriately. City 
of North Plains’ equipment is not to be utilized for personal use, and anything created with 
the use of such equipment is the sole property of the City of North Plains. You are 
responsible for those items in your care and custody and will be held accountable for their 
maintenance, appropriate use, and/or accuracy. 

 
3. You are expected to act in accordance with all appropriate codes, laws, regulations, and 

policies, regardless of whether they are set by the City of North Plains or outside 
regulatory bodies. 

 
4. You are expected to conduct yourself in a professional and respectful manner, exhibiting a 

high regard for our members, vendors, business associates, and co-workers. No breach of 
professional behavior (abusive language, harassment, personal business during work time, 
etc.) will be condoned. This also applies to alcohol or drug consumption when representing 
the City of North Plains in a business or social capacity. 

 
5. You are expected to maintain the confidentiality of the City of North Plains information or 

member information in your possession (i.e., personnel information, trade secrets, etc.). 
 
6.      Your personal appearance at work should be neat and consistent with professional 

atmosphere, keeping in mind the impression made on members, visitors, and other 
employees, and the need to promote the City of North Plains and employee safety. Good 
individual judgment is the best guideline, but management retains the right to decide 
what appearance at work is appropriate. 

 
7.      Any other action an employee takes that is not in the best interest of the organization. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 76 of 154



 
This information regarding unacceptable practice/behavior may help in providing guidance for 
employee actions. You are urged to use reasonable judgment at all times and to seek advice 
from your manager in any doubtful or unclear situation. By everyone doing his or her best to 
meet both the spirit and intent of these guidelines, employee disciplinary issues should be 

minimal. As a matter of policy, the City of North Plains seeks to resolve conduct 
and performance problems in the most informal and positive manner possible. 

However, when someone does not conduct her/himself within the intent of the work rules, 
action may be taken to correct the situation promptly and completely. Violations of workplace 
rules may result in corrective action, up to and including immediate termination. 
 
We also believe all City of North Plains employees should be given an opportunity to be heard 
in matters involving discipline if termination is the likely outcome. We have adopted a policy of 
allowing an employee to present his/her perspective prior to the imposition of termination.   
 
We encourage all employees to become familiar with the non-discrimination policy and 
complaint procedures outlined in this handbook. 
 
 
Inclement Weather/Emergency Closing 
 
Except for regularly scheduled holidays, the City of North Plains City Hall will be open for 
business on Mondays through Fridays during business hours. The City of North Plains 
recognizes that there may be circumstances beyond its control, such as inclement weather, 
national crisis, or other emergencies, that may make one or more of our office locations 
inaccessible. On such occasions, one or more City of North Plains locations may be closed for 
all or part of a regularly scheduled workday. In such an event, the City Manager (or his/her 
designee) will make a decision and will endeavor to notify all managers for the purpose of 
contacting employees; you may also contact your manager. To access City of North Plains 
closure information, please call 503-647-5555, check the City’s website at www.northplains.org, 
and/or your City email for a notice. 
 
In the event of extreme inclement weather conditions, it is recognized that each staff 
member’s ability to safely reach the office may be different. Staff who cannot report to work in 
such circumstances should contact their manager. To the extent that staff cannot reach the 
office and are able to serve members from home, they should do so. Safety and a responsible 
approach should be your guide. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 77 of 154

http://www.northplains.org/


Communications and 
Software Systems 
 
City of North Plains systems, equipment, hardware, software and other information 
(hereinafter referred to as “systems”) in any form are considered an asset of the City of North 
Plains and thus must be properly used and adequately protected. This includes the 
transmission of information over computer communication networks. 
 
Systems include but are not limited to, computers, software, electronic mail (e-mail), copiers, 
fax machines, telephones, voice mail, interoffice mail, communication tools, various on-line 
services, and protected health information. All of these systems are operated and managed 
based upon this policy. 
 
The City of North Plains-provided systems are intended to be used primarily for business 
purposes. Without your manager’s approval, you are not allowed personal use of the City of 
North Plains’ systems. Any approved personal use must not interfere with normal business 
activities, involve solicitation, be associated with any for-profit outside business activity, or 
potentially embarrass the City of North Plains. 
 

The City of North Plains reserves the right to monitor employee use of 
our systems at any time. Employees should not consider their 

usage of the City of North Plains systems to be private. 
 
Within the bounds of current and future laws, the City of North Plains reserves and intends to 
exercise the right to review, audit, intercept, access, and search any of these systems at will, 
monitor data and messages within them at any time for any reason, and disclose selected 
contents without notice or other restrictions. Messages sent through these systems remain the 
property of the City of North Plains.  
 

All data and messages maintained on the City of North Plains systems 
may be subject to public records law and disclosed to the public, 

except for limited exemptions. 
 
Any improper use or violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
termination. Any violation of this policy should be brought to the attention of the City 
Manager. 
 
 
Communication Courtesies 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 78 of 154



 
You are reminded to be courteous to other users of the system and always conduct yourself in a 
professional manner. Some examples of inappropriate systems use includes, but is not limited 
to: installing non-business software; sending chain letters or other material that can be 
construed as spam; playing games; displaying sites with inappropriate sounds or visuals; 
transmitting obscene, harassing, offensive or unprofessional messages; accessing any site that 
is sexually or racially offensive or discriminatory; and displaying, downloading, or distributing 
sexually explicit material. 
 
Only authorized employees may communicate on the Internet on behalf of the City of North 
Plains. Employees may not express opinions or personal views that could be misconstrued as 
being those of the City of North Plains. Any information posted to the City of North Plains 
internet or intranet sites must first be approved by the respective department manager. 
 
 
Copyrights 
 
Any software or other materials downloaded into the City of North Plains’ computers may be 
used only in ways consistent with the licenses and copyrights of the vendors, authors or owners 
of the material. City of North Plains honors all licenses, copyrights, patents, restrictions and 
terms and conditions associated with commercial proprietary computer software. Systems 
users are not authorized to use, copy, modify, or transfer purchased computer software in 
whole or in part except as expressly provided in the applicable software license, contract or 
purchase agreement. “Pirating” (making unauthorized copies of software or music) is a 
violation of federal copyright law. Any approved material that is posted should obtain all proper 
copyright and trademark notices if applicable. 
 
Applications developed while employed by or under contract with the City of North Plains are 
the property of the City of North Plains, not the developer. 
 
 
Electronic Mail System 
 
E-mail messages are sometimes misdirected or forwarded and may be viewed by persons other 
than the intended recipient. You should write e-mail communications with no less care, 
judgment, and responsibility than you would use for letters or internal memoranda written on 
the City of North Plains letterhead. 
 

E-mails are considered public records, 
and employees should not have any expectation of privacy. 

 
Please be aware that even if a message is erased through e-mail it is still possible to retrieve 
and read that message. Even though the City of North Plains reserves the right to retrieve and 
read any mail messages, those messages are to be treated as confidential by other employees 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 79 of 154



and accessed only by the intended recipient. We expect employees will respect others’ privacy 
and, unless authorized to do so, will not retrieve or read electronic messages not intended for 
them. The use of passwords for security does not guarantee confidentiality. All passwords must 
be disclosed to the IT contractor if you are instructed by a Department Head or City Manager to 
disclose them. 
 
Personal use of e-mail may occur, but is to be kept to a minimum. Such emails will be treated as 
public records, so please ensure no confidential information or inappropriate communication is 
contained in sent or received emails. For example, City email should not be used to exchange 
off-color jokes, political parodies or inappropriate pictures. If you receive such emails: 
 

1) if applicable, unsubscribe from the service 
2) block the sender and/or domain using “junk mail” management features 
3) notify sender that such email is not to be sent to City email addresses, and 
4) immediately delete it 

 
Forwarding such emails electronically for any purpose is a clear violation of City policy and may 
result in corrective action. Notify your supervisor if inappropriate emails are being received and 
you need assistance with stopping them. 
 
 
Software Installation 
 
In an effort to protect the integrity of our systems, all software used on the City of North Plains 
computers must be registered with the IT contractor. Personal or downloaded software may 
only be installed after written authorization from the IT contractor or City Manager has been 
received. A complete virus check of all such software must be made immediately before it is 
installed on any City of North Plains computer. A virus check must be made on any disk or files 
originating from outside the City of North Plains prior to its use in the City of North Plains 
computer. Copying or transferring of the City of North Plains-owned software may be done 
only with the written authorization of the City Manager and IT contractor. 
 
 
Telephone Usage (Landline) 
 
The City of North Plains recognizes employees must occasionally make and/or receive personal 
telephone calls. Such calls must be held to a minimum and should impact your work as little as 
possible. Unauthorized use of the telephone, including charging long distance calls to the City 
of North Plains, may result in corrective action, up to and including termination. 
 
 
Telephone Usage (Cellular) 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 80 of 154



The City of North Plains may provide a cellular telephone to employees in designated positions 
who regularly make City business calls while away from the office. Employees provided with a 
City of North Plains-owned cellular telephone, must restrict the use of the telephone to City 
business. All cellular phone bills are public records. 
 
Oregon law prohibits the use of cell phones while driving, unless use of the cell phone is: (a) an 
integral part of individual’s job duties, (b) a one-way communication device used within the 
scope of their employment, or (c) employees are using a “hands-free accessory.” Please note, 
the use of a speaker phone is not considered a “hands-free” accessory. 
 
Employees are prohibited from sending and receiving text messages while driving. Employees 
must also refrain from reading messages or browsing the internet while driving. 
 
 
Voice Mail System 
 
The voice mail system is the property of the City of North Plains and has been provided for use 
in conducting City business. All communications and information transmitted by, received 
from, or stored in this system are City of North Plains’ records and the property of the City of 
North Plains. This voice mail system is to be used for the City of North Plains business only, and 
use of the system for personal purposes is discouraged. You have no personal privacy rights 
pertaining to any information stored in, created, received, or sent over, the voice mail system. 
The City of North Plains, in its discretion as owner of the voice mail system, reserves and may 
exercise the right at any time to monitor, access, retrieve, and delete any message stored in, 
created, received or sent over the system for any reason, and without the permission of any 
employee. You are not authorized to retrieve or listen to any voice mail messages that are not 
sent to your personal attention. Any exception to this policy must receive prior approval from 
the City Manager. 
 
 
Archiving Electronic Communications 
 
Employees must follow federal and state law with regards to archiving electronic 
communications. Generally, you should follow the same archiving timeframes for electronic 
records, as you would for paper records.  
 
Typical public records examples: 
 

o Policies and directives 
o Correspondence or memoranda related to official business 
o Work schedules and assignments 
o Agendas and minutes of public meetings 
o Drafts of documents that are circulated in public for comment or approval 
o Any document that initiates, authorizes, or completes a business transaction 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 81 of 154



o Final reports or recommendations meetings  
 
Typical non-public records examples: 
 

o Personal messages or announcements 
o Solicitations by private companies 
o Copies of extracts of documents distributed for convenience or reference  
o Announcements of social events 
o Messages received via listserve 
o Spam 

 
Please refer to the City of North Plains’ Records Retention Schedule for specific information. 
 
 
Communications and Use of Social Media 
 
Social media tools such as Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, and blogs help citizens interact with 
their government in the individual’s preferred method and time schedule, encourage two-way 
communication, and foster a culture of greater transparency.  
 
Although social media is an efficient, timely and cost effective way to reach new and existing 
audiences, it is also a very public, open, dynamic and real-time forum.  
 
 
Terms of Service/Use 
 
Department employees should be aware of the Terms of Service or Use of the particular form 
of social media at issue. Each form of social media has its own unique terms that regulate how 
users interact using that particular form of media. Any employee using a form of social media 
on behalf of the City should consult the most current terms in order to avoid violations. If the 
terms contradict City policy then the Department Head should be made aware and a decision 
should be made about whether use of such media is appropriate.  
 
 
Postings 
 
City of North Plains employees approved to participate in social networks on behalf of a 
department should adhere to the following policies and guidelines: 
 

o Employees and volunteers representing the department through social media must 
conduct themselves at all times as representatives of the City of North Plains and 
adhere specifically to all City policies. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 82 of 154



o Employees that fail to conduct themselves in an appropriate manner shall be subject 
to the disciplinary actions.  

o Do not cite vendors, suppliers, clients, citizens, co-workers or other stakeholders 
without their approval. 

o Communicating in your official capacity constitutes conducting City business.  

o Do not use ethnic slurs, profanity, personal insults, or engage in any conduct that 
would not be acceptable in the City’s workplace. Avoid comments or topics that may 
be considered objectionable or inflammatory. 

o Be professional, responsible, and credible. Correct your mistakes immediately. Frame 
any comments or opposing views in a positive and respectful manner. 

o Understand that communication via social media sites is a public record. Posts of 
employees, site administrators, and any feedback or comments by other employees 
and non-employees, including citizens will become part of the public record.  

 
 
Inappropriate Post Topics 
 
The City of North Plains’ social networking content and comments containing any of the 
following shall not be allowed for posting: 
 

o Comments not related to the department, or not related to the particular post or 
blog article being commented upon. 

o Profane language or content. 

o Comments from an individual not-consistent with the stated positions of the City 
documentation. 

o Comments of a subject which are not allowed by other existing city policies or state 
laws including but not limited to those of a religious or political nature. This 
prohibition specifically applies to conduct that is a violation of the state ethics 
and/or election laws. 

o Content which promotes, fosters, or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of race, 
creed, color, age, religion, gender, marital status, status with regard to public 
assistance, national origin, physical or mental disability or sexual orientation. 

o Sexual content or links to sexual content. 

o Information which may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public or 
public systems. 

o Content which violates a legal ownership interest of any other party (such as 
copyrighted material, unless sources is cited). 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 83 of 154



o Other conduct or content which violates the terms of use of the social media site at 
issue.  

 
 
Timing/Frequency 
 
Facebook and Twitter should be updated on a regular basis, and at the most once per day. If a 
relevant, time-sensitive issue arises, a second post will be allowed with approval from the 
Department Head or designee.  
 
 
Monitoring and Responding to Public Posts/Comments 
 
Social media is a real-time, two-way communication forum with the public and posts with 
comments and/or questions from the public will appear on our official social networking pages 
or in general within social media forums. The City’s guidelines for responding to public posts of 
various natures are listed below. A Department Head or his or her designee is the only 
authorized responder in all cases and is responsible for monitoring and/or receiving 
notifications of posts daily (including weekends and holidays).  
 
If there are repeated violations of the City’s Social Media Policy or the social media site’s terms 
of use by certain individuals or entities, the department director may take steps to exclude 
those content posters. 
 
 
IT Information Security Policy 
 
In addition to the requirements below, this policy may also apply to electronic information 
required to be compliant with the federal Health Information Portability and Accountability Act 
(HIPAA) and has been secured according to HIPAA guidelines. Technology resources are critical 
assets of the City of North Plains. These policies have been designed to help ensure the 
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of City of North Plains’ technology resources, 
protected health information, and in particular, information and the systems used to store, 
process and access the information. 

 
 

General Information Security Policy 
 
City of North Plains’ information must be protected in a manner commensurate with its 
sensitivity, value, and criticality. Security measures must be employed regardless of the media 
on which information is stored (paper, overhead transparency, electronic, etc.), the systems 
that process it (microcomputers, servers, networks, voicemail systems, etc.), or the methods by 
which it is moved (electronic mail, face-to-face conversation, etc.). Such protection includes 
restricting access to information based on a “need-to-know” basis. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 84 of 154



 
 
   Responsibilities 
 
 Individuals accessing the City of North Plains’ technology resources must comply with 
information security policies, standards, guidelines, and procedures. 
 
 
 Access Control Mechanisms and Individual Accountability  
 
 Individuals at all levels are responsible for the secure operation of their activities. All system 
users must take reasonable actions to guarantee this security, maintained primarily through 
access control mechanisms (user IDs and passwords). Individually assigned user IDs and 
passwords must not be shared. Automated sign-on scripts should not be used. 

 
 Requests for access to technology resources require documented management (or designee) 
approval as well as any other required approval and user agreements (depending upon the 
information classification and owner/approver’s requirements). 

  
 Documents and/or data created by users should not be stored on the local drive of the 
computer they are using, but on the appropriate network drive to allow for greater security and 
regular backup. Generally, information stored on a computer’s local drive is not backed up. If 
you are unsure what constitutes the “local drive,” please contact the IT contractor. 
 
 If you will be away from your computer for an extended period of time (meetings, lunch, etc.) 
you are required to log off or otherwise secure your computer. 
 
 
 Virus Prevention  
 
Anti-virus software with up-to-date virus definitions must be actively in use on all workstations 
connected to the City of North Plains’ technology resources. Software, utilities and files from 
outside sources, including the Internet, must be scanned using virus detection software prior to 
use or installation on the City of North Plains’ technology resources if not certified virus-free by 
the vendor. 
 

 

 Communications and the Internet  
 
Firewalls (hardware/software security interfaces between the internal network and the outside 
Internet) and other methods may be used to control, filter and monitor Internet access. 
Subscriptions to services designed to block access to inappropriate web sites also may be used. 
Internet use will be actively monitored and reports may be provided to management. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 85 of 154



Remote and External Access Controls  
 
 Any and all remote or external access to the City of North Plains’ technology resources will be 
provided through a centrally administered remote access control system, or other approved 
secure connection. Connection via the Internet for purposes of electronic commerce requires 
special attention to security and privacy issues in order to protect our business and that of our 
members. Installations of such remote access systems or other external connections require 
the approval of the IT contractor(s). 
 
 Remote computers connected to the City of North Plains’ technology resources must be 
actively protected by anti-virus software with up-to-date virus definitions. 
 
 
 Policy Exceptions 
 
Exceptions or waivers to these policies require the approval of the City Manager. Appropriate 
documentation providing business justification for non-compliance is required, as well as full 
documentation of the business and technical reasons for granting the waiver. The City 
Manager will notify the IT contractor of all approved exceptions. 
 
 
Contact Information 
 
Questions about this policy or related information security concerns should be directed to the 
IT contractor. 
 
 
Bulletin Boards 
 
The City of North Plains maintains a bulletin board which is located in City Hall to provide up-
to-date information to employees concerning government notices, safety reminders, 
announcements and other information the City wants to communicate to all employees. It is 
also used to announce activities and other items of interest to employees. Employees are asked 
to check the bulletin board regularly. 
 
Employees may not post items on the city bulletin boards unless the following conditions are 
met: 
 

o    Posting may be made by city employees only; 
o    Postings may not be used for personal messages or solicitations; and 
o    The City Manager must approve posting or removal of information. 

 
 
Solicitation and distribution of literature 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 86 of 154



 
In order to ensure efficient operation of the City’s business and to prevent disruption to 
employees, the City has established control of solicitations and distribution of literature on City 
properties, as follows: 
 

o No employee shall solicit or promote or support for any cause or organization during his 
or her working time, or during the working time of the employees at whom such activity 
is directed. 

 
o Employees who would like to solicit or distribute literature to other employees by or on 

behalf of any individual, organization or club, may do so only during times when the 
employee is on a break. 

 
o The distribution of literature in work areas is prohibited. 

 
o No solicitation is allowed by for-profit representatives on City property, unless 

specifically invited by staff.  
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 87 of 154



Performance Management  

 
To ensure a meaningful performance evaluation system upon which the City of North Plains 
can monitor the effectiveness of our organization and its operations, employees typically 
receive periodic performance evaluations. Managers can determine the frequency of 
evaluations, and if formal written or informal conversations are appropriate.   
 
The objectives of our performance management and formal appraisal process are: 
 

o To ensure each person in our organization knows how he/she is performing against 
established performance standards; 

o To determine how well the City of North Plains managers are performing in assisting 
employees with work performance and objectives; 

o To ensure communication and two-way feedback; 

o To provide a consistent, objective, and fair method for making compensation 
decisions; 

o To identify areas where an employee may need more training; 

o To provide a tool for career planning; and, 

o To provide a record of employee performance and contributions. 

 
Managers are accountable for providing employee development actions designed to improve 
and enhance employee performance, such as: 
 

o     Reasonable employee training, including computer software proficiencies; 

o    Assigning, directing, controlling and reviewing employee work; 

o    Assisting employees in correcting deficiencies; and, 

o    Objectively evaluating employee performance during the evaluation period. 

 
The performance appraisal program is intended to be participatory, involving your input as 
much as that of your manager, thereby helping you to contribute to the growth and 
improvement of the City of North Plains. You are encouraged to: 
 

o    Inquire about your performance from time to time; 

o    Accept additional responsibilities and show initiative; 

o    Review opportunities for advancement within the organization; 

o    Ask for assistance in developing a goal-oriented path for advancement; and, 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 88 of 154



o    Learn about training available to assist you in improving your skills. 

 

Performance evaluations serve as one factor in decisions related to employment, such as 
training, merit pay increases, job assignments, employee development, promotions, and 
retention. Written reports identify performance levels, acknowledge the merit of above 
standard performance, and prescribe the means and methods for correcting performance 
deficiencies to the required level of performance if needed.     
 
It should be noted that any substandard performance levels must be documented in writing 
and shared with the employee and the Department Head or City Manager. Employees who are 
receiving counseling to improve performance should be given specific and realistic objectives 
to improve performance. Objectives should be created when substandard performance is 
identified and reviewed frequently with the employee and supervisor.  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 89 of 154



Corrective Action 
 
The City of North Plains has high performance expectations because we strongly believe 
everyone benefits when we all work together and conduct ourselves in a manner which 
mutually reflects the best interests of co-workers and our organization. It is the philosophy of 
the City of North Plains to take corrective action measures when needed for the purpose of 
correcting performance deficiencies or to deal with violations of polices and work rules. 
 
You will be informed by your manager of any necessary corrective action as soon as possible 
after any performance problem has been identified. Your manager will discuss the situation 
with you, explaining the policy and the necessity of corrective action to avoid other disciplinary 
actions. 
 
Corrective action may include any of a variety of actions depending on the circumstances and 
severity of the particular situation. 
 
Corrective action may be taken at the discretion of management and may include, but is not 
limited to, the following examples: 
 

o Verbal counseling with you, which will be confirmed in writing for your personnel file 

o Mandatory participation in training and/or counseling 

o Written warning, which will be placed in your personnel file 

o Suspension, which will be confirmed in writing for your personnel file (Suspension is 
normally used to remove an employee from the premises during an investigation, or as 
a disciplinary action. This may be paid or unpaid. If you are suspended, it will be 
documented in your personnel file.) 

o Termination 

 
The corrective action process will not always commence with a verbal counseling or include a 
sequence of steps. Some acts, particularly those that are intentional, serious, or involve illegal 
conduct, warrant more severe action on the first or subsequent offense. Consideration may be 
given to the seriousness of the offense, your intent and motivation to change the performance, 
and the environment in which the offense took place. 
 
The above are only examples of possible corrective action(s) which may or may not occur. 
 
If you as an employee witness an action or lack of action by another employee which may merit 
review by a manager for corrective action, please report the event to your manager or the City 
Manager as soon as is practical. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 90 of 154



Pay Administration 
 
The City of North Plains values quality employees and is committed to compensating 
employees for their efforts and results. It is our intent to provide a competitive compensation 
package which will attract, retain and motivate employees. It is also our intent that policies and 
pay practices be administered consistently throughout the City of North Plains. 
 
The pay of a new employee may be established based on the pay level of current employees in 
the same or similar positions, and the new employee’s previous experience, education, and 
skills. 
 
You may be eligible for future pay increases based on the approved budget and your 
performance. 
 
 
Merit Salary Increases 
 
It is City of North Plains’ policy to reward you with increases in pay for your dedication in your 
work, extra effort, and contributory performance. Management does not award increases on 
an automatic basis or at any preset interval. Your manager may determine if an increase is 
warranted at the time of your performance review. Salary increase recommendations must be 
approved by the City Manager.   
 
To the extent allowed by law, information pertaining to your rate of pay and increases in pay, if 
any, is deemed to be a confidential personal matter between you and your manager and we 
request that you exercise great discretion and care regarding any discussion about pay. 
 
 
Paydays 
 
As of January 2012, employees are paid biweekly. Paydays are on the Friday subsequent to the 
end of the two-week pay period. 
 
 
Payroll Deductions 
 
Certain mandatory and elective deductions are made from employee pay, and are noted on the 
paycheck information. Only those deductions mandated by law or those you have authorized in 
writing are made, provided such deductions are not otherwise prohibited by state regulations. 
 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 91 of 154



Salary Advances 
 
Effective January 2012, the City of North Plains does not permit salary advances. 
 
 
Delivery of Paychecks 
 
Each payday, your paycheck will be mailed or hand-delivered to you, or electronically 
deposited to an account you designate at a financial institution. Employees may designate 
more than one. No paychecks will be delivered to any person other than you except upon your 
written request to do so. 
 
Employees hired after September 1, 2013 must accept payment through direct deposit or a 
rechargeable credit card. 
 
 
Method of Payment 
 
A statement of earnings and deductions showing gross earnings, deductions and the net salary 
amount will be provided on paydays. 
 
 
Employee Withholding Allowance Certificates Form W-4  
 
You are required under Federal law to furnish the organization with a valid Employee 
Withholding Exemption Certificate (W-4) at the time of hire. You may request additional 
withholding for your state and/or federal taxes. If you fail to provide a W-4, the City of North 
Plains is required by law to withhold at the S-O rate, until you provide us with a W-4. 
 
 
Timekeeping 
 
Employee pay is calculated from reported hours as approved by your manager or salary 
assignment. The time record is formal documentation of the exact time worked. It should be 
completed daily and reviewed at the end of each week for completeness and accuracy. It must 
be completed and approved at the end of each pay period. 
 
Your manager, or his/her designee, will review and approve time records each pay period. If an 
error is to be corrected or time clarified, the employee should notify his/her manager during the 
review process. Your electronic or written signature on the time record each pay period verifies 
that the times and dates are true and accurate to the best of your knowledge. You should never 
allow someone else to make entries on your time record. Willfully falsifying a time record may 
be grounds for corrective action, up to and including termination. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 92 of 154



Final Paycheck 
 
Final paycheck will be provided within five business days or on our next regularly scheduled 
payday, whichever occurs first. Final paychecks will include all wages earned through the last 
workday plus payment for any accrued and vested benefits (excluding PERS) that are due and 
payable at separation.  Checks can be picked up at the City of North Plains or mailed to the 
current home address if requested in writing by the separating employee. 
 
Exempt employees who terminate employment prior to the last day in the pay period in which 
they terminate will be paid at an hourly rate of pay for all hours worked. Exempt employees, 
who normally are scheduled to work less than 40 hours per week, will be paid their normal pro-
rated holiday hours for any holidays that fall during the final month of employment with the 
City of North Plains. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 93 of 154



Hours of Work 
 
 
Office Hours 
 
The City of North Plains has established regular working hours to promote a productive work 
environment that will best serve our members. The general office hours at The City are 8:30 AM 
to 5 PM, Monday through Friday. 
 
The normal work period is 80 hours in a two week period. The 80 hour work period may not 
coincide with the payroll period. If you are a non-exempt employee, you should not begin work 
before your normal starting time nor continue working beyond the normal quitting time 
without advance approval from your manager. 
 
Typically, employees will work 8 hour days with an unpaid hour for lunch. Changes to work 
schedules may be made on an individual basis (work hours/work days) based on business 
necessity, at the discretion of the manager with approval from the City Manager. The City of 
North Plains will attempt to notify you of any changes in workdays or work week schedules one 
week in advance of the effective date of change. Management reserves the right to modify 
schedules consistent with the needs of the organization. 
 
Hours worked for The City of North Plains are compensable and include all of the time that an 
employee is required to be on duty. Travel time and training or meeting time are considered 
hours worked under specific conditions outlined under wage and hour laws, or by City of North 
Plains policy. Please consult with your manager regarding these conditions. These provisions 
do not apply to exempt positions. 
 
Alternate schedules such as 4/10’s or 9/80’s can be assigned to employees with the approval of 
the City Manager. 
 
 
Meal and Rest Periods 
 
Meal and rest periods will be provided for you according to Federal and State law. Non-exempt 
employees are not permitted to work through a meal period unless approval from a manager is 
obtained prior to the scheduled meal break. If you are a non-exempt employee and you are 
required to work during your meal period, you will be paid for your meal time. If an employee 
frequently works through a meal and/or rest period, without manager approval, the employee 
may be subject to corrective action. These provisions do not apply to exempt positions, as 
there are not any required meal and rest periods for such positions. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 94 of 154



Overtime 
 
Non-exempt employees may be required to work overtime. Prior approval must be obtained 
from your manager before working overtime hours. Managers are to ensure that no 
unauthorized overtime hours are worked, and should attempt to avoid accumulated overtime 
by employees. City of North Plains complies with the provisions for overtime for our non-
exempt employees, as outlined in the Fair Labor Standards Act and State wage and hour laws. 
Overtime is earned when hours exceed 40 in a workweek. Workweeks are variable by position, 
but typically are Monday-Sunday. Hours may be flexed within the workweek, but not within the 
two week pay period. Overtime is calculated on the basis of hours actually worked in excess of 
the employees regularly scheduled shifts. Sick leave, vacation leave, and holidays are not 
counted as hours worked. However, if an employee has scheduled sick or vacation leave and is 
requested by a manager to work overtime during that workweek, it may be considered 
overtime earned if approved as such by the manager.      
 
 
Compensatory Time Off 
 
Compensatory Time Off (comp time), in lieu of paid overtime, will be computed at 1.5 times the 
regular rate for hours worked, with prior agreement (refer to Overtime above). You are 
encouraged to work with your manager to schedule and use comp time within 60 days of when 
it is accrued. 
 
Employees who have more than 40 hours may be “cashed out” for hours greater than 40 within 
budgetary limits. When an employee is separated from employment with City of North Plains 
any remaining comp time is payable to the employee. 
 
 
Social and Recreational Activities 
 
Participation in all off-duty social or recreational activities such as picnics and holiday parties is 
entirely voluntary. Participation or nonparticipation will not have any effect on employee 
wages, hours, working conditions or employment opportunities. 
 
 
Telecommuting 
 
City of North Plains may consider telecommuting where there are opportunities for improved 
employee performance, reduced commuting miles, and/or the potential for the City of North 
Plains’ to realize cost savings. Telecommuting is defined as work and transportation 
alternatives that substitute home-to-work commuting with the option of working at home. 
 
This policy applies to the City of North Plains employees who are regular full-time employees. 
Professional employees may also be given the option to work off-site. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 95 of 154



Telecommuting does not include temporary work at home due to special conditions such as 
providing dependent care, recovering from an illness, or caring for an ill family member. Such 
situations may be arranged between the employee and his/her manager, at the manager’s 
discretion. 
 
Participation in the City of North Plains’ telecommuting program is at the City of North Plains’ 
option. An employee may not demand the “right” to telecommute. The manager or City 
Manager may terminate telecommuting at any time with reasonable advance notice. 
 
To ensure an effective, productive, telecommuting program, the City of North Plains 
establishes the following General and Worksite-specific policies, as well as those governing 
Supplies, Equipment, Software Usage, and Security: 
 
General 

 Professionalism in terms of job responsibilities, work products, and customer or public 
contact will continue to follow the same high standards as currently being met by the 
City of North Plains employees at their onsite work locations. 

 Telecommuters will be self-motivated, have minimal requirements for face-to-face daily 
supervision, and will have demonstrated conscientiousness about work time and 
productivity. 

 An employee’s work schedule may include telecommuting on either a part-time or full-
time basis. The work of the telecommuter must be of a nature in which face-to-face 
interaction is minimal or may be scheduled to permit telecommuting. 

 Telecommuting is not suitable for all employees and/or positions. Any employee who 
wants to telecommute must discuss the request with his/her manager. The City 
Manager will make the final decision about whether the employee’s job is suitable for 
telecommuting. 

 The employee’s salary, benefits, worker’s compensation, and other employer insurance 
coverage will not change due to telecommuting, if the working hours remain the same.   

 Travel from the employee’s home to the employee’s assigned City of North Plains work 
location will be considered commuting mileage and will not be reimbursed.  

 The employee’s duties, obligations, and responsibilities remain unchanged during the 
telecommuting agreement. The employee will meet or communicate with his/her 
manager to receive assignments, review work progress, and complete work as often as 
the manager believes is necessary. 

 The employee must obtain supervisory approval before taking leave in accordance with 
the City of North Plains policy. 

 The manager and employee will formulate objectives, expected results, and evaluation 
procedures for work completed while the employee is telecommuting. The manager 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 96 of 154



and employee will meet at pre-determined intervals to review the employee’s work 
performance. 

 Telecommuting is not a substitute for dependent care. Telecommuters are required to 
make arrangements for dependent care during the agreed-upon work hours. The 
employee may be asked to provide information regarding dependent care 
arrangements by his/her manager. 

 Telecommuting employees shall not perform personal business or activities during 
agreed-upon work hours. 

 While telecommuting, the employee must be reachable via telephone, fax, network 
access, or e-mail during agreed-upon work hours. 

 More specific conditions relating to the employee’s working at home will be detailed in 
the individual Telecommuting Agreement. The Telecommuting Agreement must be 
completed by the employee, his/her manager, and approved by the City Manager. 

 Telecommuters are advised to contact their insurance agent and tax consultant for 
information regarding home work sites and coverage for equipment that is damaged, 
destroyed, or stolen. 

 
Worksite-specific 

 A designated workspace shall be maintained by the telecommuter that is quiet, free of 
distractions, and kept in a clean, professional, and safe condition, with adequate 
lighting and ventilation. 

 Since the employee’s home or satellite workspace is an extension of the City of North 
Plains workspace, the City of North Plains’ liability for job-related accidents may 
continue to exist during the approved work schedule and in the employee’s designated 
work location. To ensure that safe working conditions exist, City of North Plains will 
retain the right to make on-site inspections of the workspace, including home 
workspace, at mutually agreed-upon times. 

 City of North Plains will not be responsible for operating costs, home maintenance, 
property or liability insurance, or other incidental expenses (utilities, cleaning services, 
etc.) associated with the use of the employee’s residence except, and to the extent, as 
specifically agreed in the Telecommuting Agreement or Attachment thereto. 

 City of North Plains will not be liable for damages to the employee’s property which 
may result from participating in the telecommuting program. 

 A consistent schedule of telecommuting work hours and days is desirable to ensure 
regular and predictable contact with City of North Plains staff and others; for some 
positions, more flexibility in work hours and days is feasible. Further information on the 
individual work schedule will be stated in the Telecommuting Agreement. 

 A non-exempt employee shall not work overtime unless he/she has received prior 
approval from his/her manager. If the employee works overtime that has been approved 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 97 of 154



in advance, compensation or compensatory time off will be provided in accordance with 
eligibility guidelines and applicable laws and policies. The employee understands that 
failure to obtain prior approval for overtime work may result in discontinuance of 
telecommuting and/or other appropriate disciplinary action. 

 
Supplies, Equipment, and Software Usage 

 Employee out-of-pocket expenses for supplies, which are normally available in the 
employee’s regular work location, will not be reimbursed. Other supplies, as needed, 
must be requested by the employee and approved by the manager. 

 City of North Plains typically will not provide worksite furniture for those who 
telecommute on a part-time basis. Worksite furniture for full-time telecommuters, if 
needed, must be discussed by the employee and manager. Worksite furniture cannot be 
committed by the manager without prior approval of the City Manager. 

 The following conditions shall apply to use of computers, software, other City of North 
Plains equipment, and Internet access: 

o The telecommuter will provide his/her own Internet access. Any agreements for 
the City of North Plains to provide equipment, software, and internet access will 
be outlined in the Telecommuting Agreement. Please consult with your tax 
advisor regarding possible “taxable events” for the City of North Plains’ 
purchased or supplied equipment, software, and internet access. 

o Use of the City of North Plains’ communications and software systems by 
telecommuting employees is subject to the City of North Plains policies on 
“Communications and Software Systems” as described in this handbook. 

o The employee agrees not to duplicate City of North Plains owned software. The 
employee also agrees to abide by the licensing regulations and restrictions for all 
software under license to City of North Plains. 

o A computer used for City of North Plains business must be plugged into a surge 
protector and have current virus protection maintained. 

o Restricted-access materials shall not be removed from the City of North Plains 
on-site work location or accessed through the computer unless approved in 
advance by the manager and the appropriate security access administrator. 

o City of North Plains does not assume liability for loss, damage, or wear of 
employee-owned equipment. City of North Plains does not assume 
responsibility for any private property used, lost or damaged as a result of the 
Telecommuting Agreement. 

o The employee shall promptly notify his/her manager when unable to perform 
work assignments due to the equipment failure or other unforeseen 
circumstances. The employee may be assigned to another project and/or work 
location that may necessitate termination of the telecommuting agreement. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 98 of 154



o City of North Plains may pursue recovery from the employee for the City of 
North Plains property that is damaged, destroyed, or stolen while in the 
employee’s care, custody, or control if such loss results from the employee’s 
negligence. 

 
Security 

 The employee will protect the City of North Plains’ information from unauthorized 
disclosure or damage and will comply with federal, state, and the City of North Plains’ 
rules, policies and procedures regarding disclosure of public and official records. Work 
done at the employee’s telecommuting site is regarded as official City of North Plains’ 
business. All records, documents, and correspondence, either in paper or electronic 
form must be safeguarded for return to the City of North Plains. Release or destruction 
of records should be done only in accordance with statute and City of North Plains 
policy and procedure, and with the knowledge of the employee’s manager. 
Electronic/computer files are considered the City of North Plains’ records and shall be 
protected as such. 

 The employee shall surrender all City of North Plains’ owned equipment and/or data 
documents immediately upon request. 

 
Employee-Incurred Expenses and Reimbursement 
 
The City of North Plains will pay all actual and reasonable business-related expenses you incur 
in the performance of your job responsibilities. All such expenses incurred must be pre-
approved by your manager before reimbursement will be made. 
 
Expense reports must be supported by evidence of proof of purchase, e.g., receipts, and are to 
be submitted within three calendar months of the expense being incurred or the employee 
risks forfeiting his or her payment or reimbursement. Meal receipts must denote for whom the 
meal was purchased and the purpose of the meeting. 
 
 
Driving While On Business 
 
Employees using a private vehicle to conduct City business must possess a valid driver’s license 
and must carry auto liability insurance. Employees who use their own vehicles for authorized 
business use should make any necessary arrangements with their insurance carriers.  
 
The City may verify the validity of your driver’s license and/or your driving record. Once you are 
employed with the City of North Plains, we will receive automated reports from the 
Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV). The reports notify the City of North Plains when there 
are transactions on your driving record. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 99 of 154



While on City of North Plains’ business, drivers are expected to make every reasonable effort to 
operate their vehicles safely, with due regard for potential hazards, weather, and road 
conditions. Drivers are to obey all traffic laws, posted signs and signals, and requirements 
applicable to the vehicle being operated. Seatbelts are to be used in all vehicles while on 
business. Drivers are to ensure that the use of prescribed or over the counter drugs do not 
interfere with their ability to drive while on business; operating a vehicle under the influence of 
alcohol or controlled substances is prohibited. Employees are responsible for notifying their 
manager of any subsequent restrictions, limitations, or other change in their driving status as 
soon as possible. 
 
 
Mileage Reimbursement 
 
Employees will be reimbursed for authorized use of their personal vehicles at a rate established 
by the Internal Revenue Service. Other related expenditures (e.g., parking) are also reimbursed 
upon submission of receipts on an expense report. 
 
Any traffic citations, including parking tickets, are the responsibility of the employee and will 
not be reimbursed by the City of North Plains. 
 
 
Educational Workshop Travel & Meal Reimbursement Policy  
 
City of North Plains governance policies encourage employees to avail themselves of training 
and educational opportunities in support of their functions on behalf of the City of North Plains. 
The following guidelines apply with respect to registration, travel, accommodation, meal and 
other approved expenses in connection with seminars, workshops, or other educational events 
attended by the employee at the request of the City of North Plains, approved by the City of 
North Plains, or that are authorized by the City Manager as mandatory training programs. 
  

Registration/Accommodation 
o Designated City of North Plains staff will, if requested, make the necessary 

registration and room arrangements, and complete/submit class registration/fee 
requests. 

 
o City of North Plains will pay employee registration fees and charges for 

accommodation at the single room rate.  If a spouse/significant other accompany an 
employee, the City of North Plains will not be responsible for their additional 
registration and accommodation costs. 

  
Travel 

o If requested, designated City of North Plains staff will make arrangements for travel 
to authorized workshops and seminars. If travel plans include a spouse/significant 
other, or involve an additional excursion in conjunction with attendance at an 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 100 of 154



authorized workshop or seminar, the individual employee may find it more cost-
effective and efficient to make his/her own bookings. 

 
o City of North Plains will pay for the cost of travel by employees to approved training 

and educational workshops and seminars, using IRS mileage rates for auto travel 
and actual coach class airfare for airline travel. Spouses/significant others may 
accompany employees to these events but the City of North Plains will not be 
responsible for any of their associated travel or accommodation costs. 

 
Meals 

o City of North Plains will reimburse employees for reasonable costs associated with 
meals and incidental expenses associated with attendance at events/activities as a 
City of North Plains representative. 

 
o If meals are included as part of the conference, workshop, or seminar program 

attended, City of North Plains will pay the charged rate for those meals. If meals are 
provided as part of the program and are being paid for by the City of North Plains, 
employees who elect to eat elsewhere will not normally be reimbursed for the cost 
of that meal. 

 
o City of North Plains will not usually pay for meals of spouses/significant others, 

unless the meal is associated with a City of North Plains group function where the 
attendance of the employee is required and it is appropriate to bring a 
spouse/significant other. 

 
o City of North Plains will not pay for the consumption of alcoholic beverages. 

 
o City of North Plains will pay for reasonable costs associated with meals in the course 

of City business under the following circumstances: 
 

 The meal is associated with travel requiring an overnight stay. 
 
 The meal is consumed with one or more City of North Plains member 

officials, residents, or individuals in a business relationship with the City of 
North Plains. 

 
 The meal is part of an occasional departmental event approved in advance 

by the appropriate manager. 
 

Attendance 
o If the City of North Plains is paying registration, travel, meals, and accommodation 

costs for attendance at the workshop, seminar, conference etc., employees are 
expected to attend scheduled work sessions and related activities and take 
advantage of the opportunity to learn in both formal and informal settings. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 101 of 154



o Employees are encouraged to report back on their learning experience for the 
benefit and development of other staff. 

 
 
Use of City Vehicles and Equipment 
 
The City provides vehicles and equipment for conducting City business. These vehicles must be 
used, parked and maintained properly.  
 
In recognition of their on-call status some police employees may take their vehicles home when 
not on duty, subject to the Police Chief’s approval. 
 
Employees may use a City pool car with permission of their department head or City Manager. 
 
City vehicles may not be used for personal use, with the exception of incidental use related to 
taking lunch or rest breaks (e.g. purchasing lunch). 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 102 of 154



Employee Benefits 
 
The City of North Plains strives to provide excellent, equitable and cost-effective benefits for 
employees in recognition of the influence employment benefits have on the economic and 
personal welfare of our employees. Paid in various forms on your behalf, the total cost to 
provide the benefit program described in this Handbook and other documents is a significant 
supplement to your pay and should be viewed as additional compensation. 
 
Policies, provisions and procedures that govern the City of North Plains’ benefit programs 
apply to all benefits-eligible employees unless otherwise provided in a particular benefit plan. 
 
Some benefits begin on the first of the month after 30 days of employment. Some benefits 
may accrue during your introductory period. Use of certain leave benefits may be limited 
during your introductory period based on the needs of the Department. 
 
Upon appointment employees will be advised if their position is eligible for benefits. 
 
 
Benefit Plan Documents 
 
You will be provided with Summary Plan Descriptions (SPDs) for the City of North Plains 
benefit programs. The benefit programs are explicitly defined in legal documents, including 
insurance contracts, official plan texts, and trust agreements.  In the event of a conflict 
between these documents and this policy, the plan documents will govern. All of these official 
documents are readily available from the City of North Plains or its benefit administrator CIS 
(visit www.oregoncis.org). We ask that you refer any questions about this information to the 
City Manager or Finance Manager.  
 
 
Health/Dental/Vision Insurance Benefit 
 
The City of North Plains currently offers health insurance coverage for all benefits-eligible 
employees and their eligible dependents. You will be provided with information about the plan 
during orientation.  Health benefits begin the first of the month following 30 days of 
employment. You are asked to review the summary plan description for answers to questions 
you may have. Any need for further information should be referred to the City of North Plains 
Benefits Manager. 
 
 
Eligibility 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 103 of 154



The health insurance plan provides benefits-eligible employees and their eligible dependents 
with medical, dental, and vision care insurance benefits. Eligibility begins the first of the month 
following 30 days of employment. Employees working in benefits-eligible positions are 
provided with a health insurance plan for themselves, their eligible dependents, and their same 
sex domestic partners (note that the domestic partner of an insured employee is eligible for 
coverage if the domestic partnership meets all of the coverage criteria). The children of 
covered domestic partners are eligible under the same terms and conditions as children of 
enrolled employees. Questions regarding the criteria for determining eligibility for domestic 
partners, the employee’s premium payment portion, and other questions relating to this 
benefit, can be addressed by contacting the Finance Manager or City Manager. 
 
Part of City of North Plains’ health insurance coverage is our Healthy Benefits program, which 
provides a valuable package of services to you and eligible family members to help you achieve 
or maintain optimum health. City of North Plains employees are encouraged to participate in 
wellness programs/resources offered via a healthy benefits program, the medical insurance 
carrier programs, etc. 
 
 
Premium Contribution 
 
The City of North Plains pays for the employee enrollment in the plans available. In FY 2014 
employees have the options of Blue Shield Copay B or Kaiser with a $250 deductible. 
Employees who enroll additional family members must contribute 30% of their dependent 
premiums for medical, and the cost above the employee only plan for dental. This will be 
deducted through payroll. 
 
 
Pre-Tax Account 
 
The City of North Plains makes three pre-tax options available to benefits-eligible employees 
for dependent care expenses, medical and dental services, and employee insurance premiums. 
Because your taxable income is reduced by using one or more of these options, you pay fewer 
taxes - the only provision is that you must use all the designated dollars in your Pre-tax Account 
by the end of the plan year (January through December) or you forfeit the balance. A brochure 
explaining the details of the program is available from the Finance Manager. 
 
 
Workers’ Compensation 
 
Employees will be insured under the provisions of the Workers’ Compensation Program for 
“accepted” injuries and illnesses received while performing work for the City of North Plains. 
City of North Plains uses an external claims adjuster to process the City of North Plains 
employee claims, and to determine the compensability of a claim. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 104 of 154



Accident and Injury Reporting 
All job-related injuries or illnesses must be reported to your manager within 24 hours, 
regardless of severity using the Incident Report form. If you are going to seek treatment, 
please remember to complete an 801 Form. In the case of serious injury, your reporting 
obligation will be deferred until circumstances reasonably permit a report to be made. 
Failure to report an injury or illness may affect or delay the payment of any benefits to you 
and could subject the City of North Plains to fines and penalties. 
 
Early Return-to-Work Program 
Our Return-to-Work program provides guidelines for returning you to work at the earliest 
possible time after you have suffered an on-the-job injury or illness that results in time loss. 
This program is not intended as a substitute for reasonable accommodation when an 
injured employee also qualifies as an individual with a disability. The Return-to-Work 
Program is intended to be transitional work, to enable you to return to your regular job in a 
reasonable period of time. 
 
The Return-to-Work program for job related injuries consists of a team effort by managers, 
injured employees and their treating physicians, City of North Plains management, and our 
workers’ compensation claims staff. 
 
Through this team effort, we hope to help our employees recover and return to full 
employment at the earliest possible date that is consistent with their medical condition and 
the advice of the treating physician.   
 
If your doctor determines that you are able to perform modified work, the City of North 
Plains will attempt to provide you with such a job for a reasonable period of time (usually 
six months or less) until you can resume your regular duties (except where provided as an 
accommodation for a disability). All modified work is temporary and may be offered at a 
different location and/or shift. If, due to a work related injury, you are offered a modified 
position that has been medically approved, failure to phone in or report at the designated 
time and place may affect your compensation. While you are performing modified or 
transitional work, you are still subject to all the usual rules and procedures. 
 
Please refer to the ADA policy if an injury or illness requires accommodation to perform 
essential job functions. 
 
 

Benefits Continuation (COBRA) 
 
The federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) gives employees and 
their qualified dependents the opportunity to continue health insurance coverage under their 
employer’s health plan. Eligibility is initiated when a “qualifying event” would normally result in 
the loss of eligibility (e.g., work separation, death of an employee, a reduction in an employee’s 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 105 of 154



hours, leave of absence, an employee’s divorce or legal separation, or a dependent child who 
no longer meets eligibility requirements). 
 
Under COBRA, the employee or beneficiary pays the full cost of coverage at the group rates, 
plus a 2% administrative fee. Employees will receive a written notice describing rights and 
obligations granted under COBRA when the employee becomes eligible for coverage under the 
City of North Plains’ insurance plan. 
 
 
Long-Term Disability 
 
The City of North Plains provides a long-term disability (LTD) benefit plan to help employees 
working in benefits-eligible positions cope with an illness or injury that results in a long-term 
absence from employment.  LTD is designed to ensure continuing income for employees who 
are disabled and unable to work, but it is not intended to fully replace your wages. LTD 
coverage begins on the first of the month following 30-days of employment and is subject to all 
the terms and conditions of the agreement between the City of North Plains and the insurance 
carrier. LTD benefits are offset by amounts received under Social Security, PERS, other 
retirement income, or workers’ compensation for the same time period. 
 
 
Life Insurance 
 
The City of North Plains provides a basic life insurance plan of $50,000; it is subject to all the 
terms and conditions of the agreement between the employer and the insurance carrier (refer 
to Employee Classifications). Employees who are eligible for coverage will be provided with 
coverage on the first of the month following 30 days of employment. You will be asked to 
designate your beneficiaries at the time of enrollment. 
 
Also, additional voluntary and/or dependent life insurance may also be purchased and will be 
deducted from the employee’s monthly salary. Voluntary coverage may be subject to medical 
underwriting by the life insurance company. 
 
 
Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance 
 
City of North Plains provides AD&D insurance coverage in the same dollar amount as your City 
of North Plains-paid life insurance coverage, for employees working in benefits-eligible 
positions, who suffer accidental death or dismemberment. You are eligible for coverage the 
first of the month following 30 days of employment. 
 
 
Long Term Care 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 106 of 154



Voluntary long term care insurance may be purchased for employees and eligible family 
members; the premium for each type of coverage will be deducted from your monthly salary. 
After your first opportunity for enrollment, coverage will be subject to medical underwriting by 
the long term care insurance company. All coverage for eligible family members is subject to 
medical underwriting. 
 
 
Unemployment Insurance 
 
The City of North Plains provides unemployment compensation through the State of Oregon 
Unemployment Insurance Fund as provided for under state law. 
 
 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 
 
This free, confidential service is provided to all employees covered by our medical insurance 
benefits, and their covered dependents who may be experiencing life problems. Information 
regarding this service can by obtained by contacting the City of North Plains City Manger or the 
City Manager’s Office. The EAP can be reached at 800-854-9778 and at www.easeeap.com. 
 
 
PERS (Public Employees’ Retirement System) Benefit 
As participants in the PERS system, your designation as a Tier I, Tier II, or OPSRP member will 
depend on your prior PERS service and PERS rules. 
 
You become a PERS member after working six full calendar months for a PERS-covered 
employer in a qualifying position requiring at least 600 hours per calendar year period. That six 
month “waiting period” cannot be interrupted by more than 30 consecutive working days. Your 
effective date of membership is the first day of the month after you have met this requirement. 
 
The City of North Plains makes two contributions to PERS on your behalf. The first contribution 
is an amount based on the actuarial requirements for funding City of North Plains employee 
pensions. It is a percentage of payroll set by PERS. The amount may be different for each 
designation (Tier I, Tier II, OPSRP), and changes from year to year. 
 
City of North Plains also pays on your behalf the employee contribution to the PERS system, 
which is set by statute at 6% of your pay. The employee contribution is deposited by PERS into 
the Individual Account Program (IAP). After you become a member of PERS you will receive 
information about how to review your IAP account. PERS also will send an annual statement of 
your balance(s). 
 
When you become a PERS member, you should fill out a Designation of Beneficiary form to 
name someone to receive your benefits should you die before refunding or retiring. The 
“Standard Designation” on the Designation of Beneficiary form directs your death benefits to 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 107 of 154

http://www.easeeap.com/


your surviving next of kin. If you select the standard designation, you automatically provide for 
changes which occur in your family situation such as marriage, birth, divorce, or death.   
 
For more information on PERS membership, contact PERS Customer Service at 1-888-320-7377 
or 503-598-7377, Monday – Friday between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
Deferred Compensation 
 
To supplement your PERS retirement, benefit-eligible employees may elect to participate in a 
Deferred Compensation program. This allows you to set aside part of your salary and defer the 
taxes on it until you retire. You are eligible to participate, beginning with your first paycheck. 
 
 
Vacation Leave Benefit 
 
Vacation time is intended to provide time away from work for rest and recreation. All benefits-
eligible employees receive a vacation accrual based on the schedule below. Benefits-eligible 
employees who regularly work less than 40 hours receive pro-rated benefit accruals. All 
accruals begin at the date of hire. To ensure training goals are met, usage of vacation leave 
may be restricted during an employee’s introductory period. 
 
Vacation accrual cannot exceed a maximum of 300 hours. Vacation benefits will stop 
accruing once the maximum has been reached. When this total is reduced below the maximum 
allowable the benefit will begin accruing again. No vacation is accrued while the employee is on 
a leave of absence without pay. 
 
You will earn vacation leave benefits according to the following schedule:  
 

Length of Service Annual Accrual  
(hours) 

Monthly 
Accrual (hours) 

Biweekly Accrual 
(hours) 

o-1st anniversary 48 4 1.846 

After 1st anniversary 96 8 3.692 

After 5th anniversary 120 10 4.615 

After 10th anniversary 144 12 5.538 

After 15th anniversary 168 14 6.462 

After 20th anniversary 192 16 7.385 

 
Upon separation of employment, employees will be paid for unused vacation time that has 
been earned through the last day of work. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 108 of 154



Vacation leave is paid at the employee’s base pay rate at the time vacation is taken. In the 
event that available vacation is not used by the end of the calendar year, employees must carry 
unused time forward to the next calendar year. 
 
Any employee wishing to use vacation time should request vacation hours as early as possible 
so that arrangements for coverage can be made. Requests for vacation time are to be made in 
writing and given to your manager. Every attempt will be made to grant each request; 
however, no guarantees can be offered. 

 
 
Holiday Leave 
 
The City of North Plains will grant paid holiday leave to all benefits-eligible employees. 
 
If a holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed the Friday prior; if falling on a Sunday, it will 
be observed the Monday following. 
 
The City currently provides 11 paid holidays, ten of which are defined and one of which is 
selectable (“floating”) by the employee. 
 
Unused holiday time will not be paid upon separation, nor will it carry over to the next year; you 
must use your floating holidays between January 1st and December 31st for each year. 
 
 

Defined Holidays for the City of North Plains (Offices Closed) 
 

1. New Year’s Day (January 1) 
2. Martin Luther King day (third Monday in January) 
3. Presidents’ Day (third Monday in February) 
4. Memorial Day (last Monday in May) 
5.  Independence Day (July 4) 
6. Labor Day (first Monday in September) 
7. Veteran’s Day (November 11) 
8. Thanksgiving (fourth Thursday in November) 
9. Day after Thanksgiving  
10. Christmas Day (December 25) 

 
 

Floating Holidays 
 

Employees may select one additional eight-hour (8-hour) holiday during a calendar 
year. Employees must coordinate requests for the selectable holidays with their 
manager. Employees must report use of holiday leave on their time cards. Floating 
holidays are accrued in the first pay period of January of each year. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 109 of 154



Holiday leave is not prorated for the year in which the employee is hired (i.e. employees will 
receive their first floating holiday when they work the first pay period in January). 

 
 
Police Officer Holiday Leave 
 
Because Police Officers may be required to work on holidays, they shall accrue holiday leave at 
a rate of 3.384 hours per pay period (88 hours annually). Holiday leave may be used as it is 
accrued. 

 
 
Sick Leave Benefit 
Benefits-eligible employees will accrue 3.962 hours of sick leave biweekly (eight 
hours/monthly). Part-time benefited employees receive a pro-rated amount. Sick leave can be 
used after it is accrued. 
 
Sick leave is intended for your use due to illness or injury; to allow you to care for an ill or 
injured member of your immediate family; or for your medical appointments. 

Although the City of North Plains realizes that an employee with temporary illnesses such as 
influenza, colds and other viruses often need to continue with normal life activities, including 
working, your manager may require you to go home from work if you appear to be too ill to be 
at work or if you are unable to perform normal job duties and meet regular performance 
standards. If in the judgment of the manager, your continued presence poses no risk to the 
health of you, other employees, or customers, you may be allowed to work. However, if this is 
not the case, and your manager requires you to go home, you are expected to do so. If you 
dispute your manager’s decision to send you home, then you must submit a statement from 
your attending health care provider that your continued presence in the workplace poses no 
significant risk to you, other employees, or customers. 

If you have been ill or injured, have missed time from work, and have a release from your doctor 
to return to temporarily modified work, please contact the City of North Plains before returning 
to work. The City will determine whether you may return to work in a temporarily modified job. 
 
If you miss more than three (3) consecutive days work, you may be required to provide a release 
from your doctor before returning to work. 
 
Please refer to the ADA policy if an injury or illness requires accommodation to perform 
essential job functions. 
 
Time for routine doctor or dentist appointments should be charged to sick time unless other 
arrangements have been made with your manager. When practical, you are encouraged to 
schedule such appointments to occur outside of work hours. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 110 of 154



You must use accumulated sick leave in conjunction with income protection plans or other 
sources of disability income to achieve full pay for as long as possible. However, at no time can 
the combination of these exceed normal earnings. 
 
You are expected to notify your manager of absence due to illness or injury at the beginning of 
each workday during your absence. Exceptions to this include a serious accidental injury, 
hospitalization, or when it is known in advance that you will be absent for an extended period 
of time. 
 
A Medical Release Statement and Fitness for Duty Examination may be requested for review 
before you return to work in certain situations. 
 
Unused sick leave is not paid at termination. 
 
Sick leave is not accumulated while an employee is on a leave of absence without pay. In the 
case of a work-related accident or injury, you may use sick time to offset any hours not paid 
through Workers' Compensation, or to offset the reduction in regular pay until accumulated 
sick time is used. However, at no time can the combination of these exceed normal earnings, 
nor can you use more sick time than that accumulated. (See below.) 
 
Employees cannot use more sick leave than they have accrued. If an employee is absent from 
work due to illness or injury and lacks sufficient sick leave to cover the entire period, they must 
use available vacation leave, holiday leave or compensatory time off. If all leaves are exhausted 
the employee will be offered leave without pay in accordance with City policy. 
 
Employees who are found to have abused the City of North Plains sick leave policy may be 
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
 
 
Workers Compensation Time Loss Injury and Sick Leave 
 
If a City of North Plains employee is injured on the job and his/her workers’ compensation claim 
is accepted, the employee may request that the City of North Plains pay the employee the 
difference between time loss wages received under workers’ compensation and his/her regular 
salary rate. 
 
The dollar value paid by the City of North Plains will be converted to the employee’s hourly 
wage rate and charged on an hourly basis against the employee’s accrued leave. Wages paid by 
the City of North Plains for a leave period covered by workers’ compensation will be paid first 
from accrued sick leave. Upon exhaustion of the employee’s sick leave, the employee may 
choose to use his/her vacation or compensatory leave. Upon exhaustion of the employee’s sick 
leave, vacation leave or compensatory time, the City’s supplemental payments will stop. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 111 of 154



If an employee has received accrued leave pay from the City of North Plains while waiting for a 
time loss payment, then he/she must reimburse the City of North Plains any pay overages. 
 
If the workers’ compensation claim is denied, all future use of accrued leave for the time loss 
event will revert to the leave policies as written in the Employee Handbook. 

 
Catastrophic Sick Leave Donation and Use 
The purpose of donated sick leave is to assist any eligible employees with additional leave 
through the donations made by eligible co-workers. All full-time regular employees are eligible 
to request or donate sick time in cases deemed as “hardship” by the City Manager. All 
donations will be kept confidential and donors will remain anonymous. 
 
An employee who is receiving, or is eligible to receive, any type of retirement disability, short-
term or long-term disability insurance, or other supplemental income is not eligible to receive 
donated leave. 
 
Donated hours can be used to ensure an employee earns a full salary while ill or injured. They 
cannot be banked by the employee for future use. 
 
Donation requests must be for a minimum period of 10 working days. No more than 300 hours 
may be donated to any one employee. 
 
Donated leave may not be used to extend employment beyond the point that it would 
otherwise end by operation of law, rule, policy, or regulation. For example, if an employee 
would have otherwise been terminated due to layoff or other reasons, donated leave may not 
be used to extend employment. 
 

The Requesting Employee (Recipient) Must: 
 

o Provide documentation for a non-work-related seriously disabling illness or injury, 
as certified by a physician. 

 
o Have exhausted all vacation, sick, and compensatory accrued leave and not be on, 

or eligible for, disability leave or pay. 
 
o Have worked one full year at the City of North Plains. 
 
o Submit a request for donated leave to his/her immediate manager indicating reason 

and anticipated amount of lost work time. 
 

The Donating Employee: 
 

o Must complete and submit a designated form to the City Manager with the donating 
employee’s manager approval indicating the desire to donate. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 112 of 154



 
o May donate up to a maximum of 10% of sick leave accrued balance up to 40 hours, 

provided the donating employee retains a minimum of 240 hours sick leave. 
 
Any decision by the City Manager regarding Sick Leave Donation will be binding. Donated time 
is calculated using the number of hours donated, the donor’s hourly wage, and the recipient’s 
hourly wage. 
 
 
Leave Without Pay 
 
Leave without pay may be approved based on workload and business necessity, for limited 
duration, by the City Manager. Examples might include unpaid religious holidays or an 
extended medical leave. Maximum duration allowable can not exceed one year. All requests 
will be considered on a case-by-case basis. Instances of leave without pay will affect an 
employee’s anniversary date for the purpose of determining leave accrual rates. 
 
 
Bereavement Leave 
 
Employees who wish to take time off due to the death of an immediate family member should 
notify their manager immediately. For purposes of bereavement leave, “immediate family 
member” is typically defined as spouse, domestic partner, child, parent, spouse’s or domestic 
partner’s child, parent, sister, brother, grandchild or grandparent. Up to three (3) days of paid 
bereavement leave will be provided to benefits-eligible and certain other employees if they 
have successfully completed their initial introductory period. (This leave is separate from 
vacation or sick leave.) Bereavement leave is calculated on the base pay rate at the time of 
leave, and will normally be granted unless there are unusual business needs or staffing 
requirements. Employees may, with supervisory approval, use any available paid leave for 
additional time off as necessary, or for attendance at funerals of individuals who do not meet 
the criteria of “immediate family member.” 
 
 
Military Leave 
 
Military leave is granted to all employees who are absent from work because of service in the 
U.S. uniformed services in accordance with the Uniformed Services Employment and 
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) and state law. Generally, advanced notice is required 
before taking military service or training leave. 
 
 
Jury or Witness Duty 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 113 of 154



If you are notified or subpoenaed to serve as a witness or juror, you may obtain a leave of 
absence. 
 

o Length of Leave: Jury or witness duty leave is available for the period of time covered 
by the initial subpoena or court order and any involuntary extensions. 

 
o Request Procedure: You must notify your manager as soon as you receive the notice or 

as soon as is practicable in order for arrangements to be made to cover your position. If 
requested, you are expected to provide us with a copy of the subpoena or notice. 

 
o Pay while on Leave: You will be compensated at your regular rate of pay. Employees 

may keep the civic pay received for time served as a jurist.    
 

o Status of Benefits: Benefits are not affected by jury or witness duty leaves. 
 

o Reinstatement: You will be reinstated to the same position you held at the time your 
leave commenced, subject to the City of North Plains’ general reinstatement policy. 
When not in court, you are expected to report to work during regular work hours. If 
requested, you must supply proof of your court appearance or jury service. 

 
 
Domestic Violence Leave 
 
Employees who work an average of 25 hours or more per week for at least 180 days 
immediately before taking leave, and are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or 
stalking, or are parents of victims (minor children), may be eligible for this leave. 
 
The City of North Plains may grant an eligible employee a reasonable leave of absence if the 
employee or the employee’s minor child or dependent needs time off to deal with issues of 
domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 
 
Employees may use accrued sick or vacation leave; or comp time, to pay for time off. 
 
The City may provide reasonable safety accommodations for an employee who is a victim of 
domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, if the employee requests it, and if it does not 
impose an undue hardship on the City of North Plains. 
 
Examples of reasonable accommodation, but not limited to, may include: transfer, 
reassignment, modified schedule, unpaid leave from employment, changed work telephone 
number, changed work station, installed lock, implemented safety procedure, or any other 
adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility or work requirement. 

 
 
Leave Reporting 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 114 of 154



All City of North Plains employees (exempt and non-exempt) are required to report any 
vacation or anticipated sick leave in advance. 
 
All City of North Plains employees are required to submit all leave requests for sick, vacation, 
and/or compensatory leave, to their manager. The manager is responsible for authorizing or 
declining requests and communicating this back to employees. 

 
 
Federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) / Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA) 
Generally, city employees are not eligible to use FMLA or OFLA leave because of the City of 
North Plains’ small size.    
 
 
Military Leave 
 

Federal Military Family Leave (FMLA) 
The National Defense Authorization Act for 2008 (NDAA) amends FMLA to allow military 
family members (spouse, son, daughter, or parent) of people who are on, or about to go on 
active duty, leave entitlement  to manage their affairs (“qualifying exigency”). 

For purposes of qualifying exigency leave, family members of covered military members 
called to active duty may take leave for one or more of the following qualifying exigencies: 

(1) to address any issues which arise from the military member learning of a call or 
order to duty seven or less calendar days prior to deployment;  

(2) to attend military events or sponsored family support programs;  
(3) to arrange for alternative childcare or school attendance, attend childcare or 

school meetings, or provide childcare on an urgent immediate need basis when 
necessitated by the call to duty;  

(4) to make or update financial and legal arrangements to address the military 
member’s absence, or to serve as the military member’s Representative in 
obtaining, arranging or appealing military service benefits;  

(5) to attend counseling (not provided by a health care provider) for oneself, the 
military member, or child of the military member;  

(6) to spend time (up to 5 days of leave for each instance) with a military member on 
temporary rest and recuperation leave;  

(7) to attend post-deployment activities, and  
(8) any other events which employer and employee agree arise out of the military 

member’s call to duty, qualify as an exigency, and agree as to  the timing and 
duration of leave. 

Military Caregiver Leave: The NDAA FMLA amendments also allow up to 26 weeks of 
unpaid FMLA caregiver leave for a servicemember who incurs a serious illness or injury in 
the course of active duty. This leave is called “Servicemember Family Leave” (SMFL). A 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 115 of 154



caregiver may be the spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of kin (defined as nearest blood 
relative). For this leave only, a “serious injury or illness” is defined as any injury or illness 
incurred in the line of duty that “may render the servicemember medically unfit to perform 
the duties of the member’s office, grade, rank, or rating.” This means that the SMFL serious 
health condition may not meet the definition of other FMLA serious health condition. 

 
Oregon Military Family Leave (OMFLA) 
 
Employees who work an average of 20 hours per week, regardless of how long the 
employee has worked for the City of North Plains, may be eligible for this leave. The 
OMFLA provides spouses of armed service members with 14 days of unpaid leave each time 
an employee’s spouse is deployed for military service. In order to take this leave, the 
employee must give notice to the employer within five days of receiving official notice of 
the spouse’s deployment. The 14 days count against the employee’s 12-week OFLA 
allotment for the year; this means the days are included in, not in addition to, the 12 weeks 
of family leave available under Oregon’s Family Leave Act (OFLA). Benefits and 
Compensation may be continued during OMFLA leave. Upon completion of OMFLA, an 
employee is eligible to be restored to employment in the position held at the beginning of 
the leave. No retaliation or discrimination may occur because an employee has requested 
OMFLA leave. 

 
OFLA and Workers’ Comp: OFLA automatically begins if an employee, who is on workers’ 
compensation time loss refuses an offer of light-duty employment. 
 
 
Designation of Leave 
 
The OFLA leave year, for purposes of calculating leave, is a rolling (backward) twelve-month 
year. If you or your family member’s circumstances qualify for OFLA protection, hours missed 
cannot be cause for discipline or retaliation.  
 
Military family members using leave for any “qualifying exigency,” do not receive an additional 
12-weeks leave. The leave is subject to the same 12-week limitation as most other OFLA 
situations. 
 
If an employee does not request OFLA, the City of North Plains will designate the leave as 
OFLA after five (5) consecutive work days missed, due to a qualifying condition. Please 
remember the Sick Leave policy for absences of more than five days: “If you miss more than 
three (3) consecutive days work, you may be required to provide a release from your doctor before 
returning to work.” 
 
The time off may be taken in full, intermittent, or reduced time increments, to the extent 
allowed by law. Full, intermittent, or reduced time will be determined after the City of North 
Plains reviews your physician’s recommendation and the applicability of OFLA laws. Due to the 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 116 of 154



complexity of the laws, please contact the City Manager for information specific to your 
situation. 
 
 
Length of Leave 
 
The City of North Plains uses a “rolling” 12 month period, measured backward from the date an 
employee uses leave. Typically, an eligible employee is entitled to as much as 12 weeks of 
OFLA leave in any one-year period. However, there are some circumstances that may entitle an 
employee to additional leave; for more information, please contact the City Manager. 
 
 
Request Procedure 
 
In situations where the need for medical leave is foreseeable, you are expected to give 30 days 
written notice. You must also complete and deliver the Notice for Family Medical Leave form 
and the Health Care Provider Certification as soon as possible, but no later than 15 days from 
the requested leave date. If you are unable to bring this information to the City Manager, the 
City Manager may complete and submit the necessary paperwork on your behalf, with your 
permission. 
 
If you are taking family and medical leave to care for a family member with a serious health 
condition or adoption or placement of a foster child, proof of the relationship may be required. 
 
 
Pay While on Leave 
 
You will be required to use any accrued vacation, sick leave, comp time, or other paid leave 
available to you during your family medical leave. You may choose which type of your accrued 
leave you want to use. When all accrued leaves (vacation, sick, comp time) are exhausted, the 
balance of the eligible leave time will be unpaid, except as required by law. 
 
Full or partial absences for exempt employees may be deducted accordingly from available 
leave balances. Once all accrued leave is exhausted, full day absences may be deducted from 
salary, as the law allows. Paid and unpaid leave combined usually will not exceed 12 weeks. 
 
 
Status of Benefits 
 
The City of North Plains will continue to pay our share of your health insurance premiums 
during an approved family medical leave. The employee will be required to pay the full 
premium for unpaid OFLA leave. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 117 of 154



You are responsible for paying your share of health insurance premiums prior to the due date of 
the premium payment. If eligible, you may continue other insurance benefits by paying the full 
cost of the premium for any leave in excess of four work weeks in duration. Premium payments 
must be received by the due date or coverage will be discontinued.  
 
Vacation and sick leave will not continue to accrue during periods of unpaid OFLA leave. 
 
 
Reinstatement 
 
At the end of OFLA leave, you are entitled to return to your former job, reinstated with all 
rights and benefits, pay and other terms and conditions of employment. If your job position has 
been eliminated, you are entitled to return to an equivalent position with all rights and benefits, 
pay and other terms and conditions of employment. You may be required to present a 
certificate from the health care provider in order to return to work. The City of North Plains 
may require you to participate in a fitness-for-duty exam (at no out of pocket cost to you) if it is 
related and consistent with business necessity. Working a reduced number of hours may be 
permitted, if approved by the City of North Plains, and only if such leave is determined to be 
medically necessary and supported by medical documentation. 
 
 
Complaints 
 
Complaints regarding FMLA/OFLA can be filed with the City Manager or City Attorney. 
 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 118 of 154



Health and Safety 
 
City of North Plains is committed to providing our employees with a safe and healthy work 
environment.  To accomplish this goal, both management and employees must diligently 
undertake efforts to promote safety. Safety is everyone’s responsibility! 
 
The City of North Plains, through its Safety Committee, develops and implements safety rules 
and regulations contained in the Safety Manual. The manual is accessible to all City of North 
Plains employees both in electronic and printed forms. This process is ongoing and requires 
periodic safety audits. Safety audits are undertaken to determine the necessity and feasibility 
of providing devices or safeguards to make the workplace safe and healthful. City of North 
Plains will educate employees as to hazards of the workplace and train employees as to such 
hazards and the proper and safe method to perform job tasks. 
 
You are expected to give your full-time skill and attention to the performance of your job 
responsibilities utilizing the highest standard of care and good judgment. You are also 
expected to follow all safety rules and regulations at all times including the use of protective 
clothing and equipment, attendance at all training sessions related to your job, and follow the 
directions of warning signs or signals and/or directions of supervisory personnel. 
 
Safety rules and regulations may be issued or modified from time to time; notice of these 
changes are typically communicated via email. 
 
 
Drug-free Workplace 
 
The City of North Plains is committed to maintaining a drug-free workplace in the interests of 
good business practices that provide a productive, safe, and healthy working environment for 
all employees. 
 
Any unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of illegal drugs or 
other controlled substances on the City of North Plains’ time, premises, or while operating a 
vehicle on the job is strictly prohibited. In addition, any unauthorized possession or use of 
alcoholic beverages on the job is prohibited. 
 
Employees undergoing prescribed medical treatment with a prescription drug or over-the-
counter medication that will impair behavior or work performance should report such fact to 
his/her supervisor. The employee is not required to inform the supervisor what medication(s) 
he/she is taking. The City of North Plains has the right to reassign duties or to place an 
employee on temporary leave of absence if the employee is unable to properly and safely 
perform his or her duties. In the event an employee needs to take a prescription drug or over-

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 119 of 154



the-counter medication while at work, he or she should keep the medication in its original 
container so that it can be properly identified. 
 
The City of North Plains may use drug or alcohol testing as part of its investigation of an 
altercation, accident (or near-miss incident), employee’s irrational/inappropriate behavior, or 
on-the-job driving under the influence (DUI) as provided by law. 
 
In the event an employee encounters work or personal problems related to his/her use of 
alcoholic beverages, drugs, or other controlled substances, he/she is encouraged to seek 
appropriate medical care or counseling. The City Manager has information on substance abuse 
treatment programs. Information or referral will be provided on a confidential basis to our 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) if requested by the benefits-eligible employee, or as 
directed by a manager. The City has group insurance benefits that provide coverage for certain 
medical services related to drug or alcohol dependency treatment. 
 
 
Smoking in the Workplace 
 
The City of North Plains complies with all laws prohibiting smoking in public buildings. The City 
believes that smoking is a danger to health and is a cause of material annoyance and 
discomfort to those who are present. As a result, smoking is prohibited anywhere on city 
properties, including those closed to the public or in city vehicles. 
 
 
Workplace Violence 
 
The City of North Plains recognizes the importance of a safe workplace for employees, 
members, customers, vendors, contractors, and the general public. A work environment that is 
safe and comfortable enhances employee satisfaction as well as productivity. Therefore, 
threats and acts of violence made by an employee or member of the public against another 
person’s life, health, well-being, family, or property will be dealt with in a zero tolerance 
manner by the City of North Plains. 
 
Should situations occur which present a risk of harm to employees and others, all employees 
have an obligation to report any incidents that pose a risk of harm to employees or others 
associated with the City of North Plains or which threaten the safety, security or financial 
interests of our organization. Employees should make such reports directly to the Police Chief, 
City Manager and/or City Attorney. 
 
All information related to the reports, including the name of the reporting employees, will be 
kept as confidential as possible under the circumstances. The City Manager or his/her designee 
will notify the reporting employee of any action it takes in response to the report. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 120 of 154



The City may conduct an investigation of a current employee where the employee's behavior 
raises concerns about work performance, reliability, honesty, or potentially threatens the 
safety of co-workers or others. An employee investigation may include investigation of criminal 
records; it may also include a search of desks, work areas, file cabinets, voice mail systems and 
computer systems. 
 
 
Employee Right to Know/Written Hazard Communication Program 
 
The City of North Plains provides a written Hazard Communication Program so that all 
employees will be aware of chemical hazards in the workplace. By becoming knowledgeable 
about this information, you can help prevent injuries and illnesses from chemical exposure. If 
you have any questions regarding chemical hazards, do not delay in asking your manager. 
 
The following safety precautions have been taken to prevent injuries and illnesses from 
chemical exposure: 
 

Container Labeling 
 
The City of North Plains’ Loss Control or Safety Committee Representative will verify that 
all containers received for use will: 
 
o Clearly label its contents. 

o Note the appropriate hazard warning. 

o List the manufacturer's name and address. 

 
Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) 
 
You will find either the paper documents or electronic access information to obtain a MSDS 
at your worksite. If there are new chemicals in use for which you are unable to obtain a 
Material Safety Data Sheet, you should immediately contact the Department Head before 
using the chemical or the machine containing it. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 121 of 154



Separation  
 
Separation from employment with the City of North Plains occurs when an employee 
voluntarily resigns, retires, is laid off, or is terminated. 
 
 
Resignation 
 
While an employee may resign at any time, a two-week notice is customary. The resignation 
should be written and should indicate the anticipated last day of work as well as reasons for the 
resignation; the employee may only withdraw a resignation at the discretion of the City 
Manager. 
 
Employees who miss three or more consecutive work days without contacting the City of North 
Plains are typically considered to have voluntary terminated their employment. 
 
 
Job Elimination and/or Reduction in Work Hours or Staff 
 
It is the City of North Plains’ desire to avoid circumstances that require a reduction in hours or 
staff, but we also recognize situations may arise where the City may need to make such 
reductions. Depending upon the circumstances, the City may respond in a variety of ways, 
including offering a voluntary reduction in hours or days of work, reducing the work hours or 
days of work, reducing expenses by other means, or by a reduction of the workforce. Some, but 
not all, of the factors that may be considered for any reduction-of-hours, or staff are: 
 

o Department, location, or job; 
o Job knowledge, skill and ability to do the required work; 
o Performance, attendance, safety and disciplinary history and records; 
o Possession of licenses, registrations and or certifications required by the job; 
o Creativity and teamwork skills; 
o Demonstrated willingness to go the extra mile for the City of North Plains, coworkers 

and customers; and, 
o Efficiency of City operation. 

 
Evaluation of these factors is at the discretion of the City of North Plains City Manager with 
input from managers. After receiving an explanation of the layoff procedure, the employee(s) 
will be given a letter describing the conditions of the layoff, such as effects on benefits, the 
possibility of re-employment, and any outplacement services, etc. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 122 of 154



If practicable at the time of lay-off, the City of North Plains may provide outplacement services 
on a limited basis. The City may also provide re-employment services to affected employees 
laid off through no fault of their own, for a period of up to six months from the date of lay-off. 
The order of recall may be determined using the above factors. An employee who is not re-
hired during that period will be separated from employment. 
 
 
Termination 
 
All employees are hired at the City of North Plains for an indefinite period of time and may be 
terminated at any time, with or without reason or notice. Our philosophy and general practice 
is to provide employees who have completed the initial introductory period of employment 
with an opportunity to correct minor performance and conduct problems before termination is 
implemented. Some of the ways the City of North Plains offers you an opportunity to correct 
performance and conduct problems are verbal counseling, written warning, and suspension 
without pay for a designated period of time. (See the “Corrective Action” section of this 
handbook.) Nothing in this paragraph precludes City of North Plains from exercising its options 
as an at-will employer, so employees should not assume that the City of North Plains will 
progressively work through the methods listed to help you improve your performance. 
 
Before reaching a final decision to terminate an employee, the City of North Plains typically 
follows “due process,” which means the affected employee will be told in writing why 
termination is being considered, and the employee will be offered an opportunity to respond to 
the written notice. Actions involving suspensions or terminations may be appealed. Appeals of 
actions proposed by Department Heads may be submitted to the City Manager. Appeals of the 
City Manager’s decision may be submitted to the City Council. 
 
 
Exit Interview 
 
An exit interview may be scheduled with the City Manager or his/her designee, when an 
employee leaves the City of North Plains. This gives the departing employee an opportunity to 
offer constructive feedback, positive comments, or address any unresolved issues prior to 
leaving. This also allows the City of North Plains to solicit the employee’s candid opinions, as 
well as suggestions, for improvement at the City of North Plains. We encourage departing 
employees to participate in an exit interview when they separate from employment, and we 
value all opinions and suggestions received throughout this process. 
 
Prior to the last day of employment, the exiting employee will be provided with information to 
help ease the transition, such as benefit continuation rights and responsibilities, and final 
paycheck information. 
 
 
Return of Organization Property 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 123 of 154



 
The employee must return all City of North Plains’ property in possession by the last day of 
employment. City of North Plains’ property may include credit cards, keys, ID cards, cellular 
phones, pagers, tools, software, computer disks, this Handbook, and any other items belonging 
to the City of North Plains. 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 124 of 154



CITY CHARTER 
As recommended to the voters by City Council on August 20, 2007 

 

 

PREAMBLE 

 

 We the voters of North Plains, Oregon exercise our power to the fullest extent possible under the 

Oregon Constitution and laws of the state, and enact this Home Rule Charter. 
 

Chapter I 

NAMES AND BOUNDARIES 

 

Section 1.  Title.  This charter may be referred to as the 2007 North Plains Charter. 

 

Section 2.  Name.  the City of North Plains, Oregon, continues as a municipal corporation with 

the name City of North Plains. 

 

Section 3.  Boundaries.  The city includes all territory within its boundaries as they now exist or 

are legally modified.  The city will maintain as a public record an accurate and current 

description of the boundaries. 

 

Section 4. Voluntary Annexations.  All annexations not required by state law must be submitted 

to a city-wide election and obtain approval by a majority of those voting in the election before the 

annexations becomes effective.   

 

Chapter II 

POWERS 

 

Section 5.  Powers.  The city has all powers that the constitutions, statutes and common law of 

the United States and Oregon expressly or impliedly grant or allow the city, as fully as though 

this charter specifically enumerated each of those powers. 

 

Section 6.  Construction.  The charter will be liberally construed so that the city may exercise 

fully all powers possible under this charter and under United States and Oregon law.  

 

Section 7.  Distribution.  The Oregon Constitution reserves initiative and referendum powers as 

to all municipal legislation to city voters.  This charter vests all other city powers in the council 

except as the charter otherwise provides.  The council has legislative, administrative and quasi-

judicial authority.  The council exercises legislative authority by ordinance, administrative 

authority by resolution, and quasi-judicial authority by order.  The council may not delegate its 

authority to adopt ordinances.  

 

 

Chapter III 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 125 of 154



COUNCIL 

 

Section 8.  Council.  The council consists of a mayor and six councilors nominated and elected 

from the city at large. The Council appoints members of commissions and committees 

established by ordinance or resolution. 

 

Section 9.  Mayor.  The mayor presides over and facilitates council meetings, preserves order, 

enforces council rules, and determines the order of business under council rules.  The mayor is a 

voting member of the council, except as provided in Section 33 herein, and has no veto authority. 

The mayor must sign all records of council decisions.  The mayor serves as the political head of 

the city government.  The mayor may temporarily cease to chair a council meeting and delegate 

those functions to another council member.  

 

Section 10.  Council President.  At its first meeting each year, the council must elect a president 

from its membership.  The president presides in the absence of the mayor and acts as mayor when 

the mayor is unable to perform duties.  

 

Section 11.  Rules.  The council must adopt by ordinance or resolution rules to govern its 

meetings. 

 

Section 12.  Meetings.  The council must meet at least once a month at a time and place 

designated by its rules, and may meet at other times in accordance with the rules. 

 

Section 13.  Quorum.  A majority of the council members is a quorum to conduct business, but a 

smaller number may meet and compel attendance of absent members as prescribed by council 

rules.  

 

Section 14.  Vote Required.  The express approval of a majority of a quorum of the council is 

necessary for any council decision, except when this charter requires approval by a majority of 

the council. 

 

Section 15.  Record.  A record of council meetings must be kept in a manner prescribed by the 

council rules.  

 

Chapter IV 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 

 

Section 16.  Ordinances.  The council will exercise its legislative authority by adopting 

ordinances.  The enacting clause for all ordinances must state “the City of North Plains ordains as 

follows:” 

 

Section 17.  Ordinance Adoption.  

 

(a) Except as authorized by subsection (b), adoption of an ordinance requires approval by a 

majority of the council at two meetings. 

(b)  The council may adopt an ordinance at a single meeting if:  

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 126 of 154



       i. No council member present objects, and  

       ii. The ordinance is provided to each council member and made available to the public at least 

one week before the meeting. 

 

(c) Any substantive amendment to a proposed ordinance must be read aloud or made available in 

writing to the public before the council adopts the ordinance at that meeting. 

 

(d) After the adoption of an ordinance, the vote of each member must be entered into the council 

minutes. 

 

(e) After adoption of an ordinance, the city custodian of records must endorse it with the date of 

adoption and the custodian’s name and title. 

 

Section 18.  Effective Date of Ordinances.  Ordinances normally take effect on the 30th day after 

adoption, or on a later day provided in the ordinance.  An ordinance may take effect as soon as 

adopted or other date less than 30 days after adoption if it contains an emergency clause. 

 

 

Chapter V 

ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITY 

 

Section 19.  Resolutions.  The council will normally exercise its administrative authority by 

approving resolutions.  The approving clause for resolutions may state “the City of North Plains 

resolves as follows:” 

 

Section 20.  Resolution Approval.  

 

(a) Approval of a resolution or any other council administrative decision requires approval by the 

council at one meeting.  

 

(b) Any substantive amendment to a resolution must be read aloud or made available in writing to 

the public before the council adopts the resolution at that meeting. 

 

(c) After approval of a resolution or other administrative decision, the vote of each member must 

be entered into the council minutes. 

 

(d) After approval of a resolution, the city custodian of records must endorse it with the date of 

approval and the custodian’s name and title. 

 

Section 21.  Effective Date of Resolutions.  Resolutions and other administrative decisions take 

effect on the date of approval, or on a later day provided in the resolution.   

 

 

 

 

Chapter VI 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 127 of 154



QUASI-JUDICIAL AUTHORITY 

 

Section 22.  Orders.  The council will normally exercise its quasi-judicial authority by approving 

orders.  The approving clause for orders may state “the City of North Plains orders as follows:” 

 

Section 23.  Order Approval.  

 

(a) Approval of an order or any other council quasi-judicial decision requires approval by the 

council at one meeting.  

 

(b) Any substantive amendment to an order must be read aloud or made available in writing to 

the public at the meeting before the council adopts the order. 

 

(c) After approval of an order or other council quasi-judicial decision, the vote of each member 

must be entered in the council minutes. 

 

(d) After approval of an order, the city custodian of records must endorse it with the date of 

approval and the custodian’s name and title. 

 

Section 24.  Effective Date of Orders.  Orders and other quasi-judicial decisions take effect on the 

date of final approval, or on a later day provided in the order.   

 

 

Chapter VII 

ELECTIONS 

 

Section 25.  Councilors.  The term of a councilor in office when this charter is adopted is the term 

for which the councilor was elected.  At each general election after the adoption, three councilors 

will be elected for four-year terms. 

 

Section 26.  Mayor.  The term of the mayor in office when this charter is adopted is the term for 

which the Mayor was elected.   At every other general election after the adoption, a mayor will be 

elected for a four-year term. 

 

Section 27.  State Law.  City elections must conform to state law except as this charter or 

ordinances provide otherwise.  All elections for city offices must be nonpartisan. 

 

Section 28.  Qualifications.  

 

(a) The mayor and each councilor must be a qualified elector under state law, and reside within 

the city for at least one year immediately before election or appointment to office.  

 

(b) No person may be a candidate at a single election for more than one city office. 

 

(c) Neither the mayor nor a councilor may be employed by the city, or be related to an employee 

of the city.  To determine relationship for this subsection, refer to the Oregon Revised Statutes 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 128 of 154



definition of family.  If there is a city employee related to a councilor at the time this charter 

takes effect, the employee may continue to work for the city subject to the city’s personnel 

policies.    

 

(d) The council is the final judge of the election and qualifications of its members. 

 

Section 29.  Nominations.  The council must adopt an ordinance prescribing the manner for a 

person to be nominated to run for mayor or a city councilor position.  

 

Section 30.  Terms.  The term of an officer elected at a general election begins at the first council 

meeting of the year immediately after the election, and continues until the successor qualifies and 

assumes the office. 

 

Section 31.  Oath.  The mayor and each councilor must swear or affirm to faithfully perform the 

duties of the office and support the constitutions and laws of the United States and Oregon. 

 

Section 32.  Vacancies:  The mayor or a council office becomes vacant:  

 

(a) Upon the incumbent’s: 

(1)  Death,  

(2)  Adjudicated incompetence, or 

(3)  Recall from the office.   

 

(b) Upon declaration by the council after the incumbent’s:  

(1)  Failure to qualify for the office within 10 days of the time the term of office is to begin,  

(2)  Absence from the city for 30 days without council consent, or from all council meetings 

within a 60-day period,  

(3)  Ceasing to reside in the city,  

(4)  Ceasing to be a qualified elector under state law,  

(5)  Conviction of a public offense punishable by loss of liberty,   

(6)  Resignation from the office, or 

(7)  Removal under Section 34(i). 

 

Section 33.  Filling Vacancies.  A mayor or councilor vacancy will be filled by appointment by a 

majority of the remaining council members.  The mayor shall have no vote in filling a vacancy 

unless a tie-vote situation occurs, in which event the mayor shall cast the tie-breaking vote. The 

appointee’s term of office runs from appointment until expiration of the term of office of the last 

person elected to that office.  If a disability prevents a council member from attending council 

meetings or a member is absent from the city, a majority of the council may appoint a councilor 

pro tem. 

 

 

 

 

Chapter VIII 

APPOINTIVE OFFICERS 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 129 of 154



 

Section 34.  City Manager.  

 

(a) The office of city manager is established as the administrative head of the city government.  

The city manager is responsible to the mayor and council for the proper administration of all city 

business.  The city manager will assist the mayor and council in the development of city policies, 

and carry out policies established by ordinances and resolutions. 

(b) A majority of the council must appoint and may remove the manager. The appointment must 

be made without regard to political considerations and solely on the basis of education and 

experience in competencies and practices of local government management. 

 

(c) The manager need not reside in the city. 

 

(d) The manager may be appointed for a definite or an indefinite term, and may be removed at 

any time by a majority of the council. The council must fill the office by appointment as soon as 

practicable after the vacancy occurs.   

 

(e) The manager must: 

(1)  Attend all council meetings unless excused by the mayor or council; 

(2)  Make reports and recommendations to the mayor and council about the needs of the city; 

(3)  Administer and enforce all city ordinances, resolutions, franchises, leases, contracts, 

permits, and other city decisions; 

(4) Appoint, supervise and remove city employees; 

(5)  Organize city departments and administrative structure; 

(6)  Prepare and administer the annual city budget; 

(7)  Administer city utilities and property;  

(8)  Encourage and support regional and intergovernmental cooperation; 

(9)  Promote cooperation among the council, staff and citizens in developing city policies, and 

building a sense of community;  

(10) Perform other duties as directed by the council; 

(11) Delegate duties, but remain responsible for acts of all subordinates. 

 

(f) The manager has no authority over the council or over the judicial functions of the municipal 

judge.  

 

(g) The manager and other employees designated by the council may sit at council meetings but 

have no vote. The manager may take part in all council discussions. 

 

(h) When the manager is temporarily disabled from acting as manager or when the office of 

manager becomes vacant, the council must appoint a manager pro tem.  The manager pro tem has 

the authority and duties of manager, except that a pro tem manager may appoint or remove 

employees only with council approval.  

 

(i) No council member may directly or indirectly attempt to coerce the manager or a candidate for 

the office of manager in the appointment or removal of any city employee, or in administrative 

decisions regarding city property or contracts. Violation of this prohibition is grounds for 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 130 of 154



removal from office by a majority of the council after a public hearing.  In council meetings, 

councilors may discuss or suggest anything with the manager relating to city business. 

 

Section 35.  City Attorney.  The office of city attorney is established as the chief legal officer of 

the city government.  A majority of the council must appoint and may remove the attorney.   

 

Section 36.  Municipal Court and Judge. 

 

(a)  A majority of the council may appoint and remove a municipal judge.  A municipal judge 

will hold court in the city at such place as the council directs.  The court will be known as the 

Municipal Court.  

 

(b) All proceedings of this court will conform to state laws governing justices of the peace and 

justice courts. 

 

(c) All areas within the city and areas outside the city as permitted by state law are within the 

territorial jurisdiction of the court. 

 

(d) The municipal court has jurisdiction over every offense created by city ordinance. The court 

may enforce forfeitures and other penalties created by such ordinances. The court also has 

jurisdiction under state law unless limited by city ordinance. 

 

(e) The municipal judge may:  

(1)  Render judgments and impose sanctions on persons and property;  

(2)  Order the arrest of anyone accused of an offense against the city;  

(3)  Commit to jail or admit to bail anyone accused of a city offense;  

(4)  Issue and compel obedience to subpoenas;  

(5)  Compel witnesses to appear and testify and jurors to serve for trials before the court;  

(6)  Penalize contempt of court;  

(7)  Issue processes necessary to enforce judgments and orders of the court;  

(8)  Issue search warrants; and  

(9)  Perform other judicial and quasi-judicial functions assigned by ordinance.  

 

(f) The council may appoint and may remove municipal judges pro tem.   

 

(g) The council may transfer some or all of the functions of the municipal court to an appropriate 

state court. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chapter IX 

PERSONNEL 

 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 131 of 154



Section 37.  Compensation.  The council must authorize the compensation of city officers and 

employees as part of its approval of the annual city budget.   

 

Section 38.  Merit Systems.  Subject to collective bargaining agreements between the city and its 

employees, the council by resolution will determine the rules governing recruitment, selection, 

promotion, transfer, demotion, suspension, layoff, and dismissal of city employees based on 

merit and fitness and any collective bargaining agreement in effect. 

 

 

Chapter X 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Section 39 Procedure.  The council may by ordinance provide for procedures governing the 

making, altering, vacating, or abandoning of a public improvement.  A proposed public 

improvement may be suspended for six months upon remonstrance by owners of the real property 

to be specially assessed for the improvement. The number of owners necessary to suspend the 

action will be determined by ordinance.  

 

Section 40.  Special Assessments.  The procedure for levying, collecting and enforcing special 

assessments for public improvements or other services charged against real property will be 

governed by ordinance.  

 

Chapter XI 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

Section 41.  Debt.  City indebtedness may not exceed debt limits imposed by state law.  A charter 

amendment is not required to authorize city indebtedness. 

 

Section 42.  Ordinance Continuation.  All ordinances consistent with this charter in force when it 

takes effect remain in effect until amended or repealed.  

 

Section 43.  Repeal.  All charter provisions adopted before this charter takes effect are repealed. 

 

Section 44.  Severability.  The terms of this charter are severable. If any provision is held invalid 

by a court, the invalidity does not affect any other part of the charter. 

 

Section 45.  Time of Effect.  This charter takes effect January 1, 2008. 

 

 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 132 of 154



Acknowledgement of Receipt of the Employee Handbook 
 
 
Each employee is expected to acknowledge the receipt of this handbook by signing an 
Acknowledgement of Receipt in the following form: 
 
 

1.  I have received a printed or electronic copy of the City of North Plains Employee 
Handbook. 

 
2.  I understand that I am responsible for becoming and remaining familiar with the 

policies, procedures, requirements, and other information contained in both the 
handbook and on the company intranet. 

 
3.  The policies, procedures, requirements, and other information contained in the 

handbook may be modified or deleted, and others may be added, at any time. 
 
4.  I understand that I will receive notice of any significant change(s) in the employee 

handbook. 
 
5.  This handbook supersedes all prior statements of the City of North Plains which conflict 

or may conflict with it. I understand that any conflicting prior statement is superseded. 
 
6.  This handbook is not a contract. Neither the handbook’s statements of the City of North 

Plains policies, procedures, requirements, and other information, nor any 
representations made by any management representative at the time of hire or at any 
time during employment, are to be interpreted as a contract between the City of North 
Plains and any employees, unless expressly so stated in writing signed by the City 
Manager. 

 
 
 
 

Employee Signature                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               Date 
 
 
 
 

Employee Name (Please Print)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          Date 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 133 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8H    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion on progress of reviewing draft city policies 

Request:  Council to discuss their progress of reviewing the draft city policies 
distributed at the 9/16/13 council meeting. 
 
Background:   The draft policy manual was distributed at the 9/16/13 council meeting.  
Council was asked to review this packet of material for approval at the 10/21/13 
meeting.  Councilor Lenahan asked for time at the 10/7/13 meeting for the councilors to 
review their progress and to be able to ask questions of staff and other councilors. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   Review and adoption of the policies has no direct fiscal impact.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  No motion needed, for information only. 
 
Attachment – None. These draft policy packets were distributed at the 9/16/13 meeting 
and can be reviewed from the City Council Packet posted on-line at 
http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Rep
ort_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 134 of 154

http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Report_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf
http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Report_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf


 

Agenda Item No: 8I    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion of street naming policy 

Request:  Council discuss policy for street naming. 
 
Background:   The City’s ordinances provide little guidance regarding the naming of 
streets.  In the past developers could select names that would be adopted by the City 
when improvements were dedicated.   
 
When the Public Works Guidelines were revised last year it included a requirement that 
the City Council approve names of streets. 
 
The City is likely to approve the names of some new streets within the coming months.  
For example the proposed names within the sunset Ridge Subdivision are: 
Nestor, Virgil, Helena, Cressida, Demetrius, Gloria, Lysander, Rowe, and Turney.  
(Most of these are combination of classic mythical names.)  
 
It is common for subdivisions to have a common thread with their names.  For example 
trees, colleges, or flowers are often associated with certain neighborhoods.  North 
Plains’ maps still reflect the names given to streets with the original plat developed in 
1911. 
 
Staff is asking Council for guidance on the selection of names.  A draft policy is 
attached that promotes using the names of families historically linked to North Plains, 
former Mayors and parade grand marshals.   
 
The policy also provides guidance on the renaming of existing streets if that is 
requested in the future.  Staff is not aware of any such requests. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   Adopting the policy has no fiscal impact.   
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  No motion needed, for information only.  
 
Attachment: Policy 
 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 135 of 154



Policy: 
3.30.609.002 - STREET NAMES AND TRAFFIC CONTROL 

Street names for all new development will be approved by the City prior to recording of 
any maps or plats.  The development shall pay for all street name and traffic control 
signage prior to the signing of the final plat or map by the City.  All new Signage will be 
provided by the developer and installed by the City in new developments. 

Street names shall conform with the established grid system(s) in the City and its UGB.  
No new street name shall be used which will duplicate or be confused with the name of 
existing streets in the UGB area. 

Building numbering will be issued by the City of North Plains. 

 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 136 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8J   

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 2, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  Finance Director Rachael Lembo 

Subject: FY2013-14 Budget Update 

Request:  Enclosed are the budget to actual reports for FY13-14 through September 
2013.   
 
Background:  We are now through the first quarter of FY13-14.  Most expenses are at 
or below 25% of budget.  The few line items that are over 25% are over because of 
annual expenses that have already been incurred, such as insurance and car lease 
payments.  Property tax revenues are low but that is normal as most collections are 
made in November and December.  Other revenues appear to be on track with the 
budget.      
 
Fiscal Impact:  This item is for informational purposes only.    
 
Sample Motion:  This item is for informational purposes only.   

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 137 of 154



JULY-SEPT

REVENUES: 

Property Taxes - Current & Delenquent $ 352,922          $ 3,921              $ (349,002)         1%

Charges for Services 7,000              642                 (6,359)             9%

Licenses/Permits/Fees 278,650          48,613            (230,037)         17%

Intergovernmental 138,205          42,535            (95,670)           31%

Fines and Forfeitures 52,229            10,207            (42,021)           20%

Interest on Investments 4,410              1,263              (3,147)             29%

Grants and Donations 30,500            18,994            (11,506)           62%

Miscellaneous 16,000            1,431              (14,569)           9%

Total Revenues $ 879,916          $ 127,605          $ (731,975)         

COUNCIL UPDATE
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ORIGINAL

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS

-NEGATIVE
POSITIVE

VARIANCE

ACTUALBUDGET

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 138 of 154



EXPENDITURES: 

Police Department
Personal Services $ 264,333              $ 67,367              $ 196,966       25%
Materials and Services 110,717              46,481              64,236         42%

  Total Police Department 375,050              113,848            261,202       30%

Library Department
Personal Services 147,099              32,042              115,057       22%
Materials and Services 45,930                7,888                38,042         17%

  Total Library Department 193,029              39,930              153,099       21%

Parks Deparment
Materials and Services: 26,760                2,660                24,100         10%

  Total Parks Department 26,760                2,660                24,100         10%

City Planning Department
Personal Services 9,816                  -                        9,816           0%
Materials and Services 5,850                  -                        5,850           0%

  Total City Planning Department 15,666                -                        15,666         0%

Contingency 100,000              -                        100,000       0%

    Total Expenditures 710,506              156,438            554,068       22%

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures 169,410              (28,833)             (177,907)     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 62,000                -                        -                  
Transfers Out (318,406)            -                        -                  

    Total Other Financing
     Sources (Uses) (256,406)            -                        -                  

Net Change in Fund Balance (86,996)              (28,833)             (177,907)     

Beginning Fund Balance 1,017,900           1,071,024         53,124         

Ending Fund Balance $ 930,904              $ 1,042,191         $ 111,287       

VARIANCE

ACTUALBUDGET
ORIGINAL

-NEGATIVE
POSITIVEJULY-SEPT

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS

GENERAL FUND

COUNCIL UPDATE
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 139 of 154



JULY-SEPT

REVENUES: 

Licenses, Permits, Fees $ 38,150              $ 12,610         $ (25,540)            33%

Intergovernmental 115,500            29,802         (85,698)            26%

Interest on Investments 2,900                268              (2,632)              9%

Grants 268,000            52,132         (215,868)          19%

Miscellaneous 1,000                936              (64)                   94%

Total Revenues 425,550            95,748         (329,802)          22%

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services 33,952              5,547           28,405              16%

Capital Outlay 368,000            79,526         288,474            22%

Contingency 50,000              -                   50,000              0%

Total Expenditures 451,952            85,074         366,878            19%

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (26,402)            10,675         37,077              

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers Out (231,966)          -                   (231,966)          0%

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (231,966)          -                   (231,966)          

Net Change In Fund Balance (258,368)          10,675         (194,889)          

Beginning Fund Balance 513,369            570,236       56,867              

Ending Fund Balance $ 255,001            $ 580,911       $ 325,910            

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COUNCIL UPDATE

STREET TAX, TRANSPORTATION AND STORM DRAINAGE FUND

ACTUAL

VARIANCE

POSITIVE

-NEGATIVE

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 140 of 154



REVENUES: 

Licenses, Permits, Fees $ 97,750            $ 46,920            $ (50,830)           48%
Interest   1,925               350                  (1,575)             18%

Total Revenues 99,675            47,270            (52,405)           47%

EXPENDITURES: 

Capital Outlay 75,000            -                     75,000            0%
Contingency 100,000          -                     100,000          0%

Total Expenditures 175,000          -                     175,000          0%

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (75,325)           47,270            122,595

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                     

Net Change in Fund Balance (75,325)           47,270            122,595          

Beginning Fund Balance 391,517          458,181          66,664            

Ending Fund Balance $ 316,192          $ 505,451          $ 189,259          

VARIANCE

ACTUALBUDGET
ORIGINAL

-NEGATIVE
POSITIVEJULY-SEPT

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS

PARKS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

COUNCIL UPDATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 141 of 154



REVENUES:

Licenses, Permits, Fees $ 99,400            $ 66,552            $ (32,848)           67%
Interest 420                 149                 (271)                35%

Total Revenues 99,820            66,701            (33,119)           67%

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 50,000            -                     50,000            0%
Contingency 50,000            -                     50,000            0%

Total Expenditures 100,000          -                     100,000          0%

Net Change in Fund Balance (180)                66,701            66,881            

Beginning Fund Balance 173,836          88,402            (85,434)           

Ending Fund Balance $ 173,656          $ 155,103          $ (18,553)           

-NEGATIVE
POSITIVE

VARIANCE

ACTUALBUDGET
ORIGINAL JULY-SEPT

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT TAX FUND

COUNCIL UPDATE
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 142 of 154



REVENUES:

Interest $ 1,435              $ 261                 $ (1,174)             18%

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay 50,000 -                     50,000            0%

Contingency 50,000            -                     50,000            0%

Total Expenditures 100,000          -                     100,000          0%

Net Change in Fund Balance (98,565)           261                 98,826            

Beginning Fund Balance 287,033          286,034          (999)                

Ending Fund Balance $ 188,468          $ 286,295          $ 97,827            

(1) Appropriation Level

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COUNCIL UPDATE

TRAFFIC IMPACT FEES FUND

ACTUAL

VARIANCE

POSITIVE

-NEGATIVE

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

JULY-SEPT

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 143 of 154



REVENUES:

Interest $ 225                 $ 23                   $ (202)                10%

Total Revenues 225                 23                   (202)                10%

EXPENDITURES:

Contingency 10,000            -                     10,000            0%

Total Expenditures 10,000            -                     10,000            0%

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (9,775)             23                   9,798              

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers  in 13,800            -                     (13,800)           
Transfers  out -                     -                     -                     

Total Other Sources (Uses) 13,800            -                     (13,800)           

Net Change in Fund Balance 4,025              23                   (4,002)             

Beginning Fund Balance 25,488            46,348            20,860            

Ending Fund Balance $ 29,513            $ 46,371            $ 16,858            

-NEGATIVE
POSITIVE

VARIANCE

ACTUALBUDGET
ORIGINAL JULY-SEPT

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS

VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND

COUNCIL UPDATE
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 144 of 154



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS
WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON

COUNCIL UPDATE

URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL -NEGATIVE

REVENUES:

Taxes $ 85,751            $ 928                 $ (84,823)           1%
Property Rental Fees 6,000              2,400              (3,600)             40%
Interest 590                 128                 (462)                22%

Total Revenues 92,341            3,456              (88,885)           4%

EXPENDITURES:

Debt Service 46,577            2,871              43,706            6%
Contingency 50,000            -                     50,000            0%

Total Expenditures 96,577            2,871              93,706            3%

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4,236) 585 4,821

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers Out (8,086)             -                     8,086              0%

Total Other Sources (Uses) (8,086)             -                     8,086              

Net Change in Fund Balance (12,322)           585                 12,907            

Beginning Fund Balance 116,745          135,884          19,139            

Ending Fund Balance $ 104,423          $ 136,469          $ 32,046            

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

JULY-SEPT

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 145 of 154



EXPENDITURES: 

City Council
Materials and Services $ 30,950              $ 23,714              $ 7,236                 77%

City Attorney
Materials and Services 25,000              2,526                22,474               10%

City Manager
Personal Services 121,567            30,371              91,196               25%
Materials and Services 1,500                2,612                (1,112)               174%

  Total City Manager 123,067            32,983              90,084               27%

City Recorder
Materials and Services 7,000                669                   6,331                 10%

Finance Department
Personal Services 231,574            55,526              176,048             24%
Materials and Services 31,260              7,377                23,883               24%

  Total Finance Department 262,834            62,903              199,931             24%

City Engineer
Materials and Services 5,000                -                        5,000                 0%

General Government
Materials and Services: 122,669            70,178              52,491               57%

Public Works Department
Personal Services 374,841            87,500              287,341             23%
Materials and Services 34,020              5,666                28,354               17%

  Total Public Works Department 408,861            93,166              315,695             23%

    Total Expenditures 985,381            286,139            699,242             29%

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (985,381)          (286,139)           699,242             

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 992,381            -                        (992,381)           
Transfers Out (7,000)              -                        7,000                 

Total Other Sources (Uses) 985,381            -                        (985,381)           

Net Change in Fund Balance -                       (286,139)           (286,139)           

Beginning Fund Balance -                       -                        -                        

Ending Fund Balance $ -                       $ (286,139)           $ (286,139)           

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS
WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COUNCIL UPDATE

INTERNAL SERVICES FUND
VARIANCE

ORIGINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL -NEGATIVE

JULY-SEPT

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 146 of 154



REVENUES: 

Charges for Services $ 805,977          $ 243,148 $ (562,829)         30%
Licenses, Permits, Fees 180,150          86,472            (93,678)           48%
Interest 3,845              810                 (3,035)             21%
Miscellaneous 200                 7                     (193)                4%

Total Revenues 990,172          330,437          (659,735)         33%

EXPENDITURES:

Materials and Services 195,880          23,352            172,528          12%
Capital Outlay 51,000            -                     51,000            0%
Debt Services 134,332          -                     134,332          0%
Special Payments 72,700            -                     72,700            0%
Contingency 50,000            -                     50,000            0%

Total Expenditures 503,912          23,352            480,560          5%

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 486,260          307,085          (179,175)         

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out (502,724)         -                     502,724          0%

Total Other Sources (Uses) (502,724)         -                     502,724          

Net Change in Fund Balance (16,464)           307,085          323,549          

Beginning Fund Balance 747,837          684,812          (63,025)           

Ending Fund Balance $ 731,373          $ 991,897          $ 260,524          

-NEGATIVE
POSITIVE

VARIANCE

ACTUALBUDGET
ORIGINAL JULY-SEPT

WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS

WATER FUND

COUNCIL UPDATE
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 147 of 154



 

Agenda Item No: 8K   

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 2, 2013 

To:  City Council 

From:  Finance Director Rachael Lembo 

Subject: Excess Crime Coverage 

 
Request:  This item is informational only. 
 
Background:   Crime coverage is insurance against employee theft, fraud, and 
robbery.  Presently, the City receives a $50,000 crime limit provided under the CIS 
Property Coverage Agreement. In addition, the City purchases a $200,000 “Excess 
Crime” limit and the additional annual contribution for this limit is $605.  At June 30, 
2013, the City held $3.7 million in cash in the City bank accounts and LGIP investments.  
Determining the appropriate amount of excess crime coverage requires considering 
how much risk the City is comfortable with as well as cost of higher coverage.  
Management has obtained rates for different levels of insurance, presented below.  This 
is for informational purposes and management is not proposing a change to our current 
coverage of $250,000 (crime + excess crime), however we believe it is important for the 
Council to review, consider and advise on the coverage.  
 
Fiscal Impact:   Instead of a $200,000 excess crime limit, the City of North Plains could 
purchase the following: 
 

$300,000              Annual contribution of $805 (in lieu of the $605) 
$400,000              Annual contribution of $914 (in lieu of the $605) 
$500,000              Annual contribution of $979 (in lieu of the $605) 
$1,000,000           Annual contribution of $1,569 (in lieu of the $605) 

 
Sample Motion:  This item is informational only. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 148 of 154



City of North Plains 
Police Department  

9/30/13 
 
TO:               Martha DeBry, City 

Manager     
  City Council      
  Department Heads 
 
FROM: Bill Snyder, Police Chief 
           
SUBJ.: DEPARTMENT REPORT   
     
September was busy with ongoing criminal investigations.  Officers have also been continuing 
to work grant hours regarding construction on Hwy 26.    
 
The following are the numbers regarding criminal reports/activity for Sept: 
 
  2013 

Activity Sept 

Menacing 1 
Traffic crash 3 
Harassment 1 
Interfering arrest   1 

Information reports 3 

Forgery/counterfeiting 1 

 Welfare check 2 

Burglary  1 

Violation Release arres  1 

Theft 2 

Hit and Run 1 

Found Property 1 

Assault 1 

Animal complaint 1 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 149 of 154



_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 150 of 154



City of North Plains 

Public Works Department 

9/30/2013 

TO:   Martha DeBry, City Manager 
  City Council 
  Department Heads 
 
FROM:  Blake Boyles, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT  

 

 CDBG Project Management –NW Claxtar St –Storm, curb and sidewalk coordination. Paving weather 

depending 

 Construction coordination with ODOT on interchange/pedestrian trail working designs 

 Glencoe Pedestrian Tunnel coordination 

 East side reservoir cost evaluation, possible real estate property locations 

 Highland Court Subdivision coordination 

 Street light installation 

 Emergency Management planning 

Public Works Crews are working on the following projects/tasks: 

 Hydrant flushing 

 Valve maintenance 

 Monthly meter reading 

 Equipment Maintenance  

 Trail path mowing 

 Curb repair 

 Claxtar St Project inspection 

 Mowing of Parks  

 Winterizing irrigation 

 Cross Connection  

 Curb painting 

 Locates 

 Leak repair at reservoir site 

 

 

 

Future reports will include tasks accomplished and those pending. If there is any other information you may 

want to see in the report, please let me know.- 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 151 of 154



City of North Plains - Library Department - October 7 to November 4, 2013 
 
TO: Martha DeBry, City Manager, and to City Council Members 
FROM: Debbie Brodie, Library Director 
SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Cover Oregon.  This is the name of our state’s health insurance “marketplace” which was mandated 
by the Federal Affordable Care Act.  It is required that everyone in the USA be covered by health 
insurance by January 1, 2014.  “Cover Oregon” is a public corporation created by the people of Oregon, 
for the people of Oregon.  The marketplace is a resource for citizens who are seeking affordable health 
insurance or assistance in obtaining insurance.  Small business owners may also use this to identify 
health insurance options to offer their employees.  Oregonians will be able to compare and enroll in 
health and dental coverage that fits their needs and budget, and to access financial help to pay for their 
coverage.  No one will be denied coverage because of pre-existing conditions.  Essential health benefits 
are included in all policies offered:  hospitalizations, emergency services, mental/behavioral health, 
maternity/newborn care, pediatric vision care, laboratory services, prevention/wellness, ambulatory 
services, prescription drugs, and rehabilitative/habilitative services/devices.  Enrollment begins October 
1, and libraries in the state are helping to spread the word.  Literature will be available at the North 
Plains Public Library as well as information about where to go to hear a presentation and about whom 
to contact for assistance in signing up. 
 
SPLASH Artwork on Exhibit.  Original art inspired by literature will be showcased during the month 
of October when members of the Friends of the Library introduce their annual One Book One 
Community program.  This year’s inspirational source was Naomi Benaron’s debut novel set in Rwanda 
during the Hutu-Tutsi conflict:  Running the Rift.  It is the story of a Rwandan boy, training as a runner 
to represent his country in the Olympics, who soon found himself running for his life.  The art show, on 
display in the computer room of the Library, is comprised of nineteen pieces by Northwest artists in 
various media. 
 
Quilt Display.  The October quilt will feature the famous Irish Chain pattern.  Made by local resident 
Jo Ann Tannock, it has beautiful red and cream colors for fall.  This design can be traced back to 
colonial days and was also popular with Amish quilt makers in the mid-1800s. 
 
Storytimes.  Children ages 0-6 are invited to participate every Wednesday at 11:30 a.m. in the 
children's section of the Library. 
 
October 2  Storytime with Miss Marion:  Critters and Creatures 
October 9  Storytime with Children’s Librarian Kay:  Dogs 
October 16  Special Guest Storytime:   
October 23  Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:   
October 30  Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:   
 
Read to the Dogs.  First graders and up can gain confidence reading aloud to Taylor, a volunteer pet-
therapy dog.  Taylor and his owner Ben Benally are a registered team with Pet Partners.  This free 
program offers a friendly, non-judgmental environment for young readers to practice their reading skills.  
This program will start on October 2 and will take place on the first Wednesday of every month from 
3-5 p.m.  Reservations are required.  Sign up for a 20-minute time slot by calling the Library at 503-
647-5051. 
 
Library Board Meeting.  The annual potluck dinner and orientation to the Washington County 
Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS), presented by Director Eva Calcagno, will take place at the 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 152 of 154



North Plains Public Library at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, October 2, and will include Library Board 
members from the Banks City Library. 
 
Writers’ Group.  Share your writing projects and receive feedback from peers on Thursday, October 
3 at 6:30 p.m.  New members are welcome to join.  (This is not a teacher/trainer-led class.) 
 
First Friday Flick.  The PG-rated film to be shown on October 4 at 6 p.m. was created by Tim Burton.  
Jack, the Pumpkin King, opens a portal to Christmas Town and proceeds to take over the festivities of 
that holiday – all in the spirit of Halloween.  Seating is limited. Refreshments will be served. 
 
Teen Read Week – October 13-19.  This year’s theme is “Seek the Unknown” and is sponsored by 
the Washington County Cooperative Library Services.  Stop by the North Plains Public Library during 
the week to pick up a free teen book (while supplies last).  Read and release it for another reader to 
discover.  Just follow the instructions inside the book. 
 
Friends of the Library Meeting.  There will be a regular meeting of the Friends on Monday, October 
14 at the Library from 7:30-9 p.m.  New members are welcome to attend. 
 
Library Book Club.  The Razor’s Edge by W. Somerset Maugham will be discussed on Thursday, 
October 17.  This classic 20th century novel of self-discovery and search for meaning features a man 
battered physically and spiritually by The Great War.  His physical wounds heal, but his spirit is forever 
changed.  This story recounts his post-war experiences as he leaves his betrothed, studies philosophy 
and religion, lives various lives of hardship and poverty, all the while spurning the comfort and privilege 
of the Roaring ‘20s.  This meeting will begin at 7:00 p.m. at the Library.  New members are welcome.  
Refreshments will be served. 
 
Craft Night.  The Craft Guild will meet on Thursday, October 31 at the Library.  Bring your knitting, 
crocheting, or other personal craft projects from 6-7:30 p.m. for an evening of camaraderie and 
dedicated handiwork time. 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 153 of 154



October 2013 Council Calendar 
 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

Library Board Hatcher  
Special joint meeting with the 
Banks Library Board held in 
North Plains 

10/2 

City Council Tuesday 7:00 p.m. 10/7 

Planning Commission Demagalski  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 10/9 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development: Policy 
Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 10/10 

One Book One Community 
Program Preview/Art Exhibit   6:30 p.m. at the library 10/12 

Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 10/14 

Chili Cook-Off   Jessie Mays Community Hall 
at 6:00 10/17 

Benefit Dance: Harvest Hoedown   Jessie Mays Community Hall 
from 7:00-11:00 p.m. 10/19 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 10/21 

Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) Hatcher Newton 4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 10/23 

Parks Board   4th Wednesday @ 6:30 p.m. 10/23 
Pumpkin Pancake Breakfast and 
Pumpkin Fun Run and Costume 
Parade 

 7:00 a.m. -3:00 p.m. Senior 
Center and Jessie Mays 10/26 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

Warren Lenahan   

Northwest Oregon Area 
Commission on Transportation 
(NWACT) 

Lenahan DeBry   

 

Agenda Item: 12B 

_______________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 7, 2013 
Page 154 of 154


	4A 100713 Preliminary Agenda
	4A 091613 Minutes
	8A Memo Resolution No. 1801 Support of  HSD GOB
	8A Resolution No. 1801 Support of HSD GOB in Nov 2013
	8B Memo Library Board Appointment Anapreet Kaur Gil
	8Ba Anapreet Kaur Gil application
	8Bb Resolution No. 1802 Anapreet Kaur Gil Library Board Member
	8C Memo Acquisition of Cameras with CIS grant
	8D Memo Property acquisition
	8E Memo Fireworks at 4th of July Celebration
	8F Memo Event Coordinator
	8Fa Festival job descriptions
	8Fb Event planning timeline 4th of july
	8G Memo Employee Handbook
	8H Progress on draft City Policies
	8I Memo Street Naming
	8J Budget Update FY 2013-14 through Sept
	8K Memo Excess Crime
	11 Staff Reports Chief Snyder 09-2013
	11a Staff Reports Chief Snyder Community contacts.docx
	11a Staff Reports R.Lembo Finance Report.docx
	11b Staff Reports Public WorksSept 30 2013
	11c Staff Reports Library Director Report



